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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF CLEAN AROMATICS PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of CLEAN AROMATICS PRIVATE
LIMITED, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows ended on that date, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2024, the Profit and total
comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We cenducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(“SA”s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statement and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other information and
presentation of its report (herein after called as “Board Report”) which comprises various information
required under section 134(3) of the Companies Act 2013 but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon,

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the Other Information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.




In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the Other
Information and in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement in this Other Information; we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s and Board of Director’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in equity
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.




¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant  ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable.

(A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that;

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c¢. The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss (including
other comprehensive income), the standalone statement of changes in equity and the
standalone statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the books of account

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (A Qgﬁﬁﬁ :
2014 o —
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e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st

March, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31st March, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

a.

b.

C.

d.

€.

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

i. The Management has represented that ,to the best of its knowledge and belief as
disclosed in notes to accounts, no fund have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other source or kind of
funds) by the company to or in any other person or entities including foreign
entities ( Intermediaries) with the understandings , whether recorded in writings or
otherwise ,that the intermediary shall ,directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company ( “ultimate beneficiary”) or provide any guarantee security or the like to or
on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

ii. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in financial statements, no funds have been received by the company
from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

iii. Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances performed by us, nothing has come to our notice
that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii)
above contain any material misstatement

No Dividend Is declared and paid during the year by the company.




f. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility except that audit trail was not enabled at the
database level to log any direct changes for the accounting software used for
maintaining the books of account. For accounting software for which audit trail
feature is enabled, the audit trail facility has been operating throughout the year for
all relevant transactions recorded in the software and we did not come across any
instance of audit trail feature being tampered with during the course of our audit.

For M/s Sanjay S Rathi & Co;
Chartered Accountants

%

CA Sanjay S Rathi
Partner

M. No - 042436
UDIN: 24042426 BKDPQTH |64

Place of Signature: Sangamner
Date: 14/05/2024




ANNEXURE A TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Annexure Referred to in our Independent auditors’ Report paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other
Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of CLEAN AROMATICS

PRIVATE LIMITED of even date

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company
and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(a

o

(b

—_—

(2)

The company does not have Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(i) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020
are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into Bill to Ship to transaction during the year. Due to such
kind of business operations the company does not have any physical inventory and hence
reporting under clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

During the year, the company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of
S crore rupees, in aggregate, from any bank or financial institution hence the reporting
under Clause No 3 (ii) (b) of the order is not applicable to the company

The company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Therefore,
Paragraph 3(iii) (a), (b), (c), (d), () and (f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has no loans,
investments, guarantees or security where provisions of section 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are to be complied with. Therefore Paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is
not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
under the directives of the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76
or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed
thereunder, where applicable. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are
not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, the Central Government has not specified
maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of
Company’s products/ services. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are
not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company is regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’
state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value
added tax, cess and any other statutory dues, as applicable and as amen
accrued in the books of account, with the appropriate authorities.




(b

—_—

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(@)

(b)

(©

(d

(€

(@)

(b)

(@)

(b)

amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues in respect of
Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-
tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other
statutory dues that have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account
of any dispute.

According to the information and explanation given to us, company has no transactions,
not recorded in the books of account have been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961);

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company did not have any loans or
borrowings from any lender during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority,

The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no
outstanding term loans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under clause
3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not raised any short term loans and hence, reporting under clause
3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to
meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Hence reporting
under clause 3(ix) (e) of the Order is not applicable

The Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence reporting on clause
3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause
3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible)
during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.




(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(2)

(b)

(xvii)

Company is not a Nidhi Company, accordingly provisions of the Clause 3(xii) of the Order
is not applicable to the company:

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not
undertaken any transactions with related parties as mentioned in Section 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013, accordingly the provisions of clause 3(xiii) of the Order are not
applicable to the company;

In our opinion, the company has no internal audit system commensurate with the size
and the nature of its business,

In our opinion during the year the company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with directors or persons connected with him and accordingly, the provisions
of clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the
Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the
Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting
under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has incurred not incurred any cash losses during the financial year covered
by our audit. However it has incurred cash loss in the immediately preceding financial
year. The quantum of cash losses are given as under ;

Particulars FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23

Cash Losses NIL Loss of Rs. 2,547/-

(xvii)

(xix)

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable;

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on
our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report indicating that company is incapable of meeting its liabilities existing
at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the company as and when they fall due.




(xx)  The provisions of Section 135 towards corporate social responsibility are not applicable on
the company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable.

For M/s Sanjay S Rathi & Co;
Chartered Accountants
FRN - 109182wW

=5

CA Sanjay S Rathi
Partner
M. No - 042436

Place of Signature: Sangamner
Date: 14/05/2024




Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the standalone financial statements of
CLEAN AROMATICS PRIVATE LIMITED for the year ended 31 March 2024

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid standalone financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of CLEAN
AROMATICS PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date,

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at

financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to €xpress an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness.

risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures se




auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For M/s Sanjay S Rathi & Co;
Chartered Accountants

FRN -EﬁiBﬂN

CA Sanjay S Rathi
Partner
M. No - 042436

Place of Signature: Sangamner
Date: 14/05/2024




Clean Aromatics Private limited (CIN : U24304PN2019PTC187496)

Standalone Balance Sheet
(All amounts are in rupees thousand,unless otherwise stated)

Note

ASSETS
Current asscts
Financial assets

(i) Cash and cash equivalents 3

(ii) Bank balances other than (i) above 4
(¢) Current tax assets (net)
Other current assets -]
Total current assets
Total Assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 6
Other equity 7

Total equity
Liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Trade payables 8
a) total outstanding dues of micro en terprises and small enterprises
b) total outstanding dues of ereditors other than miero enterprises and
small enterprises
Current tax liabilities

Total current liabilitics
Total liabilities
Total Equity and Liabilities

Significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes form an i ntegral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached

For M/s Sanjay S Rathi & Co,
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration no. 109182W

ZM

CA Sanjay S Rathi
Partner
Membership No. 42436

Place : Pune
Date : 14th May 2024

As at As at
Mar 31, 2024 March 31,2023

22.76 905.65

§90.03 -

6.97 =
919,76 905.65
919.76 905.65
1,000.00 1,000.00
(109.74) (116.35)
890.26 883.65
29.50 22.00
29.50 22.00
29.50 22.00
919.76 905.65

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Clean Aromatics Private Limited

@oocml/

Krishnakumar Boob
Director
DIN : 00410672

DIN : 02351154

Place : Pune
Date : 14th May 2024

Place : Pune
Date : 14th May 2024



Clean Aromaties Private limited (CIN U24304PN2019PTC187496)

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended
(All amounts are in rupees thousand,unless otherwise stated)

Note Year Ended Year Ended
31-03-2024 31-03-2023

Income
Revenue from operations 9 93.27 -
Other income 10 44.47 35.80
Total income 137.74 35.80
Expenscs
Purchases of Stock-in-trade 91.43
Other expenses ' 1 39.70 38.35
Total expenses 131.13 38.35
Profit / (Loss) before tax 6.61 (2.55)
Tax expense:

Current tax - -
Deferred tax ) -
Profit/ (Loss) for the period/year (A) 6.61 (2.55)

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassificd subsequently to profit or loss

(i) Remeasurements of defined benefit liability/(asset) - -
(ii) Income tax relating to remeasurements of defined benefit liability/ (asset) -

(iii) Equity instruments designated through ather comprehensive income - -
(iv) Income lax related to equity instruments designated through other comprehensive income -

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the period/year (B) - -
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the period/year (A+B) 6.61 (2.55)
Earnings per equity share 12

[nominal value of Rs, 10]

Basic 0.07 (0.03)
Diluted 0.07 (0.03)
Significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached

For MJs Sanjay S Rathi & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Charlered Accountants Clean Aromatics Private Limited

Firm registration no. 109182W

5

i

CA Sanjay S Rathi Krishnakumar Boob

Partner Director

Membership No. 42436 DIN : 00410672 DIN : 02351154
Place : Pune Place : Pune Place : Pune

Date : 14th May 2024 Date : 14th May 2024 Date : 14th May 2024




Clean Arvomatics Private limited (CIN : U24304PN2019PTC187496)

Standalone Statement of Cash Flows
(All amounts are in rupees thousand,unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A. Cash Mlow from operating activities
Net profit / (loss) before taxation 6.61 {2.55)
Non-cash adjusiments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:

Interest income (44.47) (35.80)
Operating profit before working capital changes (37.86) (38.35)
Movement in working capital:

(Increase)/Decrease in other non-current assets (6.97) -

(Decrease) / Increase in trade payables 7.50 (5.90)

(Deerease) / Increase in trade payables

Cash generated from aperations (37.33) (44.25)

Net income tax (paid) - -

Net cash flow generated from operating activities (A) (37.33) (44.25)

B. Cash flow from investing activities

Bank deposits placed during the year (890.03) -

Deposit Matured - 800.00

Interest received 44.47 35.90

Net cash flow (used in) investing activities (13) (845.56) 835.90

C. Cash flow from financing activities

Net cash flow (used in)/from financing activities (C) # =

Net (deerease) in Cash and eash equivalents (A+B+C) (882.89) 791.65

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 905.65 114.00

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 22.76 905.65

Notes:-

Cash on hand

Balances with bank

- Current accounts 22.76 905.65
22.76 905.65

Significant accounting policies Note 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached

For M/s Sanjay § Rathi & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Clean Aromatics Private Limited

Firm registration no, 109182W

pe’s

CA Sanjay S Rathi

iddhartha Sikchi (/\/\

20
Kristmakumar Boob

Partner Director irector
Membership No. 42436 DIN - 00410672 DIN : 02351154
Place : Pune Place : Pune Place : Pufe

Date : 14th May 2024 Date : 14th May 2024 Date : 14th May 2024




Clean Aromatics Private limited (CIN : U24304PN2019PTC187496)
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity
(All amounts are in rupees thousand,unless otherwise stated)

(a) Equity share capital

As at Mar 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Equity share of Rs 10 each issues, subscribed and fully paid
Balance at the beginning of the reporting year 1,00,000 1,000 1,00,000 1,000
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors - - - -
Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting year 1,00,000 1,000 1,00,000 1,000
Changes in equity share capital during the year - - - -
Balance at the end of the reporting year 1,00.000 1,000 1,00.000 1,000
(b) Other equity

[ Reserves and surplus

Particulars Surplus/(Deficit) of profit

and loss account
Balance at I April 2022 (113.80)
Profit(Loss) for the year (2.55)
Balance at 31 March 2023 (116.35)
Balance at 1 April 2023 (116.35)
Profit/( Loss) for the year 6.61
Balance at 31 Mar 2024 (109.74)
Significant accounting policies Note 2
I'he accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements
As per our report of even date attached
For M/s Sanjay S Rathi & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of /\
Chartered Accountants Clean Aromatics Private Limited
FFirm registration no. 109182W I\/Ki
4

golodd

CA Sanjay 8 Rathi
Partner
Membership No. 42436

D(}'

Krisll@ mar Boob

Director
DIN : 00410672

Place : Pune
Date :14th May 2024

Place : Pune
Date @ 14th May 2024

Siddhartha Sikehi
Director
DIN : 02351154

Place : Pune
Date : 14th May 2024
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements
(Al amounts are in rupees thousand,unless otherwise slated)

3 Cash and cash equivalents

Balance with banks
In current accounts

4 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

FFixed Deposit with bank
Acerued Interest on Fixed Deposit

Other Current Assets

Balance with Government authorities

As at As at
Mar 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
22.76 905.65
22.76 9205.65
850.00 -
40.03 -
890.03 -
As at As at
Mar 31. 2024 March 31. 2023
6.97 -

6.97




Clean Aromatics Private limited (CIN : U24304I’N2019I‘TC187496}
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements
(All amounts are in rupees thousand,unless otherwise stated)

6 Equity share capital

—

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Authorised :
1,00,000 (31 March 2021 - 1,00,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each. 1,000 1,000
TOTAL 1,000 1,000
Issued and subscribed and paid up :
1,00,000 (31 March 2021 - 1,00,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 cach [ully paid-up 1,000 1,000
TOTAL 1,000 1,000
=l
Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year:
Equity share : As at As at —[
March 31, 2024 March 31, 202.
Outstanding at the beginning of the period/ycar 1,00,000 1,00,000
Equity shares issued during the period/year in consideration for cash - -
Outstanding at the end of the period/year 1,00,000 1,00,000

Terms / Rights attached to each classes of shares

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

I'he Company has single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank cqually with regard to dividends and share in the

Company’s residual assets, The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time,

sharcholder are in proportion to its share of the paid-up equity capital of the Company.

On winding up of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual a

distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to the number of equity shares held,

Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company is set out below:

The voting rights of an equity

ssets of the Company, remaining after

Equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid As at As at
L March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Number of shares Yo Number of shares %o
Clean Science and Technology Limited (Erstwhile known as 100 0% 100 100%
'Clean Science and Technology Private Limited')
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
7 Other equity

Surplus of profit and loss acecount
Balance as at the beginning of the period/year (116.35) (113.80)
Add : Profit / (Loss) for the period/year 6.61 (2.55)
Balance as at the end of the period/year (109.74) (116.35)

(109.74) (116.35)
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8 Trade payables

Total outstanding dues of micro enterpr
Total outstanding dues of creditors other

Trade Payable Ageing Schedule

As at 31 Mareh 2024

ises and small enterprises (Refer note

12)
than micro enterprises and small enterprises

As at As at
Mar 31, 2024 March 31,2023
29.50 22.00
29.50 22.00

Particulars Ciroi Outstanding for following periods from due (Amount in Rs.)
but not | Less than 1-2 2-3 More than 3
Total
due I year years | years years
| Total outstanding for MSME due 29.50 - - - - 29.50
Total outstanding for other than MSME duc | - 2 - = f 2
As at 31 March 2023
Particulars Ciiitoni Outstanding for following periods from the (Amount in Rs.)
but not | Less than 1-2 2-3 More than 3
Total
due Lyear | years | years years
Total outstanding for MSME due 22.00 - - - - 22,00
Total outstanding for other than MSME due - -




Clean Aromatics Private limited {CIN : lf24.‘!lJ4I’NZOIDI"I‘C137496)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements
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9 Revenue from operations

Year Ended Year Ended
31-03-2024 31-03-2023
Sale of products 93.27 -
93.27 -
10 Other Income
31-03-2024 31-03-2023
Interest Received 44.47 35.80
44.47 35.80
Il Other expenses 31-03-2024 31-03-2023
Audit fees 17270 17.70
Bank charges i "
Consultancy fees 22,00 20.65
Other Expenses - -
39,70 38.35
Payment to auditors
As auditor
Statutory audit fees 17.70 17.70

17.70 17.70




Clean Aromatics Private limited (CIN : U243[l4l’N2UI‘)I"I‘CIH‘M%)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements
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12 Earnings per share Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 31-03-2024 31-03-2023

Profit for the year 6,610 (2,550)
Basic carnings per share
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year 1,00,000 1,00,000
Basic EPS (Rs.) 0.07 (0.03)
Diluted carnings per share
Profit for the year 6,610 (2,550)
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the 1,00,000 1,00,000
year for diluted EPS
[Dituted EPS (Rs.) 0.07 (0.03)

13 Disclosures required under Seetion 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

As at As at

3. T
Eactioutary March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Frincipal amoum remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the vear
Trade payables - -
Capital creditors - -

Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the year
Trade payvables - -
Capital ereditors - -

The amount of int patid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small

and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006

The amount of payment made to micro and small supplier beyond the appointed day
during each accounting year.

The amount of interest due and payable for period of delay in making payment
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without a -
adding the interest specified under MSMED Act 2006,
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the faceounting ye e 3
The amount of further interest temaining due and payable even in the succeeding
year, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small
enterprises for the purpose of disallowance as a deductibl expenditure under
[section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006,

14 Related party disclosures
(a) List of related parties and deseription of relationship:

Holding company
Clean Science and Technology Limited (Erstwhile known as 'Clean Science and Technology Private Limited')

Fellow subsidiaries

1. Clean Science Private Limited
2. Clean Organics Private Limited
3. Clean Fino-Chem Limited

Key Management Personnel (IKMP)
1. Mr. Ashok Boob
2. Mr. Siddhartha Sikchi
3. Mr. Krishnakumar Boob
(b) Transactions turing the year: Nil

fc) Balances outstanding at the end of the year: Nil
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IS Ratio Analysis and its element

Ratio Numerator Demoninator As at As at % Remarks
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 Change
Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabulities 31.18 41.17 -24%|Due to Increase in current
liabilities
Debt-Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholders Equity - - -
Debt Service Coverage Eamings for debt service = |Debt service = Interest & - - -
Ratio Net profit afler taxes + Non-|Lease Payments + Principal
cash operating expenses Repayments
Return on Equity Ratio  [Net Profits after taxes — Average Shareholder’s Equity 0.75% -0.29% -359%|Due to Increase in current
(%) Preference Dividend years Profit
Inventory Turnover Ratio |Cost of goods sold Average Inventory - - -
Trade Receivable Net credit sales = Gross Average Trade Receivable - - -
Turnover Ratio credit sales - sales return
Trade Payable Turnover |Net credit purchases = Average Trade Payables - - -
Ratio Gross eredit purchases -
purchase return
Net Capital Turnover Net sales = Total sales - Working capital = Current 0.10 - - |Increase in Sales
Ratio sales return assels — Current liabilities
Net Profit Ratio (%) Net Profit Afler Tax Net sales = Total sales - sales 7.09 - - [Due to Increase in Sales
return and Profit
Return on Capital Earnings before interest, Capital Employed = Tangible 0.74% -0.29% -357%|Due to Increase in current
Employed (%) taxes and dividend income [Net Worth + Total Debt + years Profit,
Delerred Tax Liability
Return on Investment Interest (Finance Income)  |Investment 10.48 - - |Due to Investment in
(%) Fixed Deposit
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16 Financial instruments
16,1 Financial instruments by eategory

The carrying value of financial instruments by categories are as follows :

Asat

31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Particulars Amortised cost | Total carrying value Amortised cost Total carrying value
Category Level 2 Level 2
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 22.76 22.76 905.65 905.65
Bank balances other than (i) above 890.03 890,03 - -
| Total assets 912.79 912.79 Y05.65 905,65
Liabilities
Trade payables 29.50 29.50 22.00 22.00
Tutal liabilities 29,50 29.50 22.00 22,00

16.2 Fair value hierarchy

Fair value of financial nssets and financial liabilities measured af a maortised cost ;

The management believes that the fair values of current financial assets (e.i2. cash and cash equivalents) and current financial liabilities (e.g. trade payables) approximate their
carrymg amounts Targely due to the short term nature.

16,3 Financial risk npnagement

The Company's activities ¢ poses it to credit risks and liquidity risks. The Company’s management have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company’s risk management framework. The Company’s risks are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the company’s activities,

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from finaneial instruments :

i Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial losses 1o (he Company if a customer or counterparty to financial instruments fails 1o discharge its contractual obligations. It arises primarily
from the Company's receivables from customers. To manage this, the Company periodically assesses the key accounts receivable balances, As per Ind-AS 109 : Financial
Instruments, the Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain.

i The company has not made any provision on expected credit loss on trade receivables, based on the management estimates.

il Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally invests in deposits with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned
by domestic credit rating agencies,

Liguidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are setiled by delivering cash or

another financial assel. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far ag possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are
due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unaceeptable losses or risking damage to the C pany’s reputation,

he Company has a view of mamtaining liquidity and 1o take minimum possible risk while making investments, The Company monitors its cash and bank balances
periodically in view of its short term obligations associated with its financial linbilities.

The liquidity position at each reporting date is given below:

Particulars Asat As at

March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023
Total current assets (A) 219.76 905.65
Total current liabilities (B) 29.50 22,00

Working capital (A-B) 890.26 8§83.65
65 |

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities as on 31 March 2024,

Particulars ‘ Less than More than Total
‘ one year one year
| Trade payables | 29.50 - 29.50

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities as on 31 March 2023,

Particulars l Less than Muore than Total
ane year one year
Trade payables 22.00 - 22.00
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17 Capital management

Far the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary

objective of the Company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order 1o support its b and sharehold
value
The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the 1 qui ts of the financial wts. To or adjust

the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to sharcholders, retum capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the period ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023,

The Company monitors capital using debt-equity ratio, which is net debt

divided by total equity. These ratios are illustrated below:

Particulars Asat Asat

March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023
Total liabilities 29.50 22,00
Less: cash and cash equivalents and bank (912.79) (905.65)
balances
Net debt (883.29) (883.65)
Tutal equity 890,26 883.65
Debt-equity ratio - -

Other Statutory Information

) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property

by The Company do not have any transactions wilh companies struck off.

¢} The Company do not have any charges or satisfachon which is yetto be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period,

d)  The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during ihe financial year.

¢} The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds 1o any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the
Intermediary shall:
i} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other Persons or entities id

ied in any whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

1) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ullimate Beneficiaries

0 The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or
otherwise) that the Company shall:

1) direetly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entitics identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

i) provide any guaramee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiarics,
£) The Company have no such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments

under the Income Tax Act, 1961,
As per our report of even date attached

For Mis Sanjay § Rathi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Lor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Clean Aromatics Private Limited

y ARAN
S[de/harlhu WM

Director -
DIN: 0235

Firm registration no. 109182W

e

CA Sanjay S Ruthi
Partner
Membership No. 42436

0{9

Krishnakumar Bool
Director
DIN : 00410672

\

Mace  Pune
Date © 141h May 2024

Place : Pune
Date : 14th May 2024

Place : Pune
Date : 14th May 2024
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
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I.. Corporate Information

Clean Aromatics Private Limited is a private company domiciled and headquartered in India. The
company is a subsidiary of Clean Science and Technology Limited,which is a Chemical organisation.
Ihe Company is engaged in manufacturing and sale of various types of speciality chemicals at its
manulacturing plants situated at Kurkumbh MIDC, Daund, Dist: Pune. The Company caters to both
domestic and international markets,

2. Material Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of preparation and presentation

i) S!;ll(rmcnlui“(.’nmpli;mcv

The Standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 (as amended from time to time) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
presentation requirements of Division 11 of Schedule HT'to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS com pliant

Schedule B11). as applicable (o the Company.

The Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 were approved for issue by the
Company’s Board of Directors on May 14, 2024. '

b) Basis of measurement

The Standalone financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. except for the
following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value or revalued amount:

i) Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding
financial instruments):

i) Asset held for sale measured at lower Uf‘czn‘rying amount or fair value less cost to sell;

i) Net defined benefit (asset) / liability that are measured at fair value of plan assets less present

value of defined benefit obligations.

The accounting policies adopted for preparation and presentation of Standalone financial statements have
been consistent with the previous year,

The Standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees () and all values are rounded to the
nearest millions. upto two places of decimal. unless otherwise stated.

2.2 Current and non-current classification of assets and liabilitics

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule 111 (Division I1) to the Companies Act, 2013.
Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
vealisation in cash and cash equivalents. the Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months.

2.2 Use of judgements estimates and assumptions

Fhe preparation ol the Standalone financial statements in conlormity with Ind AS requires the
mangeement to make judgments. estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue.
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CXPENSCS, current assets, non-current assets, current liabilities, non-current liabilities, and disclosure of
the contingent liabilities at the end of each reporting period. Such estimates are on a reasonable and
prudent basis considering all available information. however, due to uncertainties about these judgments,
estimates and assumptions, actual results could differ from estimates. Information about each of these
estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes,

Judgements

Information about judgements made in a pplying accounting policies that have the most significant effects
on the amounts recognised in the Standalone financial statements is included in the following notes:

¢ Note 40 - classification of financial assets: assessment of business model within which the assets are
held and assessment of whether the contractual terms of the financial asset are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Assumptions and estimation vncertainties

information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a

material adjustment is included in (he lollowing notes:

* Note 9 Valuation of inventories: Allocation of overheads.

* Note 33 — Recognition of tax expense including deferred tax.

¢ Nole 35 — Recognition of contingencies: key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of
outilow of resources. However. there are no major contingent liabilities as at current financial year
end.

¢ Note 4l - Impairment of trade receivables: Computation of weighted average loss rate.

¢«  Note 4l - Defined benefit obligation: key actuarial assumptions,

2.3 Revenue recognition:

Sales are recognised when control of the products has been transferred to the customer. being when the
products are delivered to the customer or its authorised representative and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customer’s acceplance of the products. Revenue is measured based on the
transaction price excluding taxes, which is the consideration, net of returns, trade discounts. and volume
rebates, i any,

The sales made by the Company may include transport arrangements from third parties. In such cases,
revenue for the supply of such third-party transport arrangements are recorded at gross or net basis
depending on whether the Company is acting as the principal or as an agent of the customer. The Company
recognises revenue for the gross amount of consideration when itis acting as a principal and at net amount
ol consideration when it is acting as an agent.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered as this is the point in time that the consideration
is unconditional because only the passage of time is required before the payment is due as per agreed
terins and conditions with the buvers,

Revenue from sale of solar cleetricity power is recognised on a point in time basis when solar clectrical
power is transmitted to Alternating Current Distribution Board (ACDB).
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2.4 Inventories

Inventories are valued at cost or net realisable value whichever is lower after providing for cost of
obsolescence. Cost is determined on a First-in-first-out formula,

Raw materials are valued at cost of purchase net of duties (credit availed W.r.t taxes and duties) and
includes zll expenses incurred in bringing the materials to location ol'use. However, materials and other
items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished
products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost.

Work-in-process (WIP) and finished goods include conversion costs in addition to the landed cost of raw
materials. Finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. The net realizable value
of the finished goods is determined with reference to the selling prices of related finished goods.

WIP includes certain inventorics used in the production process which has life of more than one year.
These inventories are amortised over its useful life and included as part of cost of production.

Cost of finished goods and work-in-progress comprises cost of raw material and appropriate fixed
production overheads which are allocated on the basis of normal capacity of production facilities and
variable production overheads on the basis of actual production of material and after deduction of the
realisable value of the by-product.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business. less estimated costs
of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Obsolete and slow-moving inventories are
identificd and wherever necessary. such inventories are writien oft/provided during the year.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment
* Recognition and measurement

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognised as an asset if, and only if it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. -

Properiy, plant and equipments are carried at cost which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss. if any. Items of property, plant and equipment are
measured at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation and / or accumulated
impairment losses, if any. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price, including import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies and any directly attributable cost
of bringing the asset (o its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and
removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. Any trade discounts and rebates are
deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the construction of a
qualifving asset are capitalised as part of the cost. The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant
and equipment comprises the cost ol'materials and direct labour. any other costs directly attributable (o
bringing the item to working condition for its intended use. and estimated costs of dismantling and
removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. The Company identifies and determines
costoleach component/ part of the asset separately. if'the component/ part has a cost which is significant
to the total cost of the asset and has useful life that is materially different from that of the remaining asset,
Fhese components are depreciated separately over their useful lives: the remaining components are
depreciated over the life of the principal asset.

Property, plant and equipment under construction are disclosed as capital work-in-progress.
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* Subsequent costs

Ihe cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying
amount of the item if it is probable that the future cconomic benefits embodied within the part will flow
to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred,

* Disposal

An item of property. plant and cquipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and
cquipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the sarrying amount of
property. plant and equipment. and are recognised net within other income/ expenses in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

* Depreciation method and estimated useful lives

Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on the straight-line method on pro-rata basis, over the useful
lives of assets as prescribed in Schedule — 11 of the Companies Act, 2013 which is as follows:

Type of asset Useful life
(No. of years) |

Factory Building 30 years
Non-Factory Buildings 60 years
Plant and Machinery 5-20 years
Office Equipment S years
Vehicles 8-10 years

| Furniture and fixtures 10 years

Depreciation method, useful iives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted if appropriate.

Impairments of non-financial assets:

The Company assesses at cach balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset or cash
geicrating umit (CGUY may be impaived. Indefinite life intangibles are subject (o a review for impairmeni
annualiy or more frequently il events or circumstances indicate that it is necessary. Ifany such indication
exists, the Comipany estimates the recoverable amount of the asset The recoverabie amount is the higher
ofan asset’s or CGU’s fair value less costs of disposal or its value in use. Where the carrying amount of
an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount. the assel is considered impaired and is written down to
s recoverable amount,

Hi assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre- wax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific 1o the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal. recent market transactions are
considered.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount. tmpairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Rlance sheet date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer
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exists, an impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined. net of depreciation or amortisation, if' no
impairment loss had been recognised.

2.6 Other intangible assets:

« Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets are recognised when the asset is identifiable, is within the control of the Company, it is
probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Company and
cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Intangible assets acquired
by the Company that have finite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are
tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-gencrating unit level.

Expenditure on research activities is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.
Development expenditure is capitalised only if the expenditure can be measured reliably, the product or
process is technically and commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable, and the
Company intends to complete development and to use or sell the asset.

Intangible assets which comprisc of the development expenditure incurred on new product and
expenditure incurred on acquisition of user licenses for computer sollware are recorded at their
acquisition price.,

*» Subscequent measurement

Subseguent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in
the specific asset to which it relates.

< Amaortisation
Ihe useful lives of intangible assets are assessed based on management estimates,

tintangible assets i.e.. computer software is amortized on a straight-line basis over the period ol expected
future benefits commencing from the date the asset is available for its use.

I'he management has estimated the useful life for software & licenses as following,

S s I ] Years |

| 5 |

Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and
adjusted i appropriate.

Intangible assets are assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired.

= Disposal

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between

S.
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the net disposal proceeds and (he carrying amount of the asset and are tecognized in the Statement of
rofitand Loss when the assel is derecognized.

2.7 Employee benefits:
¢ Short-term employee benefits

I'he distinction between short term and long-term employee benefits is based on expected timing of
settlement rather than the employee’s entitlement benefits. Employee benefits payable wholly within
twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits. Such benefits
include salaries, wages, bonus. short term compensated absences, awards, ex-gratia, performance pay etc.
and are recognised in the period in which the employee renders the related service. The undiscounted
amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by
employees is recognized during the year. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid
¢.2.. under short-term cash bonus. if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay
this amount as a result of  past service provided by the employee. and the amount of obligation can be
estimated reliably.

I'he employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absences. The employees can carry forward
a portion of the unutilized accumulating compensated absences and utilize it in future periods or receive
cash at retirement or termination ol employment. The Company records an obligation for compensated
absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that increases this entitlement
Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected 1o be availed or encashed within 12 months
from the end of the year are treated as short term employee benefits. The obligation towards the same is
measured at the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount expected
to be paid as a result of the unused entitlement as at the year end.

* Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plans

Contributions to the provident fund and superannuation schemes which is defined contribution scheme,
arc recognised as an employee benelit expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which
the contribution is due. Contributions are made in accordance with the rules of the statute and are
recognised as expenses when employees render service entitling them to the contributions. The Company
has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund.

IFthe contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the baiance sheet date exceeds the
contribution already paid. the delicit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting
the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services
received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-
payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment ora cash refund,

Delined benefit plans

Fhe employees™ gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan which is administered by a trust formed for
tHits parpose trough the group schemes of Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC). The present value
ol the obligation under such Gefiied benelit plans is determived based on actuarial valuation using the
projected unit eredit method, which recognises each period ol service as giving rise to additional unit of
cmiployee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.
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The obligation is measured at (he present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates
used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans, is based on the market
vields on government securitics as at the reporting date, having maturity periods approximating to the
terms of reiated obligations.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses. the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit lability and the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit lability), are recognised
immediately in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through other
comprehensive income (OCI) in (he period in which they occur, Remeasurements are not reclassified to
the Statement of Profit and Loss in subsequent periods.

In case of funded plans, the fair value of the planned assets is reduced from the gross obligation under
the defined benefit plans, to recognise the obligation on net basis.

When the benelits of the plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefits
that relates (o past service or the 2ain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in the Statement
of Profit and Loss. Net interest js calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit
liability or asset. The Company recognises gains/ losses on settlement of a defined plan when the
settlement occurs,

* Other long-term employee henefits

Fhe labilitics for carned leave are not expeeted Lo be settled wholly within 12 montis after the end of
the reporting period in which the cmployees render the related service. They are therefore measured as
the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees
up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit eredit method as determined by actuarial
valuation. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have
terms approximating the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience
adjustments and change in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The
obligations are presented as current liabilities in the Balance Sheet if the entity does not have an
unconditionai right to defer settlement for at least twelve months afier the reporting period, regardless of
when the actual settlement is expected to oceur.

* Termination benefits

Termination benefits are expensed at the earlier of when the Company can no longer withdraw the offer
ol those benefits and when the ( ‘ompany recognizes costs for a restructuring. I benefits are not expected
1o be settled wholly within {2 months of the reporting date, then they are discounted.

2.8 Employce Share-based Payments

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are measured at the fair value of the options at the grant
date.

The fair value of option at the grant date is expensed over the respective vesting period in which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied with a corresponding increase in equity as “Employee Stock
Options Account”, In case of forfeiture of unvested option, portion of amount already expensed is reversed.
In a situation where the vested option forfeited or expires unexercised, the related balance standing to the
credit of the “Employee Stock Options Account” are transferred to the “Retained Earnings”.
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When the options are exercised, the Company issues new equity shares of the Company of Rs. 1/- each
fully paid-up. The proceeds received and the related balance standing to credit of the Employee Stock
Options Account, are credited to share capital (nominal value) and Securities Premium Account.

See Note 48 — Employee Share-based Payments for further details.
2.9 Income taxes:

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss excepl to the extent that it relates to a business combination or items recognised directly in equity or
in other comprehensive income (OC] ).

« Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year
and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current
tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the
uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expeeted (6 be recavered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used 1o
compute the amount are those (hat are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the
country where the Company operates and generates taxable income. Current tax assets and liabilities are
offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set it off the recognised amounts and it is intended to
realise the asset and settie the liability on a net basis or simultancously.

* Deferred tax

Deferred tax s provided using the balance sheet method on temporary differences between the tax base
ol asscts and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

- Temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates, and Joint arrangements to the
extent that the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred wax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused
tax eredits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses (including unabsorbed depreciation) can be utilise:!,
exeepl:

- When the deferred tax assel relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recoenition of an assel or hability i a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction. alTects neither the accounting profit nor taxable prolit or loss.

Fhe carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent

that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the

deferred tax asset to be uiilised Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed atcach reporting date and
arerecognised to the extent that it fias become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred
tax assct to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to appiy in the year when
thegmSesisealised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
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substantively eaucied at the ceporting dale.
Delerred fax assets and deferced tay liabilities are offset if a legalty enforceable right exists to set off
sarrent B assels against current tax liabilities and ihe deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the saie taxzation authority.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss.
Delferred tax items are recognised in correlation to ihe underlying transaction either in OCI or directly
in equity.

2,10 Earnings per share (EPS):

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company
by the weighted average number of cquity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elemenis and stock split i equity shares issucd during the year and excluding treasury shares. The
weighted average number of cquity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is
adjusted for events, such as bonus shares and stock split, other than the conversion of potential equity
shares that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding. without a corresponding change in
FeSOLTCes

Diluted EPS adjust the figures used in the determination of basic IPS o consider.

¢ The after-income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential
cquity shaves, and

¢ The weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of ail dilutive potential equity shares.

2,11 Provision and contingent liabilities / assets:

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
ol'a past event, it is prabable that an outflow ofresources embadying economic benefits will be required
to settie the obligation and a reliuble estimate can be made ol the amount of the obligation. Provisions
are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required o settle ihe present obligation at the balance
sheetdate. The provisions are measured on an undiscounted basis.

Contingent liabilities are oblivations arising, o past evenis, the existence of which will be confirmed
only by the oceurrence or non-oceurrence of one or more unceitain future evenis not wholly within the
conrol of the Company.,

Contingent liability is disclosed in case of

- @ present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will
be required 1o settle the obligation,

- a possible obligation arising from past events where hie probadility of outflow of resources is nof

reimole,

Contigent assen is not recognised in the Standalone naticial statcinents. A centingent asset is disclosed,
where an inilow of cconomic benefits 1 probable,

Centassets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.
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2,12 Leases

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is. or contains, a lease. A contract
is. or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
oi'time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease lability at the lease commencement date. The
right- of-use asset is initially measured at cost. which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received,

Fhe right-of~use  asset s subsequently  depreciated using  the straight-line  method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the
lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of
property and equipment. In addition. the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses,
ilany. and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease lability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid ai the
commencement date. discounted using the interest rate imphicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its
meremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease tiability comprise the following:

- lixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments.

- variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate. init ially measured using the index or
rate as at the commencement date.

- amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

- ihe'exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease
payrents inan optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension
option, and penalties for carly termination of a lease unless the Company is reasonably certain not
to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured
when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a
change in the Company’s estimate of the amount expeceted to be payable under a residual value guarantee,
or il the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination
Oplio.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way. a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset or is recorded in profit or loss if’ the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero,

Leaschold land is amortised over the period of lease.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases

that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises the
DAFRENLs associated with these leases as an expense on a straicht-line basis over the lease term.
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213 Fair value measurement

cair value is the price that would be received 1o sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
i the presumption that the transaction to sell the assetor transfer the lability takes place cither:

- in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- I the absence of a principal market. in the most advantageous market for the asset or liabiliiy.

I'he principal or the most advantageous market must be aceessible by the Company. The fair value of an
asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the assct or liability. assuming that marker participants act in iicir cconomic best interest. A fair value
measurement of a non-financial asset considers a market participant’s ability to generate ¢conomic
henelits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable nputs.

¢ Level | - gquoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

* Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are observable for the asset or
Hability, cither dircetly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

* Level 3 - inputs for the assct or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs). '

When measuring the fair value of an asset or liability. the Company uses observable market data as far
a8 possible. I the inputs used to measure the fair value of an assel or a Hability fall into different levels
ol the fair value hierarchy. then the fair vatue measarement is categorised in its entirety in the same level
of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest Jevel input that is significant to the entire measurement.

For assets and labilities that are recognised in the Standalone financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have oceurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is signilicant (o the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporiing period.

rorthe purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes ofassets and liabilities based
oit the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the leve! of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.

2.14 Foreign currency transactions

Fransactions in foreign currencies are translated into the tespective functional currency of the Company at
the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities dencminated in forcign currencies are translated into the functional currency
al the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value
in-a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Forcien currency differences are generally
recognised in the Staiement of Profit and Loss.
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2.15 Financial instruments
2151 Financial assees
Initial recognition and measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
lability or equity instrument of another entity. All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value
plus except for irade receivables which are initially measured at transaction price, in the case of financial
assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measarement

For purposes of subsequent measurement. financial assets are classified in one of the three categories:
a) At amortised cost

b) At fair value throuen Other (€ ‘omprehensive Income CFVT( )CI)

e} At fiain vatuc through proficor loss CFVTPL)

() Financial ussets classified as measured at amortised cost
A financial asset shall be measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is 1o hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash Mows and

- the contraztual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
paymients oi principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Alter initial measurement. such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
cliective interest rate (‘EIR™) method, less impairment charge  Amortised cost is calculated by
considering any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs thal are an integral part of the EIR,
The EIR amortisation is included in finance expense/ (income) in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The
losses arising from impairmeni are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This category
generally applies to trade reccivables, security and other deposits receivable by the Company.,

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The ‘effective interest
rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments through the expected
fife ol the financial nstrument 1o

- tie gross carrying amouni of the financial asset; or
- the amortised cost of the financial liability.
(b) Financial assets classified ns measured at FVOCI

A Tinancial asset is measured at fair value through other cemprehensive income if it is held within a
business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
linancial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Further, the
Company makes such clection on an instrument-by-instrument basis, for its investments which are

clusstfiedas equity instruments. the subsequent changes in lair value are recognized in other

%
= (FRN. 1091620) &
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comprehensive income. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses and interest revenue which are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When the linancial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCH is reclassificd from cquity w profit or loss and recognised in other gains/ (losses).
miferest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate
method.

(¢} Financial assets classified as measured at FVTPL

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit
or loss. A gair or loss on a mutual fund investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through
profit or foss is recognised in profit or loss and presented net in the Statement of Profit and Loss within
other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises.

Financial asscts are not reclassificd subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Dividends are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss only when the right to receive payment is
established, and it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Company and that the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

De-rezoonition of financial asset

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractua! rights to the cash flows from the
ftaancial asset expire, or it transters the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantialty all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
and does not retain contiol of the financial asser.

I the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its Balance Sheet but
retains cither all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred
assels are not derecognised.

Lrapairment of linancial assets
The Company assesses impairment based on expected credit loss (‘ECL’) model on the following:

- Financial assets that are measured at amortised cost; and
- Financial assets measured at FVTOCI

Fhe company follows “simiplificd approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade
sengvga ey b e
receivables,

The applicaiion of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it iecogaises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right
from its initial recognition. For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets the Company
recognises 12 month expected credit losses for all originated or acquired financial assets if at the
reporting date, the credit risk has not increased significantly since its original recognition. However, if
creditrisk has increased significantly. lifetime ECL is used. ECLL impairment loss allowance (or reversal)
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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1132 Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Finenciad liabilities are classified, at initial recogaition, as Ginancial liabilities at fair value through profit
or toss, soais and borrowings, payables, or as dervatives designated as hedging instruments in an
elfeetive hedge, as appropriate.

Al financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and Lorrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable and incrementa! transaction cosi. The Company’s financial liabilities
include trade and other payabler. loans and borrowinegs and derivative financial instruments.

Amortised cost is caleulaed by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that we an integral part ol the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
Statement of Proitt and Loss,

Ahe Company s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings inciuding
bank overdrafts, financial guaraniee contracis. :

Financial Habitities at FVTPL,

Financial Habilities at FVTPL include {inancial liabilities held for trading and financial 'fabilitics
designated as such vpon initial recoenition. Financial liabilitics are classified as held for trading if they
are curred for the purpose ol repurchasing i the near term. This category also includes derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defited by tnd AS 169, '

Gains or fosses on Babilities el for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities designated as such upon initial récognition at the initial date of recognition if the
eriteria in Ind AS 109 are satistied. For liabiiities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses
altributable to changes in own credit risks are recognised in OCI. These gains/ losses are not subsequently
transferred to the Statenient of Profit and Loss. However. the Company may transfer the cuinulative gain
or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss,

{2} Finuneial Babilities at amortised cost

the Company generally classifies interest bearing borrowings as financial liabilities carried at amortised
cost. Afier initial recognition, these instruments are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective mterest rat¢ (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
when the Habilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part ol the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
Statement of Profit and Loss,

De-recognition of financial linhility
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only when. it is extinguished i.e., when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled
or expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms. or the terms ol an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
s treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilitics are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company enters into certain derivative contracts to hedge risks which are not designated as hedges.
The Company holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency and interest rate risk
exposures. Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for separately i’
the host contract is not a financial asset and certain criteria are met.

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are
measured at fair value, and changes therein are generally recognised in the Statement of Profit and LLoss.

Financial guarantee contracts:
I'inancial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require specified payments
to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a

payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee,

Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per
impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of subsidiaries are provided for no compensation,
the fair values are accounted for as contributions and recognised as fees receivable under “other financial
assets”™ or as a part of the cost of the investment. depending on the contractual terms.

2.16 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker.

The Managing Director of the Company has been identified as being the Chief operating decision maker
by the management of the Company.

2.17 Government Grants:
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Statement of Profit and Loss over the periods necessary to match them with the related costs which they
intend to compensate.

Export Incentives

Export incentives under various schemes notified by the government are recognised when no significant
uncertainties as to the amount of consideration that would be derived and that the Company will comply
with the conditions associated with the grant and ultimate collection exist.

2,18 Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of not more than three months. which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

2.19 Cash flow statement:

Cash Flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net Profit before tax is adjusted for the
cllects of transactions of a non-cash nature, such as deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and items ol income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows.
In the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as
defined above net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered as integral part of the Company’s
cash management.

2.20 Adoption of new accounting principle:

Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction (amendments to Ind AS 12
-Income Taxes). The amendments clarified that lease transactions give rise to equal and offsetting
temporary differences and financial statements should reflect the future tax impacts of these transactions
through recognizing deferred tax. The Company has adopted this amendment effective | April 2023.
The company previously accounted for deferred tax on leases on a net basis. Following the amendments,
the company has recognized a separate deferred tax asset in relation to its lease liabilities and a deferred
tax liability in relation to its right-to-use assets.

2.21 Recent Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended
March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards
applicable to the Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF CLEAN ORGANICS PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financiul statements of CLEAN ORGANICS PRIVATE LIMITED,
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of
Cash Flows ended on that date, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2024, the Loss and total
comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(“SA”s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statement and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other information and
presentation of its report (herein after called as “Board Report”) which comprises various information
required under section 134(3) of the Companies Act 2013 but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the Other Information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. '




In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the Other
Information and in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement in this Other Information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s and Board of Director’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in equity
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequ
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.




e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant  ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable.

(A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss (including
other comprehensive income), the standalone statement of changes in equity and the
standalone statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the books of account

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies {,
2014




€. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st
March, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31st March, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

a. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

b. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts

c. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

i. The Management has represented that ,to the best of its knowledge and belief as
disclosed in notes to accounts, no fund have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other source or kind of
funds) by the company to or in any other person or entities including foreign
entities ( Intermediaries) with the understandings , whether recorded in writings or
otherwise ,that the intermediary shall ,directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company ( “ultimate beneficiary”) or provide any guarantee security or the like to or
on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

ii. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in financial statements, no funds have been received by the company
from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

iii. Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances performed by us, nothing has come to our notice
that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii)
above contain any material misstatement

e. No Dividend Is declared and paid during the year by the company.




f. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility except that audit trail was not enabled at the
database level to log any direct changes for the accounting software used for
maintaining the books of account. For accounting software for which audit trail
feature is enabled, the audit trail facility has been operating throughout the year for
all relevant transactions recorded in the software and we did not come across any
instance of audit trail feature being tampered with during the course of our audit.

For M/s Sanjay S Rathi & Co;
Chartered Accountants
FRN - 109182W

=l

CA Sanjay S Rathi
Partner
M. No - 042436

UDIN: 24042436 BKPAI LT 4307

Place of Signature: Sangamner
Date: 14/05/2024




ANNEXURE A TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Annexure Referred to in our Independent auditors’ Report paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other
Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of CLEAN ORGANICS

PRIVATE LIMITED of even date

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and
the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

@

(i)

(i)

(iv)

v)

(v)

(vid)

(@)

(b)

(@)

The company does not have Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(i) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020
are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into Bill to Ship to transaction during the year. Due to such
kind of business operations the company does not have any physical inventory and hence
reporting under clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

During the year, the company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of
S crore rupees, in aggregate, from any bank or financial institution hence the reporting
under Clause No 3 (ii) (b) of the order is not applicable to the company

The company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Therefore,
Paragraph 3(iii) (a), (b), (c), (d), (¢) and (f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has no loans,
investments, guarantees or security where provisions of section 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are to be complied with. Therefore Paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is
not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
under the directives of the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76
or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed
thereunder, where applicable. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are
not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, the Central Government has not specified
maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of
Company’s products/ services. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are
not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company is regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’
state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of exmse, value
added tax, cess and any other statutory dues, as applicable and as amoungtsdegh

accrued in the books of account, with the appropriate authorities. Furthep




amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues in respect of
Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-
tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other
statutory dues that have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account
of any dispute.

(viiij  According to the information and explanation given to us, company has no transactions,
not recorded in the books of account have been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961);

(ix)

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company did not have any loans or
borrowings from any lender during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

(c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no
outstanding term loans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under clause
3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) The Company has not raised any short term loans and hence, reporting under clause
3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable,

(e) The Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to
meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Hence reporting
under clause 3(ix) (e) of the Order is not applicable

() The Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence reporting on clause
3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

(x)
(@) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause
3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible)
during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(xi)
(a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this




(xii)

(xciii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(@)

(b)

(xvii)

Company is not a Nidhi Company, accordingly provisions of the Clause 3(xii) of the Order
is not applicable to the company:

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not
undertaken any transactions with related parties as mentioned in Section 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013, accordingly the provisions of clause 3(xiii) of the Order are not
applicable to the company;

In our opinion, the company has no internal audit system commensurate with the size
and the nature of its business.

In our opinion during the year the company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with directors or persons connected with him and accordingly, the provisions
of clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the
Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the
Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting
under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and
the immediately preceding financial year also. The quantum of cash losses are given as
under :

Particulars FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23

Cash Losses Loss of Rs. 23,659/- Loss of Rs. 38,357/~

(xviii)

(xix)

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable;

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on
our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report indicating that company is incapable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the company as and when they fall due.




(xx)  The provisions of Section 135 towards corporate social responsibility are not applicable on
the company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable.

For M/s Sanjay S Rathi & Co;
Chartered Accountants

FRN - 109182W

CA Sanjay S Rathi
Partner
M. No - 042436

Place of Signature: Sangamner
Date: 14/05/2024




Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the standalone financial statements of
CLEAN ORGANICS PRIVATE LIMITED for the year ended 31 March 2024

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid standalone financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of CLEAN
ORGANICS PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit
of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at
31 March 2024, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operaf}




internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For M/s Sanjay S Rathi & Co;
Chartered Accountants
FRN - 109182W

2

CA Sanjay S Rathi
Partner
M. No - 042436

L]

%ﬂered 5
Place of Signature: Sangamner
Date: 14/05/2024




Clean Organics Private limited (CIN : U24304PN2017PTC169475)

Standalone Balance Sheet
(All amounts are in rupees thousand,unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS

Current assets
Financial assets
(i) Cash and cash equivalents

(ii) Bank balances other than (i) above
(1ii) Other current assets
Total current assets
Total asscts
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital
Other equity
Total equity
Liabilities
Current liabilities

Financial liabilities
(i) Trade payables

a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and

small enterprises
Total current liabilitics
Total liabilitics
Total equity and liabilities

Significant accounting policies

Note

2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached

For M/s Sanjay S Rathi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration no, 109182W

gl

CA Sanjay S Rathi
Partner
Membership No. 42436

Place : Pune
Date : 14th May,2024
ICAT UDIN :

As at As at
Mar 31,2024 March 31, 2023
16.97 32.08
712.37 -
4.28 -
733.62 32.08
733.62 32.08
900.00 200.00
(213.58) (189.92)
686.42 10.08
47.20 22.00
47.20 21.99
47.20 22.00
733.62 32.08

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Clean Organics Private Limited

(@’

Krishnakumar Boob
Director
DIN : 00410672

DIN: 02351154

Place : Pune Place : Pune
Date ; 14th May,2024 Date : 14th May,2024




Clean Organics Private limited (CIN : U24304PN2017PTC169475)

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss
(All amounts are in rupees thousand,unless otherwise stated)

Note

Income
Revenue from operations 8
Other income 9

Total income

Lxpenses
Purchases of Stock-in-trade
Other expenses 10

Total expenses
Profit / (Loss) before tax

Tax expense:
Current tax
Deferred tax

Profit / (Loss) for the year (A)

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

(i) Remeasurements of defined benefit liability / (asset)

(i1) Income tax relating to remeasurements of delined benefit liability / (asset)

(iii) Equity instruments designated through other comprehensive income

(iv) Income tax related to equity instruments designated through other comprehensive
meome

Other comprehensive income / (loss) Tor the year (B)
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year (A+DB)

Earnings per equity share

[nominal value of Rs. 10]

Basic 12
Diluted

Significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements
As per our report of even date attached

For M/s Sanjay S Rathi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration no. 109182W

“ZM

CA Sanjay S Rathi
Partner
Membership No. 42436

Place ; Pune
Date @ 14th May,2024
TCATUDIN

Year Ended
Mar 31, 2024

Year Ended
Mar 31, 2023

102.00 .
16.65 i
118.65 i
100.00
4231 38.35
142.31 38.35
(23.66) (38.35)
(23.66) (38.35)
(23.66) (38.35)
(0.53) (1.92)
(0.53) (1.92)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Clean Organics Private Limited

(300
Krishnakumar Boob

Director
DIN : 00410672

Place : Pune
Date : 14th May,2024

DIN : 02351154

Place : Pune
Date : 14th May,2024




Clean Organics Private limited (CIN : U24304PN2017PTC169475)

Standalone Statement of Cash Flows
(All amounts are in rupees thousand,unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit / (loss) before taxation
Non-cash adiustments to reconcile profit before 1ax to net cash flows:

Interest income

Operating profit before working capital changes
Movement in working capital:

Decrease in other current assets

Increase in trade payables

Cash generated from operations
Net income tax (paid)
Net ensh flow generated from operating activities (A)

B. Cash flow from investing activities

Bank deposits placed during the year
Interest received
Net eash flow (used in) investing activities (B)

C. Cash flow from financing activities
Lquity shares issued
Net eash flow (used in)/from financing activities (C)

Net (decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

Notes:-

Cash on hand
Balances with bank
- Current accounts

Significant accounting policies Note 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements
As per our report of even date attached

For M/s Sanjay S Rathi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration no. 109182W

M

Partner
Membership No. 42436

Date © 14th May,2024
ICAT UDIN :

Clean Organics Priva

"
Krishnakumar Boob

Director
DIN : 00410672

Place : Pune
Date :14th May,2024

As at As at
Mar 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(23.66) (38.35)
(16.65)
(40.31) (38.35)
(4.28)
25.20 (5.90)
(19.39) (44.25)
(19.39) (44.25)
(712.37)
16.65
(695.72) -
700.00 -
700.00 -
(15.11) (44.25)
32.08 76.34
16.97 32.08
16.97 32.08
16.97 32.08
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of .

mited

NG

Siddlzar

Director
DIN : 02351154

Place : Pune
Date : 14th May,2024




Clean Organics Private limited (CIN : U24304PN2017PTC169475)
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity
(All amounts are in rupees thousand,unless otherwise stated)

(#) Equity share capital

Asat Mar 31,2024

As at March 31,2023

Number of shares Number of shares Number of shares Number of shares
Balanee at the beginning of the reporting year 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000
Changes in equily share capital due to prior period errors - - - -
Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting year 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000
Changes in equity share capital during the year 70,000 70,000 - -
Balance at the end of the reporting period/year 90,000 90,000 20,000 20,000

(b} Oiher equity

Reserves and surplus
Particulars Deficit of profit and loss
account
Balance at 1 April 2022 (151.56)
Profit!(Loss) for the year (38.35)
Balance at 31 March 2023 (189.91)
Bulunce at 1 April 2023 (189.91)
Profit(Loss) for the year (23.66)
Balunce at 31 Mar 2024 (213.57)
Significant accounting policies Note 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements
As per our report of even date attached

lor Mis Sa

Firm registration no, 109182W
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CA Sanjay S Rathi
Partner
Membership Mo, 42436

Director

Place : Pune Place : Pune
Date ¢ 14th May,2024
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For and on behall of the Board of Directors of -
Chartered Accountants Clean Organics Private Limited
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Krishnakumar Boob

Siddhartha Sikchi
Director
DIN : 0235

Place : Pune
Date @ 14th May,2024




Clean Organies Private limited (CIN : U24304PN2017PTC169475)
Notes to Standalone Financial Stat 1
{All amounts are m rupees thousand, unless otherwise stated)

3 Cash and eash equivalents

Balance with banks
In current accounts
On deposit accounts (with original maturity of 3 months or less)

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Fixed Deposit with bank

4 Other current assets

Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposit

As at As at
Mar 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023
16.97 3208
16.97 32.08
712.37
712,37 =
As at Asat
Mar 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

4.28

4.28




Clean Organics Private limited (CIN : U24304PN2017PTCL69475)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements
(Al amounts are in rupees thousand, unless otherwise stated)

]

Equity share capital

Particulars As at Asat
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Authorised :

1,00,000 (31 March 2021 : 1,00,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each. 1,000 1,000

TOTAL 1,000 1,000

Issued and subscribed and paid up :

90,000 (31 March 2021 : 20,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 cach. 900 200

TOTAL 900 200

Reconeilintion of number of shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year :

Equity share : As at Agat
March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 20,000 20,000

Equity shares issued during the year in consideration for cash 70,000 =

Outstanding at the end of the year 90,000 20,000

Terms / Rights attached to each classes of shares
Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the Company’s residual
assels, The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. The voting rights of an equity shareholder are in proportion to its
share of the paid-up equity capital of the Company.

On winding up of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the Company, remaining after distribution of
all preferential amounts in proportion 1o the number of equity shares held.

Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company is set out below:

Equity shares of Rs 10 each Tully paid As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Number of shares Ya Number of shares Yo
Clean Science and Technology Limited (Erstwhile known as ‘Clean 90,000 100% 20,000 100%
iScience and Technology Private Limited")
As at As at

March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023

Other equity

Surplus of profit and loss account

Balanee as at the beginning of the year (189.92) (151.56)
Add : Profit / (Loss) for the year {23.66) (38.35)
Balanee as at the end of the year (213.58) (189.92)

(213.58) (189.92)




Clean Organics Private limited (CIN : U24304PN2017PTC169475)

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements

(ANl amounts are in rupees thousand,unless otherwise stated)

7 Trade payables

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer note 12)
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

Trade Payable Ageing Schedule
Being

Asat 31 Mareh 2024

As at As at
Mar 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
47.20 22.00
47.20 22.00

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of

(Amount in Rs.)

Current but payment
Less tha
e T:WI:“ 1-2 years | 2-3 years | More than 3 years Total
Total outstanding for MSME due 29.50 17.70 - - - 47,20

Total oul

ling for other than MSME due

As at 31 March 2023

Particulars

Current but
not due

Outstanding for following periods

from the due date of

(Amount in Rs.)

Less than
1 year

1-2 years

2-3 vears

More than 3 years

Total

ling for MSME due

:J'_f.mﬂ [

22.00

22.00

Total outst

ling for other than MSME due




Clean Organics Private limited (CIN : U24304PN2017PTC169475)
Motes to Standalone Financial Statements
(All amounts are in rupees thousand,unless otherwise stated)

Year Ended Year Ended
8 . s s b1 c
Revenue from operations Mar 31,2024 Mar 31,2023
Sale of products 102.00 -
102,00 -
9 Other Income
Mar 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2023
Interest income 16.65 =
16.65
10 Other expenses
Mar 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2023
Audit fees 17.70 17.70
Bank charges - 0.00
Consultancy fees 24.61 20.65
42.31 38.35

Payment to auditors

As auditor
Statutory audit fees 17.70 17.70

17.70 17.70




Clean Organics Private limited (CIN : U24304PN2017PTC169475)
Nates to the Standalone Fi ial 8 s {continued)

(Al amounts are in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

11 Ratio Analysis and its element

Ratio Numerator Demoninator Asal Asat % Change Remarks
Mawceh 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Current Ravo Current Assels Current Liabulities 15.54 .46 965% | Due to increase in Fixed
Deposit
Debt-Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholders Equity - - -
Lrebt Service Coverage Ratio Earnings for debt service = Net profit after | Debt service = Interest & Lease Payments + - -
taxes + Non-cash operating cxpenses Principal Repayments
Returm on Eguiy Ratio (%) Net Profits after taxes — Preference Dividend | Average Shareholder's Equity 6.79% -131.09% -95%| Due to increase in paid up
capital
Inventory Tumover Ratio Cost of goods sold Average Inventory - = -
Trade Receivable Tumover Ratio [ Net credit sales = Gross credit sales - sales | Average Trade Receivable ® - -
retun
Trade Payable Tumover Ratio Net credit purchases = Gross credit Average Trade Payables - - -
purchases - purchase returm
MNet Capital Tumover Ratio Net sales = Total sales - sales retum Working capital = Current assets — Current 05 - -
liabilities Due to Increase in sales
Net Profit Ratio (%) Met Profit Afier Tax Met sales = Total sales - sales return (23.20) - 0% | Due to increase in losses in
current &
Return on Capital Employed (%) Earnings before interest, taxes and dividend | Capital Employed = Tangible Net Worth + Total -3% -380% -99% | Due to increase in paid up
income Debt + Deferred Tax Liability capital
Retsn on Investment (% Interest Investiment - - =




Clean Organics Private limited (CIN : UZ4304PN2017PTC169475)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements
(All amounts are in rupees thousand,unless otherwise stated)

12 Earnings per share

Year Ended

Year Ended

31-03-2024 31-03-2023
Particulars
Profits attributable to equity sharcholders
Profit for the year (23.66) (38.35)
Basic earnings per share
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year 56,148.00 20,000.00
Basic EPS (Rs.) (0.42) (1.92)
Diluted earnings per share
Profit for the year (23.66) (38.35)
Weighted average number ol equity shares outstanding during the 56,148.00 20,000.00
year for diluted EPS
Diluted EPS (Rs.) (0.42) (1.92)
13 Disclosures required under Secetion 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
Particulars Asat frat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the year
I'rade payables
Capital creditors
Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplicr as at the end of the year
Trade payables
Capital creditors
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act 2006
The amount of payment made to micro and small supplier beyond the appointed day during each
accounting year.
The amount of interest due and payable for period ol delay in making payment (which have been

MSMED Act 2006.

The amount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year.

The amount ol further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such
date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006,

paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under

14 Related party disclosures
() List of related parties and description of relationship:

Holding company
Clean Science and Technology Limited

Fellow subsidiarvies

I. Clean Science Private Limited
2. Clean Organies Private Limited
3. Clean Fino-Chem Limited

IKey Management Personnel (KMDP)
I Mr. Ashok Boob

2. Mr. Siddhartha Sikchi

3. Mr. Krishnakumar Boob

(b) Transactions during the year: Nil

(¢) Balances outstanding at the end of the year: Nil




Clean Organies Private limited (CIN : U24304PN2017PTCL69475)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements

(Al amounts are in rupees thousand,unless otherwise stated)

15 Financial instruments

I15.1 Financial instruments by eategory

The carrying value of financial instruments by categories are as follows :

Asat
31 March 2024

As at

31 March 2023

Particulars

“lised cost

Total earrying

Amaortised cost

Total carrying value

value
Catepory Level 2 Level 2
Assels
Cash and cash equivalents 16.97 16.97 32.08 32.08
Total assets 16.97 16.97 32.08 32.08

Liabilitics
Trade payables

Total linbilities

15.2 Fair value hierarchy

Fair value of Mnancial assets and finaneial linbilities measured at amortised cost :

The management believes that the fair values of current financial assets (e.g. cash and cash equivalents) and current financial liabilities (e.g. trade payables) approximate

their carrying amounts larpely due to the short term nature,

15.3 Financial risk management

The Company's activities exposes it to eredil nisis and liquidity risks. The Company’s management have overall resy
Company’s risk management lramework. The Company’s risks are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the company’s activities.

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising rom financial instruments :

HA

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial losses to the Company if a customer or counterparty to financial instruments fails to discharge its contractual obligations. It arises
primarily from the Company's receivables from customers. To manage this, the Company periodically assesses the key accounts receivable balances. As per Ind-AS
109 . Financial Instruments, the Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain.

i, The company has not made any provision on expected credit loss on trade receivables, based on the management estimates.
i, Credit risk on cash and cash cquivalents is limited as the Company generally invests in deposits with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings

assigned by domestic credil rting agencies,

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial asset, The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet ils
liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unaceeptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation

The Company has a view of maimaining hguidity and to take minimum possible risk while making investments. The Company monitors its cash and bank balances

periodically in view of its short term obligations associated with its financial liabilities

The liguidity pos

1o at each reporting date is given below:

Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Total current assels (A) 734 32
Total currem liabilities (13) 47 22
Working eapitl (A-B) 686 10

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of

financial liabilities as on 31 March 2024,

Particulars

Less than
one year

More than
one year

Total

Trade payvables

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities a

s on 31 March 2023,

Particulars

Less t
one year

More than
one year

Total

ibility for the

ishment and oversight of the



Clean Orvganies Private limited (CIN @ U24304PN201TPTCLO9475)

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements

(Al amounts are in rupees thousand,unless otherwise stated)

16 Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The
primary objective of the Company's capital management is 1o ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise
shareholder value

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments 1o it in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

Mo changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the period ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

The Company monitors capital using debt-equity ratio, which is net debt divided by total equity. These ratios are illustrated below:

Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Total liabilities 47 22
Less cash and cash equivalents and bank (rn (32)
balanees

Netdebt 30 (10)
Total equity 686 10
Debt-gquity ratio 0,04 (1.00)

17 Other Statutory Information

a)  The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property
b} The Compuny do not have any transactions with companies struck off.

¢} The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yel 1o be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

d) - The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Curreney during the financial year.

eb The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the
Intermediary shall:

1) direetly or indireetly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
it} provide any puarantee, security or the like 1o or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

1 The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing
or otherwise) that the Cormpany shall:

i) direcdy or indizecily lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behall of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneliciaries) or

1) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behall of the Ultimate Beneliciaries,
1) The Company have no such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961,

As per our teport of even date attached

Feor MY/s Sunjay S Rathi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration ro. 109182W

M

CA Sanjuy S Rathi
Partner

Membership No., 42436
Date © 14th May,2024
ICAL UDIN

Fror and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Clean Organies Private Limited

(P
Krishnakumar Boob
Director Director
DIN : 00410672 DIN : 02
Place : Pune Place : Pune
Date : 14th May,2024 Date : 14th May,2024

154




Clean Organics Private Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in rupees thousand, unless otherwise stated)

1. Corporate Information
Clean Organics Private Limited is a private company domiciled and headquartered in India. The company is
a subsidiary of Clean Science and Technology Limited, which is a Chemical organisation. The Company is
engaged in the business of buying and selling of organic and inorganic chemicals.
2. Material Accounting Policies
2.1 Basis of preparation and presentation
a) Statement of Compliance
The Standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules.
2015 (as amended from time to time) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
presentation requirements of Division 1 of Schedule I11 to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant

Schedule ). as applicable to the Company.

The Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 were approved for issue by the
Company’s Board of Directors on May 14, 2024.

b Basis of measurement

The Standalone financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the
following assets and liabilitics which have been measured at fair value or revalued amount:

i) Certain financial assets and labilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding
linancial instruments):

i) Asset held for sale measured at lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell:

iii) Net defined benefit (asset) / liability that are measured at fair value of plan assets less present

value of defined benefit obligations.

The accounting policies adopted for preparation and presentation of Standalone financial statements have
been consistent with the previous year.

The Standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees () and all values are rounded to the
nearest millions. upto two places ol decimal, unless otherwise stated.

2.2 Current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities

Al assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal
eperating eyele and other criteria set out in the Schedule 111 (Division 1) to the Companies Act, 2013.
Jased on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation i cash and cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months.

2.2 Use of judgements estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Standalene financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the
management to make judgments. estimates and assumptions that aftect the reported amounts of revenue,
expenses. current assets, non-current assets, current liabilities. non-current liabilities. and disclosure of
¢_contingent liabilities at the end of cach reporting period. Such estimates are on a reasonable and

= %’¢




Clean Organics Private Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in rupees thousand. unless otherwise stated)

prudent basis considering all available information, however, due to uncertainties about these judgments,
estimates and assumptions, actual results could differ from estimates. Information about each of these
estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes.

Judgements

information about judgements rade in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects
on the amounts recognised in the Standalone [inancial statements is included in the following notes:

¢ Note 40 - classification of lnancial assets: assessment of business model within which the assets are
held and assessment of whether the contractual terms of the financial asset are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Assumptions and estimation uncertaintics

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a

material adjustment is included in the following notes:

»  Note 9 — Valuation of inventories: Allocation of overheads,

o Note 33 — Recognition of tax expense including deferred tax.

®  Note 35 —~ Recognition of contingencies: key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of
outflow of resources. However. there are no major contingent liabilities as at current financial year
end,

« Note 41— Impairment of trade receivables: Computation of weighied average loss rate.

¢ Note 4l - Defined benelit obligation: key actuarial assumptions.

2.3 Revenue recognition:

Sales are recognised when control of the products has been transferred to the customer, being when the
products wre delivered to the customer or its authorised representative and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could afTect the customer’s aceeptance of the products. Revenue is measured based on the
transacuon price excluding taxes, which is the consideration, net of returns, trade discounts, and volume

rebates, ifany.

I'he sales made by the Company may include transport arrangements from third parties. In such cases,
revenue for the supply of such third-party transport arrangements are recorded at gross or net basis
depending on whether the Company is acting as the principal or as an agent of the customer. The Company
recognises revenue for the gross amount of consideration when it is acting as a principal and at net amount
ol consideration when it is acting as an agent.

A reccivable is recognised when the goods are delivered as this is the point in time that the consideration
is unconditional because only the passage of time is required before the payment is due as per agreed

terms and conditions with the buyers.

Revenae irom sale of solar elecinieity power is recognised on a point in time basis when solar electrical
porver is transmitted to Alternating Current Distribution Board (ACDBR).

2.4 inventories




Clean Organics Private Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounts are in rupees thousand. unless otherwise stated)

Inventories are valued at cost or net realisable value whichever is lower after providing for cost of
obsolescence. Cost is determined on a First-in-lirst-out formula.

Raw materials are valued at cost of purchase net of duties (credit availed w.r.t taxes and duties) and
includes all expenses incurred in bringing the materials to location of use. However, materials and other
items held for use in the production of inventories are not writien down below cost if the finished
products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost.

Work-in-process (WIP) and finished goods include conversion costs in addition to the landed cost of raw
materials. I'inished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. The net realizable value
of the finished goods is determined with reference to the selling prices of related finished goods.

WIP includes certain inventories used in the production process which has life of more than one year.
These inventories are amortised over its useful life and included as part of cost of production.

Cost ol finished goods and work-in-progress comprises cost of raw material and appropriate fixed
production overheads which are allocated on the basis of normal capacity of production facilities and
variable production overheads on the basis of actual production of material and after deduction of the
realisable value of the by-product.

MNet realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Obsolete and slow-moving inventories are
identified and wherever necessary. such inventories are written off/provided during the year.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment
* Recognition and measurement

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognised as an asset if, and only if it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably.

Property. plant and equipments are carried at cost which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Items of property, plant and equipment are
measured at cost ol acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation and / or accumulated
impairment losses. if'any. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price. including import duties and other non-refundable taxcs or levies and any directly attributable cost
of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and
removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. Any trade discounts and rebates are
deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the construction of a
qualifying assct are capitalised as part of the cost. The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant
and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to
bringing the item to working condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and
removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. The Company identifies and determines
cost ol cach component/ part of the asset separately, if the component/ part has a cost which is significant
to the total cost of the asset and has useful life that is materially different from that of the remaining asset.
These components are depreciated separately over their useful lives: the remaining components are
depreciated over the life of the principal asset.

Property, plant and equipment under construction are disclosed as capital work-in-progress.

* Subsequent costs




Clean Organics Private Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2024
(Al amounts are in rupees thousand, unless otherwise stated)

The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying
amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow
to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.

* Disposal

Anitem of property. plant and equipment is derccognised upon disposal or when no future benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and
cquipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of
property. plant and equipment. and are recognised net within other income/ expenses in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

* Depreciation method and estimated useful lives

Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on the straight-line method on pro-rata basis, over the useful
lives of assets as prescribed in Schedule - II of the Companies Act, 2013 which is as follows:

Type of asset Useful life
(No. of years)
IFactory Building 30 years
Non-Factory Buildings 60 years
Plant and Machinery 5-20 years
Office Equipment 5 years
Vehicles 8-10 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted il appropriate.

mpairments ol non-financial assets:

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset or cash
generating unit (CGU) may be impaired. Indefinite life intangibles are subject to a review for impairment
annually or more frequently iff events or circumstances indicate that it is necessary. If any such indication
exists. the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. The recoverable amount is the higher
ol an assel’s or CGU’s fair value less costs of disposal or its value in use. Where the carrying amount of
an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to
its receverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre- tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments ol the time value of money and the risks
specific 1o the asset. In determining fair value less costs ol disposal, recent market transactions are

considered.

Ancimpairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount ol an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount. fmipairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

[ at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer
exists, an impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed
aing amount that would have been determined. net of depreciation or amortisation, if no




Clean Organices Private Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounts are in rupees thousand. unless otherwise stated)

impairment loss had heen recognised.

2.6 Other intangible assets:

+ Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets are recognised when the asset is identifiable, is within the control of the Company, it is
probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Company and
cost of the asset can be reliably measured,

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Intangible assets acquired
by the Company that have finite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets with indelinite uselul lives are not amortised, but are
tested for impairment annually. cither individually or at the cash-generating unit level.

Expenditure on rescarch activities is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.
Development expenditure is capitalised only if the expenditure can be measured reliably, the product or
process 15 technically and commercially feasible, future cconomic benefits are probable, and the
Company intends to complete development and to use or sell the assel.

intangible assets which comprise of the development expenditure incurred on new product and
cxpenditure incurred on acquisition of user licenses for computer soltware are recorded at their
acquisition price.

© Subsequent measirement

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in
the specific asset to which it relates.

« Amorlisation
The uselnd lives ol intangible assets are assessed based on management estimates.

Intangible assets i.c.. computer software is amortized on a straight-line basis over the period of expected
future benetits commencing from the date the asset is available for its use.

The management has estimated the useful life for software & licenses as following,

| Asset Class . Years
i Soltware & licenses 5

Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of cach financial year and
adjusted il appropriate.

Intangible assets are assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired.

= Disposal
Giatns or fosses arising trom dececognition of an intangible assel are measured as the difference between

the net disposal proceeds and the carrving aimount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of
Prodit and Loss when the asset is derecounized.
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Notes o the Standalone Financial Statements for the year eaded March 31, 2024
(Al amounts are in rupees thousand. unless otherwise stated)

2.7 Empleyee henelits:
¢ Short-term employee benelits

e distinetion between short terim and long-term employee benefits is based on expected timing of
settlement rather than the employee’s entitlement benefits. Emplovee benefits payable wholly within
twelve months of rendering (he service are classified as short-term employee benefits. Such benefits
irclude seluries, wages. bonus. short term compensated absences, awards, ex-gratia, performance pay etc.
and are recognised in the period in which the employee renders the related service. The undiscounted
amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by
employeces is recognized during the year. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid
e.g. under short-term cash bonus. if the Company has a present leeal or constructive obligation to pay
this amouint as a result of past service provided by the emplovee. and the amount of obligation can be
estimaicd reliably,

The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absences. The employees can carry forward
a portion of the unutilized accumulating compensated absences and utilize it in future periods or receive
cash at retirement or termination of employment. The Company records an obligation for compensated
absences in the period in which the emplovee renders the services that increases this entitlement.
Accumulated compensatéd absences. which are expected to be availed or encashed within 12 months
irom the end of the year are treated as short term employee benelits. The obligation towards the same is
measured gt the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount expected
to be paid as a result of the unused entitlement as at the yvear end.

« Post-cmployment benefits
Delined enntribution plans

Contributions to the providem fund and superannuation schemes which is defined contribution scheme,
are recognised as an employee benelit expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which
the contribetion is due. Contributions are made in accordance with the rules of the statute and are
recognised as expenses when employees render service entitling them to the contributions. The Company
has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund.

I7 the contribution payable to the scheme for service received belore the balance sheet date exceeds the
contribution already paid, the tlcf‘icil payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability alter f'lt’ducling
the contribution already paid. 1 the contribution alu,dd) paid exceeds the contribution due for services
received before the balance sheet date. then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-
payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Delined benefit plans

I'he emplovees™ gratuity scheme is o defined benefit plan which is administered by a trust formed for
this purpose through the group schemes of Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC). The present value
ol the obligation under such defined benefit plans is determined based on actuarial valuation using the
projected unit eredit method, which recognises each period of service as giving rise te additional unit of
cimployee benelit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

The nh!ludlmn is measured at the present value ol the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates
glermining the present value 01 the obligation under defined benefit plans, is based on the market
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vields on government securities as at the reporting date, having maturity periods approximating to the
terms ol related obligations.

Remceasurements, comprising ol actuariai gains and losses. the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included i net imerest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised
mmediately in the Balance Sheet with a corresporiding debit or credit to retained earnings through other
comprehensive income (OCHY in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to
the Statement of Profit and Loss in subsequent periods.

In case of funded plans. the fair value of the planned assets is reduced from the gross obligation under
the defined benefit plans, to recognise the obligation on net basis.

When the benelits of the plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefits
that relates to past service or the zain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in the Statement
of Profit and Loss. Net interest is caleulated by applying the discount rate o the net defined benefit
liability ar asset. The Company recognises gains/ losses on settlement of a defined plan when the
seltlement oceurs.

¢ Otherjong-term employee benefits

The liabilities for carned leave are not expeeted to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of
the repotting period in which the employvees render the related service. They are therefore measured as
the present value of expected future payments to be made in respeet of services provided by employees
up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method as determined by actuarial
valuation. The benefits are discounted using the market vields at the end of the reporting period that have
terms approaimating the terms ol the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience
adjustnients and change in actoarial assumptions are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The
obligations are presented as curvent liabilities in the Balance Sheet if the entity does not have an
unconditional right to deter settlement for at least twelve months alter the reporting period, regardless of
wlhien the actual seitlement is expected to oceur.

« Termination benefits

Fenmination benelits are expeiised al the earlier of when the Company can o longer withdraw the offer
ol those benelits and when the Company recognizes costs for a restructuring. If benefits are not expected
te be settled wholly within 12 months ol the reporting date, then they are discounted.

2.8 Employce Share-based Payments

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are measured at the fair value of the options at the grant

date.

The fair value of option at the grant date is expensed over the respective vesting period in which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied with a corresponding increase in equity as “Employee Stock
Options Account”. In case of forfeiture of unvested option, portion ol amount already expensed is reversed.
In a situation where the vested option forfeited or expires unexercised, the related balance standing to the
credit of the “Employee Stock Options Account™ are transferred to the “Retained Earnings”.

When the options are exercised. the Company issues new equity shares of the Company of Rs. 1/- each
. Qid-up. The proceeds received and the related balance standing to credit of the Employee Stock
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Options Account, are credited to share capital (nominal value) and Securities Premium Account.
See Note 48 — Employee Share-based Payments for further details.
2.9 income taxes:

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or items recognised directly in equity or
in other comprehensive income (OCT),

o Clurrent tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable incomie or loss for the year
and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current
tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the
uncertainty. il any. related to income taxes. Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected (e be recovered from or paid to the taxation authoritics. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively cnacted, at the reporting date in the
coantry where the Company operates and gencerales laxable income. Current tax assets and liabilities are
effsetonly i there is a legally enlorceable right to set it off the recognised amounts and it is intended to
realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultancously.

+ Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet method on temporary differences between the iax basc
ofassets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for {inancial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

- Femporary ditferences related (o investments in subsidiaries, associates, and joint arrangements to the
extent that the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that they will net reverse in the foreseeable future.

Delerred tax assets are recognised Tor all deductible temporary differences. the carry forward of unused
tax eredits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax asseis are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses (including unabsorbed depreciation) can be utilised,
excepl:

- When the delerred tax asset relating o the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recogitition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and. at the time of
the transaction, alfects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

he carrying amount of deferred 1ax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred

tax assel (o be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and labilitics are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised or the Liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current lax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable eatity
and the sante taxation authority.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss.
Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly
nequity,

210 Barniugs per share (EP%):

Basic EPS is caleulated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements and stock split in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares. The
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is
adjusted for events. such as bonus shares and stock split, other than the conversion of potential equity
shares that have changed the number ol equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in
ICSOUTTES.

Diluted EPS adjust the figures used in the determination of basic EPS to consider.

¢ Iheaifer-income tax effect ol interest and other linancing costs associated with dilutive potential

ety shares. and

¢ The weighted average number of additiona! equity shares that would have been outsianding
assuming the conversion ol all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.1 Provision and contingent labilities / assets:

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of o past event, it is probable that an outllow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions
are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance
sheet date. The provisions are measured on an undiscounted basis.

Contingent liabilitics are obligations arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-oceurrence of one or more uncertain iuture events not wholly within the
control of the Coimpany.

Contingent hability is disclosed in case of

- present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will
he required to settle the obligation.

- ¢ possible obligation arising from past events where the probability of outfTow of resources is not
remote.

Contingent asset is not recognised in the Standalone financial statements. A contingent asset is disclosed,
where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Provisions. contingent liabilitics and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

2.12 Leases
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Al inception of a contract. the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract
is. or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration,

Company as a lessee

The Company recognises a vight-of-use asset and a lease fiability at the lease commencement date. The
right- of-use asset is initially measured at cost, whicl comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date. plus any initial direct costs
ncurred and an estimate of costs 1o dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on whiich it is located. less any lease incentives received.

Phe rignt-of=use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
comencement date to the carlier of' the end of the usefui life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the
feaze ferm The estimated uselul lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of
property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses,
il aay, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

Phe Tease Hability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its
incremiental bemowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease pavinents included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
- fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments.
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or
rate as i the commencement date.
amounis expected to be pavable under a residual value guarantee: and
the exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease
“payments inan optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension
option, and penalties for carly termination of a lease unless the Company is reasonably certain not
Io termiinate carly,

The dease Hability is measured at amortised cost using the elfective interest method. It is remeasured
when there is a change in future fease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a
chanee i the Company s estimate ol the amsount expected Lo be payable under a residual value guarantee,
or irtie Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination
aption.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount ol the right-of-use asset or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero,

Leasehold nd is amortised over the period of lease.
Sher-teri leases and leases ol low-value assets
fhe Company has elected not o recognise right-of-use assets and lease labilities for short-term leases

that nave a fease wem ol 12 months or fess and leases of lew-value assets. The Company recognises the

icise paymenis asseeiated with these feases as an expense on a stratgnt-line basis over the lease term,

Fare value measurement
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Fair vaiue is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transler a liability in an orderlv
transtection between market participants at the nmeasurement date. The fair value measurement is based
en b presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfler the liability takes place either:

= I thie principal market For the aszet o liability,
- In the absence of a principal market, in the mos! .ul\-'an!_'agmnm market for the asset or liability.

Fhe principat or the most advantazeous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an
asset or - diabiiity is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or iiability, assuming that market participants act in their cconomic best interest. A fair value
meastretent ol a non-linancial asset considers a market participan’s ability to generate economic
benelits by ising the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another,

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

< Levei - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

2 - inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | thai arc observable for the asset or
Hability. either direetly (i.c. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived [rom prices).

« Level 3= inpuis for the ¢ ility that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
NS,

When measaring the fair value o an asset or a liability. the Company uses observabie market data as far
as pussibie. 1 the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a lability fall inte different levels
elthe fuirvalee hicrarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level
of the fair vatue hicrarchy as the lowest fevel input that is significant to the entire measurement,

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Standalone financial statements on a recurring basis.
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant o the fair value measurement as z
whole) at the end of cach reporting period.

For the paipose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities based

on the pature. characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained ubove.

2.14 Foreion currencey transactions

Fransactions i foreign correncies are translated into the respective functional currency of the Company at
tne exchange rates @ the dates of the transactions.

Monetary wssets and labilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency
at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value
ina foreiga currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured based on historical cost in a forcign currency are
transiated &t the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Forcign currency differences are generally
recoenised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.15 Kinancial instruments
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215 Finaneial assets
tnitial recognition and measurement

A Tinancial instrament is any contract that gives rise o a financial asset of one entity and a financial
Hability or equity instrument of another entity. All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value
plus except for trade reccivables which are initially measured ai transaction price, in the case of financial
assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss. transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition vl the fancial assci.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in one of the three categories:
a) Atamortised cost

2) AL fair value throueh Other Comprehensive Income CEVTOCT)

<) A Fair value through profit or loss CFVTPLY)

(1) Financial assets classified as measured at amortised cosy
A Tinancial asset shall be measuied at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

the financiat asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in
order to eolicel contractual cash Nows and

the contractual terms o the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement. such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
cffective interest rate (CEIRY) miethod. less impairment charge. Amortised cost is caleulated by
considering any discount or prentium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integrai part of the EIR.
The EHR mmortisation is included in finance expense/ (income) in the Statenient of Profit and Loss. The
losses arising from impairmeni are recogmsed in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This category
wreily applies to trade receivables, security and other deposits receivable by the Company.

del

lnteresi income or expense is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The “effective interest
rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments through the expected
life of the financial instrument 1o;

- the gross carrving amount of the financial asset; or
- the amortised cost of the financial liability.
(1) Finoecinl assets clussified uy measured at FVOLT

A Prancial asset s mcasured al fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a
business model whose objective is achicved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets and the contiactual terms ol the financial asset give rise on specitied dates to cash flows
that a solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Further, the
Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis, for its investments which are
classified "as cquity instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in other
comprehiensive mcome. Movemenis in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the
il 3 are recognised in other
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comprehanaive meome. When the financial asset s derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCJ is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/ (losses).
Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate
meihaod,

(e) Financial assets elassified as measured at FVTPL

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCT are measured at fair value through profit
or loss. A gain or loss on a mutual fund investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through
profitor loss is recognised in prolit or loss and presented net in the Statement of Profit and Loss within
other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing linancial assets.

Dividends arc recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss only when the right to receive payment is
established. and it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will fiow to the
Company and that the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

De-recognition of financial asset

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaciion in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transterred or in
which the Company neither translers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ewnership
and does not retain control of the financial asset.

Hothe Company enters into transactions whereby it translers assets recognised on its Balance Sheet but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred
assels are not derecognised.

mpairment of financial assets
The Company assesses impairment based on expected credit loss (‘ECL’) model on the following:

- Financial assets that are measured at amortised cost; and
- Financial assets measured at I'VTOCI

The Company [ollows “simplified approach® for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade
receivables.

T he appiication of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it cecognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right
ron B indtial recognition. For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets the Company
recegiisies 12 month expected credit losses for all originated or acquired financial assets if at the
reporting date, the eredit risk has not increased significantly since its original recognition. However, if
creditrisk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. LCL impairment loss allowance (or reversal)
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.15.2  Fianaal liabilities
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Laitial vecognition and measurement

Financial labilities are classibied. at initial recognition. as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss, doans aad borrowings. pavables. or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
eltective hedge. as appropriate,

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and. in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable and incremental vansaction cost. The Company’s financial liabilities
include trade and othier payables, foans and borowings and derivative linancial instruments.

Amortised cost s caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR, The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
Stetenent of Prolit and Loss.

e Company’s linancial liabilitics include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including
bank overdralts, linancial guarantes contracts,

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Pinancial labilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
desigrated as such upon initial recognition, Financial liabilitics are classified as held for trading if they
are incurred for the purpose ol repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative
finanzial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as delined by Ind A% 109,

Gains or losses on Habilities held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities designated as such upon initial recognition at the initial date of recognition if the
criteria in Ind AS 109 arc datisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses
attributable (o changes in ovwn credit risks are recognised in OCI, These gains/ losses are not subsequently
transtferred to the Statement of Prolit and Loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain
or loss within equity, All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

(a) Financial labilities at amortised cost

The Company generally ciassifies interest bearing borrowings as financial liabilities carried at amortised
cost. After initial recognition. these instruments are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
elfective interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and iosses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
when the Habilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Ainoriisea cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount or preimium on acquisition and fees or

costs that are an integral part ol the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
statement of Profit and 1.oss.

De-recoguition ol finavcial Lability

A Tinancial lability (or a part of a financial lability) is derecognised from the Balance Sheet when, and
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When oa eadsting financial Hability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms. or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified. such an exchange or modification
I5 weated as the derecognition of the original iiability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrving amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting of financial instrinnents

Financial assets and financial itabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if
there is a currenily enforceable fegal right to offset the recopnised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a et basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Uerivative financial instruments

the Company enlers into certain derivative contracts to hedge risks which are not designated as hedges.
The Company holds derivative linancial instruments 1o hedge its foreign currency and interest rate risk
exposures. Baoedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for separately if

the host contract is not a financial asset and certain criteria are met.

Derivatives are mitially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are
measured at fair value, and changes therein are generally recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial guarianiee contracis:
Finenciol gunrantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that requive specified payments
i be made 1o reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make ¢

paviment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Firancial guarantee contracts are recognised inttially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.

Subsequently, the lability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per
nnpairnient requirernents of nd AS 109 and the amount recoenised less cumulative amortisation.

Where guaraniees in relation Lo loans or other payables of subsidiaries are provided for no compensation,
the fair values are accotinted for as contributions and recognised as fecs receivable under “other financial
assels” oras a part of the cest ol the investment, depending on the contractuai terms.

216 Segraent reporting

Opetating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chicef
operating decision maker. : ' '

The Managing Director of the Company has been identified as being the Chief operating decision maker
by the management of the Company.

207 Government Grants:

Government grants related to revenue are recognized on 4 systematic basis in the net profit in the
Statement of Profit and Loss over the periods necessary to mateh them with the related costs which they
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Export Incentives

Export incentives under various schemes notified by the government are recognised when no significant
uncertainties as to the amount of consideration that would be derived and that the Company will comply
with the conditions associated with the grant and ultimate collection exist.

2.18 Cash and eash equivalents:

Cash and casi cquivaients in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of not more than three months. which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. -

219 Cuash Bow statement:

Cash Flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net Profit before tax is adjusted for the
offects of transactions of a non-cash nature, such as deferrals or aceruals of past or future operating cash
receints or payments and items of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows.
ash flows. cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as
delined above nei of ontstanding bank overdrafis as they are considered as integral part of the Coinpany’s

in the statements of ¢
cash I'I-Hiilf._’.i?'.l!L‘]‘!, ;
2.20 Adoption of new accounting principle:

Seferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction (amendments to Ind AS 12
-income Taxes). The amendments clarified that lease transactions give rise to equal and offsetting
temparary differences and financial statements should reflect the future tax impacts of these transactions
through recognizing deferred tax. The Company has adopted this amendment effective | April 2023.
The compary previously accounted for deferred tax on leases on a net basis. Following the amendments,
the company has recognized a separate deferred tax asset in relation to its lease liabilities and a deferred
tax liability in relation to its right-to-use assets.

2.21 Reeent Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended
March 31. 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards
applicable to the Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF CLEAN FINO-CHEM LIMITED
Report on the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of CLEAN FINO-CHEM LIMITED, which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows
ended on that date, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “the Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, the loss and total
comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(“SA”s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statement and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other information and
presentation of its report (herein after called as “Board Report”) which comprises various information
required under section 134(3) of the Companies Act 2013 but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the Other Information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.




In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the Other
Information and in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement in this Other Information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s and Board of Director’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in equity
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.




e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the rcasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainly exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Iinancial Statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions arc based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or in

aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the

Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors

in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate

the effect of any identified misstatements in the Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit lindings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure
A’ a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

(A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, Proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
company so far as it appears from our examination of those books, except that the back-
up of the books of account and other relevant books and papers in electronic mode has
not been kept on servers physically located in India on a daily basis during 09
September 2023 till 20 October 2023 and for the matters stated in the paragraph 2B(f)
below on reporting under rule 11(g) of the companies ( Audit and Auditors ) rules, 2014,

c. The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss (including
other comprehensive income), the standalone statement of changes in equity and the

books ol account

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Acc



e.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the
Act.

the modiflicationsrelating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
herewith are as stated in the paragraph 2(A)(b) above on reporting under section
143(3)(b) and paragraph 2B(f) below on reporting under rule 11(g) of the Companies (
Audit and Auditors ) Rules, 2014,

statements of the Company and the operating effectlvence,s, of such controls, refer to
our scparate Report in “Annexure B”,

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

a.

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foresccable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

i. The Management has represented that to the best of its knowledge and belief as
disclosed in notes to accounts, no (und have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or sharc premium or any other source or kind of funds)
by the company to or in any other person or entitics including foreign entities (
Intermediaries) with the understandings , whether recorded in writings or otherwise
;that the intermediary shall ,dircctly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (
“ultimate beneficiary”) or provide any guarantee security or the like to or on behalf of
the ultimate beneficiaries.

ii. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in financial statements, no funds have been received by the company from
any persons or entities, including forcign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behall of the IFunding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantcee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneliciaries;

ili. Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropnate
in the circumstances performed by us, nothing has come to our
caused us to believe thatl the representations under sub-claus
contain any material misstatement




For M/s Sanjay S Rathi & Co;
Chartered Accountants
- 109182W

E

CA Aditya S Rathi
Partner
M. No — 150097

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility except that audit trail was not enabled at the
database level to log any direct changes for the accounting software used for
maintaining the books of account. For accounting software for which audit trail
feature is enabled, the audit trail facility has been operating throughout the year for
all relevant transactions recorded in the software and we did not come across any
instance of audit trail feature being tampered with during the course of our audit.

UDIN: 244150097 BKCN Z-H S61Z

Place of Signature: Sangamner
Date: 09/05/2024




ANNEXURE A TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Annexure Referred to in our Independent auditors’ Report paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other
Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of CLEAN FINO-CHEM

LIMITED of even date

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and
the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

@

(@)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(b)

(©

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of
physical verification of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and
equipment are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance
with this programme, certain property, plant and equipment were verified during the
year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to
the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company does not have any immovable
property (other than immovable properties where the Company is the lessee and the
Jeases agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee). Accordingly, clause 3(i)(c) of
the Order is not applicable.

(d) The company has not re-valued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use

(©

assets) and intangible assets or both during the year.

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company
as at March 31, 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

As explained to us, inventories have been physically verified during the year at reasonable
intervals by the management. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such
verification by the management is appropriate.

The company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Therefore,
Paragraph 3(iii) (a), (b), (¢), (d), (¢) and (f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has no loans,
investments, guarantees or security where provisions of section 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are to be complied with. Therefore Paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is
not applicable.




v)

(vi)

(vii)

(2)

(b)

(viti)

(ix)

(@)

(b)

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
under the directives of the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76
or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed
thereunder, where applicable. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are
not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, the Central Government has not specified
maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of
Company’s products/ services. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are
not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company is regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’
state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value
added tax, cess and any other statutory dues, as applicable and as amounts deducted /
accrued in the books of account, with the appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues in respect of
Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-
tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other
statutory dues that have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account
of any dispute.

According to the information and explanation given to us, company has no transactions,
not recorded in the books of account have been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961);

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company did not have any loans or
borrowings from any lender during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

(c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no

outstanding term loans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under clause
3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) The Company has not raised any short term loans and hence, reporting under clause

(€)

3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to
meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Hence reporting
under clause 3(ix) (e) of the Order is not applicable




@

(%)
()

(b)
(xi)
(2)

(b)

(©

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(@)

(b)

(xvii)

The Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence reporting on clause
3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause
3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible)
during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

No whistle-blower complaints, received during the year by the company;

Company is not a Nidhi Company, accordingly provisions of the Clause 3(xii) of the Order
is not applicable to the company:

In our opinion, the transactions with related parties are in compliance with Section 177
and 188 of the Act, where applicable, and the details of the related party transactions
have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

In our opinion, the company has no internal audit system commensurate with the size
and the nature of its business.

In our opinion during the year the company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with directors or persons connected with him and accordingly, the provisions
of clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the
Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the
Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting
under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and
the immediately preceding financial year also. The quantum of cash losses are given as
under :

Particulars FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23

Cash Losses Rs 0.90 Million




(xvii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly,

(xix)

(xx)

the provisions of clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable;

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on
our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report indicating that company is incapable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

The provisions of Section 135 towards corporate social responsibility are not applicable on
the company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable.

For M/s Sanjay S Rathi & Co;

Chartered Accountants
FRN - 109182W

CA Aditya S Rathi
Partner
M. No - 150097

Place of Signature: Sangamner
Date: 09/05/2024



Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the standalone financial statements of
CLEAN FINO-CHEM LIMITED for the year ended 31 March 2024

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid standalone financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of CLEAN
FINO-CHEM LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at
31 March 2024, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal  control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and  detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operatipe€lf 2

internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depey




judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
prepaiation of standalone financial statements in accordance with ‘generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For M/s Sanjay S Rathi & Co;
Chartered Accountants
FRN - 109182W

CA Aditya S Rathi
Partner
M. No - 150097

Place of Signature: Sangamner
Date: 09/05/2024




Clean Fino-Chem Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024
{All amounts are in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Asat As at
Note March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
ASSETS
Non-current asscts
Property, plant and equipment 3 2,020.46 1.08
Capital work-in-progress 4 555.81 163,95
Right-of-use assct 328.41 333.70
Other Intangible assets 3 1,92 -
Financial assets
(i) Other (inancial assets 5 3.87 334
Income tax assets (net) 30 f¢) - -
(e)Deferred tax assets (net) 23.45 16.68
Other non-current assets 6 23.86 108.43
Total non-current assets 2,957,78 627.18
Current assels
Inventories 7 131.65 -
Financial assets
(i} Investments & 90,55 452,49
(ii) Trade receivables g 20.81 -
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 10 14.08 0.10
(iv) Other financial assets i1 0.04 -
Other current asscts 12 421.42 87.19
Asset classified as held for sale “ =
Current tax assets (net) 30 fa) 2.18 -
Total current assets 680.73 539,78
Total assets 3,638.51 1,166.96
EQUITY & LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 13 99,92 59.78
Other equity H 3,131.82 1,056.55
Total equity 3,231.74 1,116.33
Liabilities
Non-current linbilities
Financial labilities
(i} Lease liabilities 13 9.37 929
Provisions la 2.13 -
Tutal non-current linbilities 11.50 9,29
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 17 - 0.52
(i) Lease liabilities 15 0.78 0.74
(iii) Trade payables 18
) Toral ontstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 0.04 &
b) '1‘ola_|l outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 149.01 16.49
enterprises
(iv) Other financial liabilities 19 23813 21.58
Other current liahilities 20 6.81 1.89
Provisions 24 0.50 -
Current tax liabilities (net) 30 () - 0.12
Total current liabilities 395.27 41,34
Total liabilities 406,77 50,63
Total equity and linhilities 3,638.51 1,166.96
Significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Standalone Financial $tatements
As per our report of even date attached

For Sanjay S Rathi & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chertered Acconnteuns Clean Fino-Chem Limited

Firm Registration No. 109182W

Ashok Boob Krishnakumar Boob

Aditya S Rathi

Parmer w Lirector Director

Membership No. 150007 E DIN : 00410740 DIN : 00410672
L)

Place: Pune Place: Pune Place: Pune

Date: 0% May, 2024 Date: 09th May,2024 Date: 09th May,2024




Clean Fino-Chem Limited

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended
(All amounts are in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Year Ended Year Ended
Note March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

Income

Revenue from operations 22 19.24 -
Other Income 23 40.57 28.30
Total income 59.81 28.30
Expenses

Cost of materials consumed 24 4991 -
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 25 (34.88) -
Employee bencfits expense 26 21.76 1.90
Finance costs 27 0.91 0.42
Depreciation and amortisation expense 28 21.42 2.66
Other expenses 29 46.02 121.67
Total expenses 105.14 126.65
Profit before tax (45.33) (98.35)
Tax expense: 30

Current tax (1.78) 1.82
Deferred tax (6.76) (16.69)
Total tax expense (8.54) (14.87)
Profit for the year (A) (36.79) (83.48)
Other comprehensive (loss)/ income

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or

loss

(i) Remeasurements of defined benefit liability / (asset) (0.21) -
(ii) Income tax relating to remeasurements of defined benefit 0.04 -
(liability) / asset
Total Other comprehensive (loss) / income (B) (0.17) -
Total comprehensive income for the year (A+B) (36.96) (83.48)
Earnings per equity share (in Rs) [Face value Re. 1/- per share]

Basic 3 (4.30) (15.82)
Diluted (4.30) (15.82)

Significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached
For Sanjay S Rathi & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Clean Fino-Chem Limited
Firm Registration No. 109182W

)j\\// Aohok, @0 L - @90([]2/
Aditya S Rathi Ashok Boob Krishnakumar Boob
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 150097 DIN : 00410740 DIN : 0410672
Place: Pune Place: Pune Place:Pune

Date: 09th May,2024 Date: 09th May,2024 Date:09th May,2024




Clean Fino-Chem Limited
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounts are in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)
For the year ended March  For the year ended March

31,2024 31,2023
A. Cash Now from operating activities
Profit before tax (45.33) (98.35)
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortisation 21.42 2.66
Finance costs (excluding foreign exchange adjustment) 0.91 0.41
Profit on instruments designated through fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) (58.80) (7.42)
Fair value gain on instruments designated through fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) 19.72 (20.88)
Interest Income (0.07) =
Employee Stock option Scheme Expenses 2.37 -
Unrealised foreign exchange difTerences 0.02 -
Operating profit before working capital changes (59.76) (123.58)
Movement in working capital:
(Increase) in other non-current financial assets (0.53) (3.34)
(Increase) in invenlories (131.67) -
Decrease / (Increase) in rade receivables (20.81) -
Decrease / (Increase) in other current financial assets (0.04) -
(Increase) in other current assets (334.23) (87.19)
(Decrease) / Increase in non-current provisions 2,13 -
(Decrease) / Increase in trade payables 132.54 16.17
Increase / (Decrease) in other current financial liabilities 4.36 0.46
Increase [ { Decrease) in other Non current {inancial liabilities 0.08
(Decrease) / Increase in other current liabilities 4.92 0.89
Increase in current provisions 0.33 -
Cash generated from operations (402.68) (196.58)
Met income tax (paid) (0.48) (1.70)
Net cash from operating activitics (A) (403.16) (198.28)
5. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use asset, intangible assets and capital work- (2,132.50) (478.69)
in-progress, nel of capital creditors and advances
Purchase of investments (2,680.44) (431.62)
Proceeds from sale of investments 3.081.46 7.42
Interest received 0.07 -
Net cash used in investing activities (I3) (1,731.41) (902.89)
C. Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid - (0.03)
Proceeds from issue of Equity shares 40.14 650,00
Repayment of lease liabililies (0.93) (0.13)
Security premium received on Issue of cquity shares 2,109.86 n
Net cash used in financing activities (C) 2,149.07 649.84
Net (deerease) / inerease in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 14.50 (451.33)
Effect of exchange differences on restatement of foreign currency Cash and cash equivalents E s
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period (0.42) 450,92
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 14.08 (0.42)
Nuotes:-
L. Cash and cash equivalents inelude
Cash on hand 0.08 0.02
Balances with bank
- Current accounts 14,00 (0.44)
14.08 (0.42)
Signilicant accounting policies Note 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements
As per our report attached of even date
For Saniav S Rathi & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Aceamnitants
Firm Registration No. 109182W

Clean Fino-Chem Limited

Aditya 8 Rathi Ashok Boob Krishnakumar Boob
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 150097 DIN : 00410740 DIN : 0410672
Place: Pune Place:Pune Place: Pune

Date: 09th May,2024 Date:091h May,2024 Date:09th May,2024



Clean Fino-Chem Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts are in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

(a)

(D)

Equity share eapital

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Number of Shares Amount Number of Shares Amount
Liquity share of Re 10 each issues, subscribed and fully paid
Balance at the beginning of the reporting year 59,78,472 59.78 45,71,545 45.72
Add: Shares issued 40,13,745 40,14 14,006,927 14.07
Balance at the end of the reporting year 99,92,217 99,92 59,78,472 59.78
Other equity
Reserves and surplus
Particulars Total other equity
Securities . Capital A 2
; General reserve = Retained earnings
premium Contribution

Balance at April 01, 2022 505.28 - - (1.21) 504.07
Issue of Equity Share 635.93 635.93
Total comprehensive income for the year ended
March 31, 2022
Profit for the year - - - (83.48) (83.48)
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) -

- Remeasurements of defined benefit (Asset) - - - - -

- Lquity mstruments designated through other - - - " -
comprehensive income (Refer note (i) below)
Total comprehensive income - - - (83.48) (83.48)
LEmployee share based payment reserve - - 0.00 - 0.00
Balance at March 31, 2023 1,141.21 - - (84.69) 1,056.52
Balance at April 01, 2023 1,141.21 - - (84.69) 1,056.52
Issue of Equity Share 2,109.87 2,109.87
Total comprehensive income for the year ended
March 31,2023
Profit for the year - - - (36.79) (36.79)
Other comprehensive income (net of tax)

- Remeasurements of defined benefit (Asset) / - - - - -

Liability
Dividends paid - - - - -
Total comprehensive income 2,109.87 - - (36.79) 2,073.08
Capital Contribution - - 237 - 2.37
Balance at March 31, 2024 5,360.95 - 2.37 (121.48) 5,241.84 |

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements

a)Share based payments:-Clean Science and technology Limited, the holding company has extended its stock option program to selected employees of subsidiaries
holding the company. The fair vale of equity settled trunsaction; caleulated at the date when the grant is made using an appropriate valuation model and recognised
over the period in which the performance and/or service condition are fullfilled

As per our report of even date attached

For Sanjay S Rathi & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No, 109182W

/
Aditya S Rathi
Partner
Membership No., 150097
Place: Pune

Date: 09h May.2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Clean Fino-Chem Limited

Asholk @oob -

Ashok Boob
Director

DIN : 00410740
Place: Pune

Date :09th May,2024

o)

Krishnakumar Boob
Director

DIN : 00410672
Place: Pune

Date : 09th May,2024



Clean Fino-Chem Limited
Notes to the Standalone Fi ial

.

(All amounts are in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

3 Property, plant and equipment

Particulars Gross Block Depreciation Net Block
Asat Additions during the Disposals during As at As at Charge for Disposals during As at As at Asat
April 01, 2023 vear the vear Mar 31, 2024 April 01, 2023 the vear the year Mar 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 Mar 31, 2024
Land - = - - - - -
Buildings . 766.09 766.09 - 241 - 241 - 763.68
Plant and equipment - 1,054.33 1,054.33 - 10.74 - 10.74 - 1,043.59
Electrical Insiallation - 197.40 197.40 - 159 - 1.59 . 195.81
Furniture and fixtures 0.16 6.88 7.04 0.00 o.19 - 0.19 0.16 685
Computer 037 436 473 0.02 0.56 - 0.59 0.35 414
Software 042 1.88 230 010 028 - 0.38 0.32 1.92
Vehicles 0.17 3.01 318 0.00 0.09 - 0.09 0.17 3.09
Office equipment 009 349 3.58 0.00 0.28 - 0.28 0.09 3.30
Total 1.21 2,037.44 2,038.65 0.13 16.14 - 16.27 1.08 2.022.38
Particulars Gross Block Depreciation Net Block
Asat Additions during the Disposals during Asat As at Charge for Disposals during Asat As at As at
April 01, 2022 vear the vear March 31,2023 April 01, 2022 the vear the vear March 31,2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023
Land = % - - . - - .
Buildings - - - -
Plant and equipment = - - -
Fumniture and fixtures . 0.16 0.16 0.00 - 0.00 - 0.16
Computer - 0.72 0.72 012 E 0.12 = 0,60
Vehicles - 017 017 0.00 - 0.00 - 017
Office equipment - 0.16 0.16 0.01 001 - 0.15
Total - 121 1.21 - 0.13 - 0.13 - 1.08
Right-of-use asset
Particulars Gross Block Amortisation Net Block
Asat ions during the  Disposals during the Asat As at Charge for Deletion As at As at Asat
April 01, 2023 vear vear Mar 31, 2024 April 01, 2023 the vear Mar 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 Mar 31,2024
Leasehold land 336.22 - 336.22 2.53 5.28 - 781 333.69 328.41
Total Assets 336.22 - 336.22 2.53 5.28 - 7.81 333.69 328.41
Particulars Gross Block Amorti Net Block
Asat 1 April 2022 Additions during the  Disposals during the  Asat 31 Mar 2023 Asat 1 April 2022 Charge for Deletion Asat 31 Mar 2023 | Asat31 March 2022 As at 31 March
vear year the vear 2023
Leasehold land - 336.22 336.22 2.53 - 155 | - 333.70
Total Assets - 336.22 _ 336.22 - 2.53 - 253 - 333.70




Clean Fino-Chem Limited

Nuites to the Standalone Financial Statements (continued)

4(a)

4(b)

ounts are in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)
Capital work-in-progress

P il As at Additions during the | Capitalised during the As at
April 01, 2023 vear vear Mar 31, 2024
Buildings 126.87 704.90 (786.12) 45.65
Plant and machinery 37.08 1,704,78 (1,231.70) 510.16
Taotal 163.95 2,409.68 (2,617.82) 555.81
Particulars As at Additions during the | Capitalised during the As at
April 01, 2022 vear vear March 31, 2023
Buildings 126.87 - 126.87
Plant and machinery 37.08 - 37.08
Total - 163.95 - 163.95

CWIP aging Schedule
As at March 31, 2024

cwipg Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
) Less than | vear 1-2 vears 2-3 vears More than 3 vears
Projects 550.03 5.78 - - 555.81
Projects temporarily . R R ~ .
suspended
Towml CWIP 550.03 5.78 - - 555.81
As at March 31, 2023
CWIiP Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
Less than | year 1-2 years 2-3 vears More than 3 years
Projects in progress 163.95 - - - 163.95
Projects temporarily R R } - B
suspended
Total CWIP 163.95 - - - 163.95

As at March 31. 2024 no projects under Capital Work in Progress are overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan.




Clean Fino-Chem Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (continued)
(All amounts are in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

6

Others financial assets - Non current
(Unseeured, considered good)

Security Deposits

Other non-current assels
Capital advances

Inventories

(valued at fower of cost or net realisable value)

Raw material [including stock in transit of Rs. 29.49 million (March 31, 2023 : Nil)]

Work-in-progress

Finished goods [including stock in transit of Rs. 3.18 million (March 31, 2023 : Nil))

Stores and spares

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

3.87 3.34
3.87 3.34
23.86 108.43
23.86 108.43
88.29 -
17.41 -
17.47 -
8.48

131.65




Clean Fino-Chem Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (continued)
(All amounts are in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

5

Investments - Current
AL Tnvestments earried at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
Investment in mutual funds - Quoted

Nil (March 31, 2023: 10,41,375) units Kotak Equity Arbitrage Fund

Nil (March 31, 2023: 26,819) units Nippon India Money Market Fund Direct Growth
Nil (March 31, 2023: 78,017) units of Axis Money Market Fund Direct Growth
T.601 (March 31, 2023: 44,996) units of Tata Money Market Fund Direct Growth
Nil (March 31, 2022: 25,94 489) Edelweiss Arbitrage Fund Direct Growth

13,917 (March 31, 2023: Nil) Kotak Money Market Fund Direet Growth

(a) Aggregate bool value of quoted investments
() Aggregate market value of quoted investments

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
- 34.94
- 95.14
- 94.99
33.18 182.15
- 45.27
57.37 -
90.55 452.49
90.55 452.49
90.55 452.49
0.00 2,317.03



Clean Fino-Chem Limited
Notes to the St
(AL amounts

9 Trade receivables

Receivable other than related party
Unsecured, considered good
Other parties

Breakup of security details
Frade receivables considered good - secured

andalone Financial Statements (continued)
are in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Trade receivables considered good - unsecured

Total

Less: Loss allowance
Total trade receivables

As at
March 31, 2024

20.81

As at

March 31, 2023

20.81

20.81

20.81

20.81

*The Company's exposure to credit and curreney risk, and loss allowanees related to trade receivables are disclosed in note 35 on financial instruments.

Trade reeeivables Ageing Schedule
As at March 31, 2024

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Not due e ¢ - ‘e tha ;
wticulars I ue Less than > months -1 1-2 Years 3.3 yours More than Total
6 months year 3 years
l.lndl_spulc{l I'rade receivables — } 208] - ) 0.00 i 2081
considered good
Noter Amounts seen as 0.00 are below the disclosure threshold of the Company.
As at March 31, 2023
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Not due e g 6 months - han
rticulars Less than months -1 12 Yeurs 23 vears More t Total
6 months year 3 years
Undisputed Trade receivables - i ) B
considered good
100 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 0.08 0.02
Balance with banks :
In current account 14.00 0.08
14.08 0.10




Clean Fino-Chem Limited
Notes to the Standalone Finaneial Statements (continued)
(All amounts are in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Other current financial assets

(Unsecured, considered good)

Advances to employees

Other current assets

(Unsecured, considered good)
Other loans and advances

Balance with custom authorities
Balance with government authorities
Prepayments

Advance for supply of goods

Other advances

Share capital

Particulars

Authorised :

10,000,000 (March 31, 2023 : 10,000,000) equity shares o’ Rs.10 each, (March 31,

2023: Rs, 10 each)
Total

Issued and subseribed and paid up:
Equity share eapital

9992217 (Mar 31,2023 : 59.78,472 equity shares of Rs. 10 ¢ach.) equity shares

Total

Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the heginning and end of the year :

Equity share :

Cutstanding at the beginning of the vear

Add: Equity Shares issued during the year pursuant to exercise of employee stock options

Outstanding at the end of the year
Terms / Rights attached to each classes of shares

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31,2023

0.04 -

0.04 G,
404.53 87.08
6.41 0.07
10.46 0.04

0.02 -
421.42 87.19

As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
99.92 59,78
99,92 59.78
As at As at

Number of Shares Number of
59,78,472 45,71,545
40,13,745 14,06,927
99,92,217 59,78,472

The Company has a single class of equity shares having a par value of Re. 10 per share as on March 31, 2024, Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally
with repard to dividends and share in the Company’s residual assets. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. The
voting rights of an equity shareholder are in proportion 1o its share of the paid-up equity capital of the Company.

On winding up of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the Company, remaining after distribution of all

preferential amounts in proportion to the number of equity shares held,

Sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company is set out below:

Equity shares of Re, 1 each fully paid As at March 31,2024 As at March 31, 2023

Number of Shares i sharehol Number of Shares ihareholding
1 Clean Science and Technology Limited 9992217  100,00% 59.78,472 100,00%
TS s held by Promoters
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
No. of Shares % _0f Fi.lf:ll % % No. of Shares % ot Tatal % Change
Shares Change Shares
99,92,217 100.00 - 59,78,472 | 100.00% -




Clean Fino-Chem Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (continued)
(Al amounts are in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

14 Other equity As at

Reserves and surplus

A Retained earnings (121.63) (84.6700)

B. Securitics premium 3,251.08 1,141.22

C. Employee Share Option Reserve 237 0.00
3,131.82 1,056.55

As at As at

A. Retained earnings

Opening balance (84.67) (1.21)

Profit for the year (36.79) (83.48)

Appropriations

Remeasurements of defined benefit (Asset) .17

Closing balance (121.63) (84.67)

B. Securities Premium

Openming balance 1,141.22 505.28

Addition 2,109.87 635.93

Closing balance 3,251.09 1,141.22

C. Capital Contribution

Opening balance w 4

Add: Additions during the year 237

Less: Transler to securities premium on exercise of stock options z -

Closing balance 237 -
3,117.00 1,041.72

Nature and purpose of reserves

(1) Securities Premium is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. It is utilised in accordance with the pravisions of Companies Act, 2013,

(i) General Reserve is created by setting aside amount from the retained earnings of the company for general purposes which is freely available for distribution

(i) Employee Share Option Reserve represents the fair value of services received against employees stock options (ESOP’s) outstanding as at balance sheet

date, (refer note 40)




Clean Fino-Chem Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (continued)
(All amounts are in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

15

16

Lease liabilities

Lease habilitics - Non current 9.37 9.29
Lease labiliues - Current 0.78 0.74
10.15 10,03
Provisions - Non current
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity 0.98 -
Compensated absences 1.15 -
2.13 -
Barrewings - Current
insecured
Depusits from directors -
Casn credit and overdraft facilities from banks (secured ) - 0.52
5 0.52
Trade payables
Irade pavables
T'otal outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises (Refer note 33)** 0.04 -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 149,01 16.49
L 149.05 16.49
Trade payable ageing schedule
As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Not due
Less than 1 More than
1-2 veurs 2-3 years Total
year 3 years
Total outstanding for MSME due 0.03 001 - * 0.04
Total outstanding for other than MSME due 85.26 20.17 0.20 - - 105.63
85.29 20.18 0.20 - - 105.67
Acerued Expense - 4338 - 43.38
Total 128.67 20,18 020 - - 149.05




Clean Fino-Chem Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (continued)
(All amounts are in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

As at March 31,2023

Particulars Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Not due 55 ] h:
Less than 1 £33 it 23 years More than Total
year 3 years
Total outstanding for MSME due - 5 - - - -
Total outstanding for other than MSME due - 16.49 - - - 16.49
Total - 16.49 - - - 16.49
19 Other current financial liabilities As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Employee benefits payable
Salaries and benefits 4.26 0.46
Bonus payable 0.52 -
Payable for purchase of property, plant & equipment 233.35 21.12
238.13 21.58
200 Other current liabilities
Statutory dues payable
Statutory dues including provident fund and withholding taxes
TDS and TCS payable 6.25 1.86
Provident fund payable 0.48 0.03
ESIC payable 0.05 -
Professional tax payable 0.03 -
6.81 1.89
21 Provisions - Current
Provision for employee benefits
Compensated absences 0.38 -
Gratuity (Refer nole 38) 0.12 -

0.50 -




Clean Fino-Chem Limited
Nates to the Standalone Financial Statements (continued)
(AT amounts are in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

22

1k

i

24

Revenue from operations
Sale of products

Other operating revenue
Scrap sale

Other income

Interest income

Net gain on account of foreign exchange Muctuations

Prafit an sale of instruments designated through fair value through profit and loss
Other non-operating income

FFair value gain on instruments designated through fair value through profit and
Reimbursement of expenses from subsidiary (Refer note no 34)

Miscellaneous income

Cost of materials consumed

Raw manerials (including purchase components & packing material consumed)

Opening inventories

Addd - Purchases

Less © Closing inventorics

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress

Oipening Inventories
Finished Goods
Waork-in-progress

Total (A)

Closing Inventories
Finished Goods
Work-in-progress

Total (B)
Total (A-B)

Year Ended
Mareh 31, 2024

17.84

1.40

Mareh 31,2023

1.40

19.24

0.07

1.42

58,80
(19.72)

40.57

138.20

138.20

88.29

49.91

17.47
17.41

34,88

(34.88)




26

27

28

Employee benefits expense

Salarics

wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer note 38)

Stalt weltare expenses
Employes Stock Option Scheme expense

Finance costs

Imerest expense on financial liabilities
-Working capital loan
- Interest on lease liability (Refer Note no. 39)
-Others

Deprecintion and amortisation expense

Jepreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 3)

Depreciation of right-of-use asset (refer note 3)
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 5)

Other expenses

Consumption of stores and spares
Power and fuel
Water charges
Repairs and maintenance
Machimery
Others
Rent
Rates and taxes
Telephone and other communication expenses
Travelling expenses
Freipht, clearing and forwarding
Sales commission
Nanpower supply
Lepal and professional lees
Payments to auditors (Refer note () below)
Soltware Charges
Factory Expenses
Bank charges
Office Expenses
EfMuent treatment plant expenses
Printing and stationary
Research & Development Expenses
Miscellancous expenses

i) Pavirent w o auditoes™

s anditor

Statutory audit fee ingluding fees for limited review
Reimbursement of expenses

15.79
2.06
1.54
237

21,76

0.00
0.85
0.006

0.03
0.39

0.91

0.42

15.80
5.28
0.28

21.42

0.51
13.08
0.55
0.20
0.28
1.07
1.24
0.22
019
0.31
(126
9.29
6.54
0.30
0.49
1.32
016
238
0.04
048
6.81
0.31

115.09
1.74

46,02

121.67

0.07

0.07




Clean Fino-Chem Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (continued)
(Al amounts are in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

30 Taxes

{a)  Statement of profit and loss

PFarticulars

March 31, 2024

March 31,2023

Current tax:
- Current income year tax

- impact ol previous vear ax (1.78) 1.82
Delerred tax (6.76) (16.69)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss (8.54) {14.87)
(b Current Tax Asset/ (Liabilities)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Income 1ax (net of advance tax) 2,18 (0.12)
Tuotal current tax linbilities 2.18 (0.12)
(¢} Deferred tax
Particulars As at As at
—— Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Deferved tax liabilities (DTL)
Excess ol depreciation/amortisation on property plant and equipment under income (6.79) (0.02)
lax act
Mutual funds designated at fair value through profit and loss (0.29) (5.25)
_Lease fmbility (1.74)
(8.82) (5.28)
Deferved tax assets (D'TA)
Carry forward of losses 30.33 21.84
Preliminary Expenscs 0.08 0.12
Lease asset . 1.63
32.05 21.96
_[S_l.‘l deferrved tax (liability )/ Asset 23.23 16,68
(1) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Accounting profit before tax (45.33) (98.35)
Tax rate 17.16% 17.16%
Taxas per FIAet on above (A) (7.78) (16.88)
Tax expenses (13)
(1) Current tax (1.82) 1.82
(i) Deferred tax (6.76) (16.69)
(i) Taxation in respect of earlier years - -
(8.58) (14.87)
Difference (C) 0.80 (2.01)
Tax reconcilintion
Adjustinents:
ETeet of permanent adjustinents - -
- Grratuity and Leave Encashment (0.42) -
- Expenses related to increase in Share capital (0.08) .
Unrealised MF (0.20) -
Impact as a result of capital gains included in accounting profit taxed at the applicable 182
rales ) i
Others (0.10) 0.19

=0.00




()

31

Movement in temporary differences:

Deferved tax liabilities (DTL)

Excess of depreciation/amortisation on property plant and equipment under income tax
act

Mutual funds designated at fair value through profit and loss

Lease liability

Deferved tax assets (D'TA)
Carry Torward of losses
Lease assel

Preliminary Expenses

Net deferred tax liability

Deferred tax liabilities (DTL)

Exeess of depreciation‘amorntisation on property plant and equipment under income tax
act

Mutual funds designated at fair value through profit and loss

Bonds - Effective interest rate

Deferved tax assets (DTA)

Carry forward of losses
Preliminary Expenses

Net deferved tax liability

Recognised in profit

Recognised in OCI

April 01, 2023 or loss during the during the year March 31, 2024
year

(0.02) (6.77) 5 (6.79)
(5.25) 4.96 - (0.29)
3 (1.74) - (1.74)
(5.28) (3.54) - (8.82)
21.84 8.50 - 30.33
- 1.63 - 1.63
0.12 (0.04) - 0.08
21.96 10.09 - 32.05
16.69 6,54 - 23.23

Recognised in profit

April 01, 2022 or loss during the

Recognised in OCI
during the year

March 31, 2023

yednr

- (0.02) . (0.02)

’ (5.25) - (5.25)

: (5-2-8) - (5.-28}
& 21.84 4 21.84
- 0.12 . 0.12

- 21.96 = 21.96

- 16.68 - 16.69

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only il it has a legally enforeeable right to set off current tax assets and current Lax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and

delerred tax Habilities relate to meome taxes levied by the same tax authority,

Earnings Per Share

Particuliars

March 31, 2024

March 31,2023

Profits attributable to equity sharcholders
Profit for basic earning per share of Re. 10 each*

Profit for the year (in millioas) (3,67,88,983.39) (8,34,80,000.00)
Basic Earnings Per Share

Weighted average number ol equity shares outstanding during the vear 85,59,339 52,76,936
Basic EP'S (Rs.) (4.30) (15.82)
Diluted Earnings Per Share

Profit for diluted earing per share of Re. 10 each*

Profit for the year (in millions) (3,67,88,983.39) (8,34,80,000.00)
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year for diluted EPS 85,59,339 52,76,936
Diluted EPS (Rs.) (4.30) (15.82)
Weighted average number of equity shares for Basic Earnings Per Shave March 31, 2024 Mareh 31,2023
Balance at the beginning and at the end of the year* 52,76,936 45,71,545
| ited average number of equity shares outstanding during the year 52,76,936 45,71,545

Weighted average number of equity shares for Diluted Earnings Per Share

March 31, 2024

March 31,2023

Bulance at the beginning and at the end of the year®

85,59,339

52,76,936

Weignted average number of equity shares outstanding durving the year

85,59,339

52,76,936

“Note The equity shares and basic/diluted earnings per share for the comparative period has been presented to reflect the adjustiments for issue of bonus shares and stock split in

accordance with Ind AS 33 - Earnings per Share.
Contingent liabilities and commitments:

Conmitments:

e

1
[ RTTN INTFTE

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Listit

mited amount of contracts remaining to be exeeuted on capital account and not provided for

106,73

dotal

106.73




o

Disclosures vequired under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act)

Particulars

As at
Mareh 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the year

Trade payables

Capital creditors

Interest due thereon vemaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the year

Trade payables

Capital creditors

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act
2006

The amount of payment made to micro and small supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year,

The amoumt of interest due and payable for period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed
day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under MSMED Act 2006,
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year.

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such date when the interest dues as
above are actually paid to the small enterprises for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the
MEMED Act, 2006.

0.04
1.98

0.00
0.06

12.39
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34 Related Party Disclosures

() List of Related Parties and description of relationship:

Holding company
Clean Seience and Technology Limited

Fellow Subsidiaries:

Clean Science Private Limited
Clean Organies Private Limited
Clean Aromatics Private Limited

w bt o—

Key Management Personnel (KMP)

| Mr. Ashok Boob
2 M. Siddhartha Sikchi
3 Mr. Krishnakumar Boob

Relative of Key Management Personnel

I Ms. Nandita Sikchi

2 Ms. Asha Boob

3 Mr. Parth Maheshwari
4 Mr. Ashok Sikchi

5 Mr. Kunal Sikchi

4 Mr. Prasad Boob

F Ms. Asha Sikehi

8 Ms. Nilima Boob

9 Ms. Nidhi Molunta
10 Ms. Pooja Navandar

11 Ms Shradha Boob

Managing Director

Whole Time Director
Whole Time Director

5
(b) Related party transactions:
Key management personnel compensation
Particulars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Director sitting lees 0.05 -
Employee share based payment 2.37 -
Total comy 242 "
Sr. [ Nature of Transaction March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
no Key Management| Enfities where Key Holding Total Key Management| Entities where Key|  Holding Total
Personnel Manag t Company Personnel Manag t Company
(KMP)YRelative | Personnel/Relative (KMP)Relative | Personnel/Relative
of Key of Key of Key of Key
Manag i Manag " Manag 4 Manag
Personnel Personnel has Personnel Personnel has
significant significant
influence influence
I lssue of Equity Shares - - 2,150.00 2,150,00 650,00 | 650.00
2 |Rent Expense - - 1.07 1.07 1.02 1.02
3 [Management service fees - - 3.99 3,99 2.26 2.26
4 |Research and development advisory fees - - 6.79 6.79 2737 | 27.37
5 |One time technical know-how fees - - - - 87.72 87.72
- - 2,161.85 2,161.85 - - 768.37 | 768.37

(¢) Related party transactions more than 10% of total transactions for the year ended :

Nature of transaction

March 31,2024

March 31,2023

a. Issue of BEquity Shares

(]

Clean Science and Technology Limited 2,150.00 65000
b Rent expense, Management service fees, R&D Advisory and Technical Advisory

Clean Science and Technology Limited 11.85 118.37
Balances outstanding at the end of the year:-

Particulars Mareh 31, 2024 | March 31,2023
. Trade Receivable/(Payables)

Clean Science and Technology Limited -1.58 -15.25
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The Company’s board of dircctors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. The board
of directors is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management policies. The board regularly meets to decide its risk

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls
to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive
control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Company’s management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk
management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Board is also assisted by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular
and adhoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the Board of directors.

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising (rom financial instruments:

Credit risk is the nisk ol [inancial loss to the Company il a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and
arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers.

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, management also considers the
factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk associated with the industry and country in which customers

Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the
Company grants eredit terms in the normal course of business. On account of adoption of Ind AS 109, the Company uses expected credit loss model to
s impairment loss or gain, The Company uses a matrix to compute the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, The provision matrix takes
into account available external and internal eredit risk factors and Company's historical experience for customers.

The company has nol made any provision on expected credit loss on trade receivables and other financial assets, based on the management estimates.

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally invests in deposits with banks and financial institutions with high credit
ratings assigned by domestic eredit rating agencies.

35 Financial visk management
management activities.
- credit risk - see note (a) below
- liquidity risk - see note (b) below
- interest rate risk - see note (¢) below
~ market risk - see note (d) below
() Credit risk
operate.
ass
(i)
(ii)
(b} Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceplable losses or risking damage to the Company’s
reputation,

he Company's treasury department is responsible [or liquidity and funding. In addition policies and procedures relating to such risks are overseen by the
management,

The Company's principal sources ol liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is generated from operations.

o Asat Asat

ettitulars Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Fotal current assets (A) 680,73 539.78
Total current liabilities (B) 395.27 41.34
Working capital (A-B) 285.46 498.44

Following is the Company's exposure to financial liabilities based on the contractual maturity as at reporting date.

As at March 31, 2024

Contractual cash Nows

Carrying value

Less than 1 year

More than 1 year

Total

Borrowimgs

Lease liabilities 10.15 0.78 22.16 22.94
Trade payables 149.05 149.05 - 149.05
Other liabilities 238.13 238.13 - 238.13
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As at March 31,2023

Contractual cash flows

Carrying value

Less than | year

More than 1 year

Total

Borrowings

Lease liabilities
Trade payables
Other liabilities

0.52
10.03
16.49
21.58

0.52
0.74
16.49
21.58

22.94

0.52
23.68
16.49
21.58

(¢} Interest rate risk:

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s debt obligations with floating interest rates., The
Company manages its interest rates by selecting appropriate type of borrowings and by negotiation with the bankers,

The exposure of the borrowings (long term and short term ) to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Variable rate borrowings
Iixed rate borrowings

Asat
Mareh 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Total borrowings

The Company had the fvilowing variable and fixed rate borrowings outstanding
! ~ ]

As at March 31, 2024

Weighied average inTerest

ritfe Balance % of total loans
Cash credii tacility 0.00% - 0.00%
Net exposure to cash fow interest rate risk 0.00% - 0.00%

As at March 31, 2023

Weighted average interest

Fite Balance % of total loans
Cash credit facility 0.00% - e
r\l{ _l_\ posure to eash low interest rate risk 0.00% = 0.00%

() Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes with market prices — such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates, which will affect the Company’s income or the
value of' its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable

parameters, while optimising the return.

Foreign curveney unhedged exposure @
B ) L

(i) Financial assels

Asal Mareh 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Foreign currency

Equivalent amount in
rupees
(in_million)

Foreign currency

Equivalent amount in
rupees
(in million)

Trade receivables

UsD

EURO

Batance with banks - in EEIFC
accounts

uspD

EURO

Cash on hand

usp

LUR

CNY

SGD

AED

RUB

DR

CHEF

Gop /@\
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(ii) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities

As at Mareh 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Equivalent amount in

Foreign currency

rupees
(in million)

Foreign currency

Equivalent amount in
rupees
(in million)

Trade payables

EURO 55,600.00 5.00 - =
UsD §7,690.00 7.31 - 2
12.30 -

Note: Amounts seen as 0.00 are below the disclosure threshold of the company.

(iii) Currency wise net exposure (Financial assets - Financial liabilities)

Currency wise net exposure
(assels -linbilities)

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Particulars

Foreign currencey

rupees
(in_million)

Equivalent amount in

Foreign currency

Equivalent amount in
rupees
(in_million)

EUR

(55.,000.00)

(5.0

usbD

(87,690.00)

(73D

CNY

SGD

ALD

RUB

IDR

CHI

Gire

Total

(12.32)

Note: Amounts seen as 0.00 are below the disclosure threshold of the company.

(iv) Curreney wise net exposure (Financial assets - Financial liabilities) (Rs.)

Currency

Amount in rupees (in million)

Seusitivity %

Asal As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
EUR (5.01) - 1.00%
s (7.31) - 1.00%
CNY - - 1.00%
SGD - - 1.00%
ALED - - 1.00%
RUB - - 1.00%
1DR - - 1.00%
CHIF - - 1.00%
GBr - - 1.00%
(12.32) 5

(v) Seunsitivity analysis

Note: Amounts seen as 0.00 are below the disclosure threshold of the company.

Currency Impact on profitfequity (1% strengthening) Impact on profit/equity (1% weakening)
Amount in rupees (in million) Amount in rupees (in million)

L . As at Mareh 31, 2024 As at Mareh 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

_LEUR. (0.05) - 0.05 -
LsD (0.07) - 0.07 -
CNY - - - -
sGD - - - -
AED - - - -
RUB - - - -
1DR - - - -
CHF - - -
GRBP - - - -

Total (0.13) - 0.13 -

Note: Amounts seen as 0.00 are below the disclosure threshold of the company.
The exchange rate used by the Company is that rate which is notified by the Reserve Bank of India.

36 Capital management
ipital comprises equity share capilal, surplus in the statement of profit and loss and other equity attributable to equity holders.

The Compan

and
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37

Fair value measurements

(a) Categories of linancial instruments -

(b)

38

Particulaes

As

al

March 31, 2024

As at March 31,2023

FVTPL

Amortised cost

FVTPL Amortised cost

Financial assets

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents
Other bank balances
Investment in bonds
Investments (other than
investments in subsidiary)
Investment in cquity shares -
Quoted

Loans

Other financial assets

20.81
14.08

3.91

« 3.34

Taotal linancial assets

Y0.55

38.80

452.49 3.45

Finaacial Habilities
Leuse lisbilities
Borrowings

Trade payables

| Other [inancial liabilities

10.15

149.05
238.13

- 10.03
- 0.52
- 16.49
- 21.58

Total financial liabilities

397.33

- 48.62

Iaie value hierarchy:

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

I'air values

Fair values

FVTPL

FVTPL

FVTPL FVTPL

Category

Quoted prices in active

marlket
(Level 1)

Significant observable
inputs
(Level 2)

Quoted prices in active | Significant observable
market inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2)

Financial assets
Investment in bonds
Investment in mutual 1unds
Investment in equity shares
LOans

Other linancial asscts

90.53

Total financial assets

90.55

Financial liabilities
Other financial liabilitics

T'otal financial liabilities

Post-employment benelit plans

As per Indian Accounting Standard 19" Employee Benefits”, the disclosures as defined are given below-

A. Defined Contribution Plans

The Company makes contributions, determined as a specific percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employees towards Provident Fund,
which is & defined contribution plan, The Company has no obligation other than to make the specified contributions. The contributions are charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss as they accrue. The amount recognised as an expense towards contribution to Provident fund and other funds for the period

agaregated to Rs, 10.36 million (March 31, 2023 : Rs, 0.06 million).

i, Defined Benefit Plans

Liratuily

e Company has defined benefit gratuity plan. The grawity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Under the Act, employee who has
completed five years of service is entitled 1o specific benelit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at
retirement age. These benelits are funded with an insurance company.

Risk exposug iability matehing

Provisiu

make
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1) Liability Risks

a. Asset Liability Mismatch risk

Risk which arises if there is a mismatch in the duration of the assets relative to the liabilities. By matching duration with the defined benefit liabilities, the
company is successfully able to neutralize valuation swings caused by interest rate movements. Hence companies are encouraged to adopt asset-liability
management,

b. Discount Rate Risk
Variations in the discount rate used to compute the present value of the liabilities may seem small, but in practise can have a significant impact on the
defined benefit liabilities.

¢ Future Salary Esealation and Inflation Risk

Since price inflation and salary growth are linked economically, they are combined for disclosure purposes. Rising salaries will often result in higher
future delined benefit payments resulting in a higher present value of liabilities especially unexpected salary increases provided at management's
diseretion may lead to uncertainties in estimating this increasing risk.

2) Asset Risks

All plan assets are maintained in a trust fund managed by a public sector insurer viz; LIC of India. LIC has a sovereign guarantee and has been providing
consistent and competitive returns over the years. The company has opted for a traditional fund wherein all assets are invested primarily in risk averse
markets. The company has no control over the management ol funds but this option provides a high level of safety for the total corpus. A single account is
maintained for both the investment and claim settlement and henee 100% liquidity is ensured. Also interest rate and inflation risk are taken care of,

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss, the funded status and
amounts recognised in balance sheet for the plan,

Net employee benefit expense on account of gratuity recognised in employee benefit expenses

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Current service cost 0.15 -
Net interest (Income) Expense 0.01 -
Net benefit expense 0.16 -
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation ave as follows :

il As at As at
Particulars

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Projected benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 0.02 -
Interest cost 0.01 -
Current service cost 0.15 -
Transler 0.70 -
Remeasurements on obligation - Loss 0.21 -
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 1.09 -
Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
Particulars s Akt

' o Mareh 31,2024 March 31,2023
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year - -
nerest income - -
Contributions - -
Mortality charges and taxes - -
3enelits paid . &
Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognized in Interest Income - (Loss) / Gain - -
Iair value of Plan assets at end of the year - -
Actual return on plan assets - -

Re-measurements Tor the year (Actuarial (gain) / loss)

Particubars March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Lxperience gain on plan liabilities 0.21 -
Demographic gain on plan liabilities - =
Finaneial (loss) /[ gain on plan liabilities 0.01 -
Experience gain / (loss) on plan assets . -
Financial loss on plan assets = =
Note: Amounts seen as (0.00) are below the disclosure threshold of the company.
Amount recognised in the statement of other comprehensive income
W/ March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
® _
Lmeasurement for Cap A U obligation loss 0.21 -
WV lo®@eir - plan assets loss / (gain) - -
al re-measuremeptssedgst for the year recognised in other comprehensive income 0.21 -
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Net Defined Benefit (Asset) for the year

Particula As at As at
arveulars
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

Delined Benefit Obligation 1.09 2
IFair value of plan assets 3 -
Closing net delined benefit (asset) 1.09 -
[
Particulars Asat As at

’ | March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Current 0.12 &
Non-Current 0.98 -

The major categories of pli assets as a percentage ol the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

As at As at
Nature of plan assets March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Funds managed by insurer 100% 100%
Phe principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plan are shown below:
Pavticulars oy As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
00 0‘,’"
Muaortality table IALM(2012-14) ult
Discount rate 7.20% 0.00%
Rate of increase in compensation levels 10.00% 0.00%
FExpected rate ol return on plan assets 0.00% 0.00%
Withdrawal rate 23.00% 0.00%
[lixpcclccl average remaining working lives of employees (in years) I 4.29 *| 0
*1tis actuarially caleulated term of the liability using probabilities of death, withdrawal and retirement.
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 is as shown below:
Assumptions Defined benefit obligation
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Inerease by 100 basis Deerease by 100 basis Increase by 100 basis Decrease by 100 basis
points points points points
Discount Rate
Discount Rate 8.20% 6.20% 0.00% 0.00%
Amoun 1.05 1.16 - -
Salary inerement rate
Salary increment rate 11.00% 9.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Amount I.14 1.06 - -
Withdrawal rate
Withdrawal rate 24.00% 22.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Amount 1.08 .12 - =

Sensitivity analysis indicates the influence of a reasonable change in certain significant assumptions on the outcome of the Present value of obligation and
aids in understanding the uncertainty of reported amounts. Sensitivity analysis is done by varying one parameter at a time and studying its impact,

Lxpected future benelit payments

e following benefit payments, for each of the next five years and the aggregate five years therealler, are expected to be paid:

3 iy s = As at As at
Duration ol defined benelit paym Mareh 31,2024 March 31,2023
Less than | year 0.12 -
_____ | 10 2 years o R 0.11 o -
- B | .53 -
____More than * years 4.82 -
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Leases
he impact of Ind AS 116 on these changes is disclosed below :

AL Right-ol-use assets

Deseription

Right-of-use assets - Leaschold land

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Gross block

Balance at the beginning of the year 9.98 -
Additions during the year - 9.98
Disposals during the year - =
Balance at the end of the year 9.98 9.98
Accumulated depreciztion
Balance at the beginning of the 0.23 -
Charge for the year 0.25 0.23
Disposals during the year & %
Balance at the end of the year 0.48 0.23
. 9.50 9.75
Net Bloek as at the end of the year
A2 Lease dighilities
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current 0.78 0.74
Non Current 9.37 9.29
Total 10.15 10,03
Adclnterest exnenses on lease
As at As at
Muarch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interest on fease liabilities 0.85 0.39
A Expeuses on short teem leases / low value assets
[ As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Short-term lease 5 -
Low value assetls - =
A5 Amounts recoanised in the statement of cash flow
; As at As at
e March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Total cash outfNow lor leases 0.93 0.13
A6, Maturity analysis — contractual undiscounted cash Nows
: As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Less than one vear 0.78 0.74
One o live vears 4.52 3.36
| vlore than live years - 17.64 19.58
l-.!.-.‘?',‘ii. undiscounted lease liabilitics 22.94 23.68
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4

Employee Sharve Based-Payments

Under the Employee stock option scheme-2012("2012 Scheme”) & 2017 ("2017 Scheme), the stock options of the holding company were granted to
certain employees of the company. In the most cases the exercise price of the share option is equal to the market price of underlying shares on the date
of the grant. vesting period of the options are 3 1o 4 years and options are vested qually over the vesting period. Vested options are exercisable as per the
terms of the option plan , provided the employee is in the employment of the company on the date of the vesting of the stock options and should not be
serving his notice period. the fair value of the share options is estimated at the grant date using black- scholes option- pricing model, taking imto
account the term and conditions upon which the share options were granted.

" March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Fiiiieniiing Weighted average exercise Weighted average
’ o price per share per option Number of options exercise price per share Number of options
(Rs) per aption (Rs)
Opening Balance - - - =
| Granted during the year 500 11,563 - -

Forfened during the year - - s z

Exercised during the year - - . -
Expired during the year - - - -
Lapsed during the year - - - -
Closing Balance 300 11,563 - -
No of options exercisable at
the end of the year

Share aptions outstanding at the end of the period have the following expiry date and exereise prices as on March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023:
e Exptes dite Exercise price Options outstanding as at | Options outstanding as at
o SIS ) March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

i 02-Nov-23 02-Nov-24 500.00 2,352 -
02-Nowv-23 02-Nov-25 500,00 2,352 -
02-Nov-23 02-Nov-26 500.00 2,352 -
02-Nov-23 02-Nov-27 500.00 4,707 -

Total 11,763 -

Weighted average remaining contractual life ol the options outstanding at the end of the year 2.39 -

The fair value has been caleulated using the Black Scholes Options Pricing Model and the significant assumptions made in this regard are as follows:

A Grant Dale:-

Particulars I-year vesting 2-year vesting J-year vesting 4-year vesting
Stock Price per share (Rs.) 1,345.30 1,345.30 1,345.30 1,345.30
Standard Deviation (Volatility) 24.99% 31.98% 31.98% 31.98%
Risk-free Rate 7.33% 7.35% 7.36% 7.38%
Exercise Price (Rs.) __500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00
Time to Maturity (in years) 1.50 2.50 3.50 4.50
Dividend yield 0.23% 0.23% 0.23% 0.23%
17air value of option (Rs.) 892.63 922.73 950.73 977.05
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41 Ratio Analysis and its element

Itatio Demol Asat Asat s Change Remarks
March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Current Ratio Current Assels Current Liabilities 192 13.06 -87%|Due to Increase in Trade Payables
and payable for CAPEX and
increase in trade receivables as
operations started in current year
Juity Ratio Total Debt Sharcholders Equity - -
ervice Coverage Ratio unings for debt service = Net profit afier el service = Interest & Lease Payments + - - = |The Companuy do not have any
taxes -+ Non-cash operating expenses Principal Repayments external debt, accordingly debt
service coverage ratio is nil.
Return on Equiry Ratio (94) Net Profits after 1axes — Preference Dividend | Average Sharcholder's Equity -736.35% -1582.56% -53%| Due to increase in share capital on
right issue of shares
Inventory Tumover Rafio Cost of goods sold Average lnventory 0.23 - #HDIV/0! Commencement of plant and
Prod on 01st March 2024
Trnke Receivable Tumover Ratio | Net credi sales = Gross credit sales - sales Average Trade Receivable [ Bd] - HDIV/I0! Commencement of plant and
return Preduction on 015t March 2024
Trade Payvable Tumover Ratio Met credit purchases = Gross credit purchases | Average Trade Payables 1.67 - DIV Commencement of plant and
purchase retum Production an 015t March 2024
Net Capital Turnover Ratio Met sales = Total sales - sales return Working eapital = Current assets — Current 0,07 - #HDIV/0! Commencement of plant and
| ozns linbiliti Prod on O1st March 2024
et Profi Rate (%5) Net Profin After Tax MNet sales = Total sales - sales return -191.21% #DIVIO! HDIVIO! Commencement of plant and
Production on 015t March 2024
Retum on Capital Emploved (%) | Eamings before interest, taxes and dividend | Capital Employed = Tangible Net Worth + -1.38%, -8.39% -Bd%
ineome Total Debt + Deferred Tax Liability Increase in PPE from right issue of
shares and commencement of Plant
and production on 01st March 2024
Returm on Investment (%) Interest (Finance Income) Average Invesiment 0.00% 0.00%: HDIVO!
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42 Other Statutory Information

a) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami
property

b) The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.

¢) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

d) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

¢) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ics), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with
the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
i) dircetly or indireetly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsocver by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or
i) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

[) The Company have not received any fund [rom any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entitics (Funding Party) with the understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
i} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
i) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

g) The Company have no such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the

=}
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

For Sanjay S Rathi & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Clean Fino-Chem Limited
Firm Registration No, 109182W

9@%2}160 _D&?-—— @ﬂ“@'

-
-
Aditya S Rathi Ashok Boob Krishnakumar Boob
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 150097 DIN : 00410740 DIN : 00410672
Place. Pune Place: Pune Place:Pune
Date: 09th May, 2024 Date:09th May,2024 Date:09th May2024
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1. Corporate Information

Clean Fino-Chem Limited is a public company domiciled and headquartered in India. The company is a
subsidiary of Clean Science and Technology Limited,which is a Chemical organisation. The Company
is engaged in manufacturing and sale of various types of speciality chemicals at its manufacturing plants
situated at Kurkumbh MIDC, Daund. Dist: Pune. The Company caters to both domestic and international
markets.

2. Material Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis al preparation and piesentation

a)  Statement of Compliance

The Standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 (as amended from time 1o time) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
presentation requirements ol Division 11 of Schedule T to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant

Schedule ), as applicable to the Company.

The Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 were approved for issue by the
Company’s Board of Directors on May 09, 2024.

b)  Basis of measurement

e Standalone financial staiements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the
iollowing assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value or revalued amount:

i) Certain linancial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding
financial instruments):

i) Asset held for sale measured at lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell;

i) Net defined benefit (asset) / liability that are measured at (air value of plan assets less present

value of delined benelit obligations.

The accounting policies adopted for preparation and presentation of Standalone financial statements have
been consistent with the previous year.

The Standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees () and all values are rounded to the
nearest millions, upto two places of decimal, unless otherwise stated.

2.2 Current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle and other eriteria set out in the Schedule 11 (Division II) to the Companies Act, 2013.
Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation m cash and cash equivalents. the Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months.

2.2 Use of judgements estiniates and assumptions

The |n'cpa|‘:|liun of lhc %lalsui;tlnnc linancial ';talcn'mnl'; in u‘mflwmity wil'h Ind AS l‘cquircq thc
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expenses. current assets. non-current assets, current liabilities, non-current liabilities, and disclosure of
the contingent liabilities at the end of each reporting period. Such estimates are on a reasonable and
prudent basis considering all available information, however, due to uncertainties about these judgments,
estimates and assumptions. actual results could differ from estimates. Information about each of these
estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes.

Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects
on the amounts recognised in the Standalone financial statements is included in the following notes:

¢ Note 40 - classification of (inancial assets: assessment of business model within which the assets are
heid and assessment of whether the contractual terms of the financial asset are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

wsemptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a

material adjustment is included in the following notes:

¢ Note 9 — Valuation of inventories: Allocation of overheads.

e Note 33 — Recognition of tax expense including deferred tax.

¢ Note 35 — Recognition ol contingencies: key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of
oulflow of resources. However, there are no major contingent liabilities as at current financial year
end.

s Note 41 — Impairment of trade receivables: Computation of weighted average loss rate.

s Note 4! — Detined benefit obligation: key actuarial assumptions.

2.3 Revenue recagnition:

Sales are recognised when control of the products has been transferred to the customer, being when the
procucts are delivered to the customer or its authorised representative and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customer’s aceeptance of the products. Revenue is measured based on the
wransaction price excluding taxes. which is the consideration, net of returns, trade discounts, and volume

The sales nmade by the Company may include transport arrangements from third parties. In such cases,
revenue for the supply of such third-party transport arrangements are recorded at gross or net basis
depending o whether the Company is acting as the principal or as an agent of the customer. The Company
recognises revenue for ine gross amount of consideration when it is acting as a principal and at net amount
ol consideration when it is acting as an agent.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered as this is the point in time that the consideration
is uacenditional because only the passage of time is required before the payment is due as per agreed
terms and conditions with the buvers.

Revenue from sale of solar electricity power is recognised on a point in time basis when solar electrical
power is transmitted to Alternating Current Distribution Board (ACDB).
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2.4 laventories

Inventories are valued at cost or net realisabie value whichever is lower after providing for cost of
obsolescence. Cost is determined on a First-in-first-out formula.

Raw materials are valued at cost of purchase net of duties (credit availed w.r.t taxes and duties) and
includes all expenses incurred in bringing the materials to location of use. However, materials and other
ttems held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished
products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost.

Work-in-process (WIP) and linished goods include conversion costs in addition to the landed cost of raw
malerials. Finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. The net realizable value
ol the finished goods is determined with reference to the selling prices of related finished goods.

WIP includes certain inventories used in the production process which has life of more than one year.
These inventories are amortised over its useful life and included as part of cost of production.

Cost of finished goods and work-in-progress comprises cost of raw material and appropriate fixed
production overheads which are allocated on the basis of normal capacity of production facilities and
variable production overheads on the basis of actual production of material and after deduction of the
realisable value of the by-product.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
ol ecompletion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Obsolete and slow-moving inventories are
identified and wherever necessary, such inventories are written oft/provided during the year.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment
: Recognition and measurement

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognised as an asset if, and only if it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably.

Property. plant and equipments are carried at cost which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. ltems of property, plant and equipment are
measured at cost ol acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation and / or accumulated
impairment losses, i any. The cost of an item of property. plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price. including import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies and any directly attributable cost
of bringing the asset to its workmg condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and
removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. Any trade discounts and rebates are
deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the construction of a
quaiifyving asset are capitalisea as part of the cost. The cost ol a sell~constructed item of property, plant
and equipment comprises the cost ol materials and direct labour. any other costs directly attributable to
bringing the item to working condition for its intenided use, and estimated costs of dismantling and
removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. The Company identifies and determines
cost ol'each component/ part of the asset separately. if the component/ part has a cost which is significant
to the total cost of the asset and has uselul life that is materially different from that of the remaining asset.
I'hese components are depreciated separately over their useful lives; the remaining components are
depreciated over the life of the princinal asset.

Property. plant and equipment under construction are disclosed as capital work-in-progress.
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« Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying
amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow
to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are ¢ recoghised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.

* Disposal

A item of property, plant and cquipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of
property. plant and equipment, and are recognised net within other income/ expenses in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

« Depreciation method and estimated uselul lives

Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on the straight-line method on pro-rata basis, over the useful
lives of assets as prescribed in Schedule — I of the Companies Act, 2013 which is as follows:

Type of asset Useful life
(No. of years)
Factory Building 30 years
Non-Factory Buildings 60 years
Plant and Machinery 5-20 years
‘Office Equipment ) 5 years
Vehicles 8-10 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years

Depreciation method, useful iives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted il appropriate.

Lhnpairments of non-financial assets:

The Company assesses at cach balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset or cash
generating unit (CGU) may be impaired. Indefinite life intangibles are subject to a review for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or circumstances indicate that it is necessary. 1fany such indication
exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s or CGU's fair value less costs of disposal or its value in use. Where the carrying amount of
an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount. the asset is considered impaired and is written down to
its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre- tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. In determining faiv value less costs of disposal, recent markel transactions are
considered.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount. hmpairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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exists. an impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined. net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised.

2.6 Other intangible assets:
* Recognition and measurement

intangible assets are recognised when the assel is identifiable, is within the control of the Company, it is
probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Company and
cosi of the asset can be reliably measured.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition atcost. Intangible assets acquired
by the Company that have finite uselful lives are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are
tested for impairment annually. cither individually or at the cash-generating unit level.

Expenditure on research activities is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.
Development expenditure is capitalised only if the expenditure can be measured reliably, the product or
process is technically and commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable, and the
Company intends to complete development and to use or sell the asset.

[ntangible assets which comprize ol the development expenditure incurred on new product and
expenditure incurred on acquisition ol user licenses for computer soltware are recorded at their
acquisition price.

» Subsequent measurement

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in
the specilic asset to which it relates.

« Amaortisation
The usetul lives of intangible assets are assessed based on management estimates.

Intangible assets Le.. computer software is amortized on a straight-line basis over the period of expected
future benelits commencing from the date the asset is available for its use.

Fhe management has estimated the uselul Tife for software & licenses as following,
Asset Class Years
Software & licenses B

Amortication method, uselul lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and
adjusted W appropriate.

Intangible assets are assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired.

» Disposai
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the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss when the agset is derecognized.

2.7 Employee beniefits:
o Shorvi-term employee benefits

Fhe distinetion between short term and long-term employee benefits is based on expected timing of
settiement rathier than the employee’s entitlement benefits. Employee benefits payable wholiy within
twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term eniployee benefits. Such benefits
include saiaries. wages, bonus. short term compensated absences, awards, ex-gratia, performance pay ete.
and are recognised in the period in which the employee renders the related service. The undiscounted
amount of stiort-term employee benefits expeeted to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by
emplovees is recognized during the year. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid
... under short-term cash bonas, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay
this amount as a result of  past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be
estimated reliably.

The emplovees of the Company are entitled to compensated absences. The employees can carry forward
a portion of the unutilized accumulating compensated absences and utilize it in future periods or receive
cashh at retirement or termination of empioyment. The Company records an obligation for compensated
abscaces in the period in which the employee renders the services that increases this entitlement.
Accumuiated compensated absences, which are expested to be availed or encashed within 12 months
from the end of the year are treated as short term empioyee benefits. The obligation towards the same is
measured at the expected cost ¢f accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount expected
to be paid ax a result of the unused entitlement as at the year end.

s Post-evaployment benelits
Delined contribution plans

Contributions to the provident fund and superannuation schemes which is defined contribution scheme,
are recognised as an emplovee betefit expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which
the contribution is due. Contributions are made in accordance with the rules of the statute and are
recognised as expenses when cinployees render service entitling them to the contributions. The Company
has no oblication: ather than the contribution payable to the provident fund.

I the conaribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the
contribution already paid. the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting
the contribution already paid. I the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services
received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-
pavment wiil lead to. for example. a veduction in future payment or a cash retund.

Defined benelit plans

The cmployees” gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan which is administered by a trust formed for
this purpose through the group schemes of Life insurance Corporation of India (1L.1C). The present value
of the obligation under such defined benefit plans is determined based on actuarial valuation using the
projected unit eredit method. which recognises each period of service as giving rise o additional unit of
emplovee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.
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The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated Tuture cash flows. The discount rates
used for determitiing the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans, is based on the market
yiclds on government securities as al the reporting date. having maturity periods approximating to the
terms of related obligations.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effeet of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefil liability), are recognised
immediately in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through other
comprehensive income (OCI) in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to
the Statement of Profit and Loss in subsequent periods

In case of funded plans, the fair value of the planned assets is reduced from the gross obligation under
the defined benelit nlans. to recovnise the obligation on net basis.
t ? « e

When the benefits of the plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed. the resulting change in benefits
that relates (o past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in the Statement
of Profit and Loss. Net interest is caleulated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit
lability or asset. The Company recognises gains/ losses on seltlement of a defined plan when the

settfement oceurs.,
» Other long-term employee benelits

Phe liabilities for carned leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of
the reporting period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as
the present value of expected fuiure payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees
up (o the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method as determined by actuarial
valuation. The benefits are discounted using the market yiclds at the end of the reporting period that have
terms approximating the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience
adjustments and change in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The
obligations are presented as current liabilities in the Balance Sheet if the entity does not have an
anconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of
when the actual settlement is expected to oceur.

o Terminution benefils

lermination benefits are expensed at the earlier of when the Company can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Company recognizes costs for a restructuring. If benefits are not expected
(o be settled wholly within 12 months of the reporting date, then they are discounted.

2.8 Employee Share-based Payments

Equity-scitled share-based payments to employees are measured at the fair value of the options at the grant
date.

The fair value of option at the grant date is expensed over the respective vesting period in which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied with a corresponding increase in equity as “Employee Stock
Options Account”. In case of forfeiture of unvested option, portion of amount already expensed is reversed.
In a situation where the vested option forfeited or expires unexercised, the related balance standing to the
credit of the “Employee Stock Options Account™ are transferred to the “Retained Earnings”.
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When the options are exercised. the Company issues new equity shares of the Company of Rs. 1/- each
fully paid-up. The proceeds received and the related balance standing to credit of the Employee Stock
Options Account, are credited to share capital (nominal value) and Securities Premium Account.

Sce Note 48 — Employee Share-based Payments for further details.
2.9 Income fixes:

(heoire tax expense comprises carrent and deferved tax, It is recoprised in the Statement of Profit and

Loss excepl o the extent that it refates 1o a business combination or items recognised directly in equity or

i other comprehensive mecme (OC),

 Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year
and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current
tax reflects the best astimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the
uncertainty, it any. related Lo income taxes. Current tax assets and lia bilities are measuied at the amount
expected 1o be recovered from or paid (o the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the aimount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the
country where the Company operates and generates taxable income. Current tax assets and liabilities are
affset only if there is a legally enforeeable right to set it off the recognised amounts and it is iniended to
realise the asset and settle the Hability on a net basis or simultancously.

« Deferred tax

Deterred tax is provided using the balance sheet method on temporary differences between the tax base
of assets and tiabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

- Temporary differences related 1o investments in subsidiaries, associates, and joint arrangements to the
extent that the Company is able t control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred (ax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the cdrry forward of unused
tax credits and any unused fax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that 1axable profit will be ‘available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses (including unabsorbed depreciation) can be utilised.

excepl:

-~ When the deferred tax assel elating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition ol an asset or Hability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction. aftects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

The carrving amount of deierred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent

that it is 1o loager probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the

deferred tax asset 1o be utitised. tnrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred
tax assel o be recovered,

eferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
\realised or the liability is settled. based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

= (FRN. 109182W) &
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substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Delerred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset it a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profil or loss is recognised outside profit or loss.
Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly
in equity.

2,10 Earnings per share (EPS):

Basic EPS is caleulated by dividing the profit for thie year aitributable to equity holders of the Company
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus clements and stock split in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares. The
welghted average number ol equity shares outstandipg during the period and for all periods presented is
adjusted tor events, such as bonus shares and stock split, other than the conversion of potential equity
shares that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding. without a corresponding change in

FesQurces,
Diluted EPS adjust the figures used in the determination of basic EPS to consider.

e The alter-income tax effect ot mterest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential
equity shares, and

e The weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.11 Provision and continecat liabilities / assets:

A provision is iecogrised when e Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
offa past everd, itis probable tiat ain outflow of rescurces embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions
are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance
sheet date. The provisions are measured on an undiscounted basis.

Contimgent liabilities are obligations arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Company,

Contingent liability 1s disclosed in case of

- a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation.

- a possibie obligation arising from past events where the probability of outflow of resources is not
remote.

Contingent assel is not recognised in the Standalone financial statements. A contingent asset is disclosed,
where an inflow of economic beaelits is probable.

i contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.
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2.12  Leases

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a conwact is, or contains, a lease. A contract
is. or contains. a lease il the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
ol time in exchange for consideration

Contpany as a lessee

ithe Company recognises a righi-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The
right- (;Ilus‘c asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of’ costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the
enderlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset s subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the uselul life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the
lease terim. The estimated usclul lives of right-of-pse assets are determined on the same basis as those of
property and equipment. tn addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses,
ilany. and adjusted for certain ~emeacurements of the lease liability,

The tease Hability is initially mcasured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be
readilv: determined. the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its
incremiental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

[Lease payvments included in the micasurement of the lease lability comprise the following:

- fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments.

- variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or
rate as at the commencement date.
amounts expected lo be pavable under a residual value guarantee; and

- the exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease
payments in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension
option. and penalties for carly termination of a lease unless the Company is reasonably certain not
to teriminate carly.

The leasc liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 1t is remeasured
when there is a change in future lease paymenis arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a
chanee i the Company “s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee,
or il'the Cormpany changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination
aption.

When the lease Hability is remcasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset or is recorded in prefit or loss il the carrying amount of the right-of-use
assel has been reduced 1o zero

Leaschold fand is amortised over the period of lease.

Shori-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases
thaprea jease term of l" months or less and leases of fow-value assets. The Company recognises the
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2.13 ifair value measurenicnt

Fair value is the price that would be recetved to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
-1 the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

Fhe principar o the most advaniageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an
asset or a liabiiy s micasured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or hability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. A fair value
measurement of a non-financial asset considers a market participant’s ability to generaie economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another.

ihe Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstainces and for which
1 are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minnising the use of unobservablie inputs.

uificiont data

« Level | - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

+ Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are observable for the asset or
liability. either directly (i.c. as prices) or indirecetly (i.e. derived from prices).

* Level 3 - inputs for the asset or Hability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

When measuring the fair value ol an asset or a Liability, the Company uses observable market data as far
as possinie o the mputs used to measure the fair valie of an asset or a liability fall into different levels
obthe Farr vaiue hicrarchy. then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level
of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measuremeit.

For assets and liabilities that are recagnised in the Standalone financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Company determines whether ransfers have oceurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end ol tach reporiing period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities based
on the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above,

.04 Foreiga currency transactions

Franactions i foreign currencios are translated inio the respective functional currency of the Company at
the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary asseis and labilities denominated in foreign currencies ace translated into the functional currency
atihe exchange rate af the reperting date: Mon-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value
i aforeign currency are translated into the functiona! currency at the exchange rate when the fair value
wis determined. Non-monetary items that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are
tanslated ai the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency differences are generally
Leemiaisend 1 the Statement of Profit and Loss.

R,
9% qo
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218 Finaact) instraments
2LEE01 Finaaciai assets
fnitiat recognition and measurement

A financial instrument is any conwact that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
lability or equity instrument of cnother entity. Al financial assets are recognised initially at fair value
pius except for trade receivables which are initially measured at wransaction price, in the case of financial
assets not recorded at faiv value through profit or loss. transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurenient

For purposes of subsequent imeasurcment, financial assets are classified in one of the three categories:
a) Av amortised cost

by At tair value through Other Comprehensive Income (CFVTOCT)

¢) A Tade value through prolit or toss CFVTPLTY)

(a) Financial assets classified as measured at amortised cost
A financial asset shall be measired at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in
order to colleet contractual cash flows and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
paymnents of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Alter initial measurement. sucl: lnancial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
elffective interest rae (CEIRY) wethod, less impairment charge. Amortised cost is calculated by
considering any discount or preminm on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the FIR.
T he B amertisation is included in finance expense/ (income) in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The
losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This category
generally applies to trade receivables, security and other deposits receivable by the Company.

Interest income or expenseis ceconnised using the effective interest rate method. The ‘effective interest
rafe’ is the vate that exactly discounts estimated lature cash receipts or payments through the expected
file of the financial mstrument 1o

- the wross corrving amount ol the financial asset; or
- the amortised cost of the finarcial Hability.
(b)) Winancial assets classificd ws waeasured at FYOC1

raneial asset ig measured G tair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a
business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
Dnancial assers and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
tal are solely paymems of prineipal and imerest on the principal amount outstanding. Further, the
Lumpdn\ makes such election o an instrument-by-instrument basis. for its investments whmrl are

Sged as cquity instruents. the subsequent chaages in fair value are recogaized in other
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comprehensive income. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition ol impairment gains or losses and interesi revenue which are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recoenised i OCT s reclassilicd from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/ (losses).
fnterest mcomie from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate
method.

(¢) Financial assets classified as measured at FVTPL

Assets that do not meet the eriteria for amortised cost or FYOCT are measured at fair value through profit
or foss. A gain or loss on a matual fund investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through
profitor foss is recognised in profit or loss and presented net in the Statement of Profii and Loss within
other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Dividends are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss only when the right to receive payment is
establishied, and it is probable that ithe economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Company and that the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

De-recognition of financial assct

e Company derecognises o Hinancial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
Financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows i a transaction in
whici substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
and does not retain control of the linancial agset.

[f the Company enters into transactions whereby it wansfers assets recognised on its Balance Sheet but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the translerred
assels are not derecognised.

[mpairment of financial assets
The Company assesses impairment based on expected credit loss (‘ECL’) model on the following:

- Financial assets that are measured at amortised cost; and
- Financial assets measured at IF'V1OCI

e Company follows “simplilied approach™ for recognition ol impairment loss allowance on Trade
receivables,

The application ol simplified approach does not require the Cempany to track changes in credit risk.
Rathier. it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at cach reporting date, right
fron: its initial recognition. For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets the Company
recognises 12 month expected credit losses for all originated or acquired financial assets if at the
reporting date, the eredit risk has not increased significantly since its original recognition. However, if’
credit risk has increased significanthy lifetime ECL is used. ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal)
ized in the Staiement of Proiit and Loss.
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2,152 Vingucal Babilities
Initial recognition and measarement

Financial liabilities are classiiied, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss. loans and borrowings. payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedee, as appropriate,

All Tmancial labilities are recocenised mitially at fair value ind, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payvables. netol directly attributable and incremental transaction cost. The Company’s financial liabilities
inelude trade and other payables. foans and borrewings and derivative financial instruments.

Amortised cost is calceulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or

costs that are an integral part ol the EIR. The EiR amortisation is included as finance costs in the

Statement ol Prolit and Loss,

Fie Conpony™s financial labiitties include trade and other pavables, loans and borrowings including
pay g g

oanis overdealts, fnancial guarantee contracts,
Financial itabilities at FYTPL

Pimancial liabilities at FVTPL inciude financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
destonated as such apon initial recognition. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they
are inewrred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category aiso inciudes derivative
nnancial instriments entered inio by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge

retniionships as defined by Ind AN 109,
Giains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financiai liabilities designated as such upon initial recognition at the initial date of recognition if the
criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses
attributable to changes in own credit risks are recognised in OCI, These gains/ losses are not subsequently
tansteired 1o the Statement ol Profitand Loss. However, the Company may transler the cumulative gain
or foss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such lability are recognised in the Statement of
Prant and | oss. :

(a) Financial linbilities at amortised cost

Fhe Company generally classilies interest bearing borrowings as linancial liabilities carried at amortised
cost. After initial recognition. these instruments are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
cllective interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
wiren the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an inteeral part o the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition of financial Habiity
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o when tis extingushed e, wihen thie obliation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled

Or expires

Whea ar exisiing financial hability is replaced by another froni the samie lender on substantially differcit
termis, or tie terms of an existing labitity are substaitially modified. such an exchange or modification
5 treatea as the derceognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recoghnised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Siffsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial labilities are offset and the act amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to ofiser the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
seitle ona ned basis, to realise the assets and selile the liabilities sinultaneously.

Devivative finuncial instrunicns

The Combany enters into certain Jerivative contracts to hedge risks which are not designated as hedges.
Fhe Company holds decivative [inancial instruments te hedge its foreign currency and interest rate risk
exposures. Fmbedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for separately if
the hosteantract is not a financis] daseet and certain crieria are net.

Derivatives are initiaily mcasuced at foir value. Subsequent 1o initial recognition, derivatives are
measured ot faic vaiue, and chanees therein are generally recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Finapciai cuonmee contraets:
Financial gnarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that reqoire specified payments
o be made o reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specitied debtor fails to make a

pavment when due in accordance with the terms ol a debt instrument,

Fiameial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable 1o the issuance of the guarantec.

Subsequemly. the liability is measured at the higher of the amount ol loss allowance determined as per
impzivinent requirements of Tud AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation,

Where rarantees incelation to loans or other pavables ol subsidiaries are provided for no compensation,
the Fan v edids are accounted (o as contributions and recognised a¢ fees receivable under “other financial
s 28 or as u part of the cost ot the investment. depending on the contractual terms.

2,16 Segmeat reporting

Operating segnients are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker. '

The Managzing Director of the Company has been identified as being the Chiel operating decision maker
by the management of the Company.

247 Governorent (G rants:
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Statement of Profit and Loss over the periods necessary to match them with the related costs which they
intend to compensate.

Export Incentives

Export incentives under various schemes notified by the government are recognised when no significant
uncertainties as to the amount of consideration that would be derived and that the Company will comply
with the conditions associated with the grant and ultimate collection exist.

2,08 Cash and cash equivalenis:

Cash and ecash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of not more than three months. which are subject to an insignificant

risk of chanves in value.
2.19 Cash fiow statement:

Cash Flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net Profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, such-as deferrals or aceruals of past or future operating cash
receipls oF fayviments and items of income or expenses assoctated with investing or financing cash flows.
i statements ol cash Mows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as
detiied sbove netoi outstanding bank overdrafis as they are considered as integral part of the Company’s

sl iandgement,
2.20 Adoption of new accounting principle:

Deferred tax related to assets and liabilitics arising from a single transaction (amendments to Ind AS 12
-Income Taxes). The amendments clarified that lease transactions give rise to equal and offsetting
temporary differences and financial statements should reflect the future tax impacts of these transactions
through recognizing deferred tax. The Company has adopted this amendment effective 1 April 2023.
The company previously accounted for deferred tax on leases on a net basis. Following the amendments,
the company has recognized a separate deferred tax asset in relation to its lease liabilities and a deferred
tax liability in relation 1o its right-to-use assets.

2.21 Recent Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended
March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards
applicable to the Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF CLEAN SCIENCE PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of CLEAN SCIENCE PRIVATE LIMITED,
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of
Cash Flows ended on that date, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2024, the Profit and total
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(“SA”s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAl’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements,

Information Other than the Financial Statement and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other information and
presentation of its report (herein after called as “Board Report”) which comprises various information
required under section 134(3) of the Companies Act 2013 but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the Other Information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.




In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the Other
Information and in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement in this Other Information; we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s and Board of Director’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in equity
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal




o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management

s Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant  ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable.

(A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢. The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss (including
other comprehensive income), the standalone statement of changes in equity and the
standalone statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the books of account

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (A ules,
2014




e.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st
March, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31st March, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

a. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial

C.

d.

€.

position.

The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

i. The Management has represented that ,to the best of its knowledge and belief as
disclosed in notes to accounts, no fund have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other source or kind of
funds) by the company to or in any other person or entities including foreign
entities ( Intermediaries) with the understandings , whether recorded in writings or
otherwise ,that the intermediary shall ,directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company ( “ultimate beneficiary”) or provide any guarantee security or the like to or
on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

ii. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in financial statements, no funds have been received by the company
from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

iii. Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances performed by us, nothing has come to our notice
that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii)
above contain any material misstatement

No Dividend Is declared and paid during the year by the company.




f Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility except that audit trail was not enabled at the
database level to log any direct changes for the accounting software used for
maintaining the books of account. For accounting software for which audit trail
feature is enabled, the audit trail facility has been operating throughout the year for
all relevant transactions recorded in the software and we did not come across any
instance of audit trail feature being tampered with during the course of our audit.

For M/s Sanjay S Rathi & Co;
Chartered Accountants
FRN - 109182W

=2l

CA Sanjay S Rathi
Partner
M. No - 042436

Place of Signature: Sangamner
Date: 14/05/2024




ANNEXURE A TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Annexure Referred to in our Independent auditors’ Report paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other
Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of CLEAN SCIENCE

PRIVATE LIMITED of even date

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and
the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

@

(i)

(i)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(@)

(b)

(@)

The company does not have Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(i) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020
are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into Bill to Ship to transaction during the year. Due to such
kind of business operations the company does not have any physical inventory and hence
reporting under clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

During the year, the company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of
5 crore rupees, in aggregate, from any bank or financial institution hence the reporting
under Clause No 3 (ii) (b) of the order is not applicable to the company

The company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Therefore,
Paragraph 3(iii) (a), (b), (c), (d), (¢) and (f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has no loans,
investments, guarantees or security where provisions of section 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are to be complied with. Therefore Paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is
not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
under the directives of the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76
or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed
thereunder, where applicable. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are
not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, the Central Government has not specified
maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of
Company’s products/ services. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are
not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company is regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’
state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value
added tax, cess and any other statutory dues, as applicable and as amounts deducted /
accrued in the books of account, with the appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.




(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues in respect of
Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-
tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other
statutory dues that have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account
of any dispute.

(vii)  According to the information and explanation given to us, company has no transactions,
not recorded in the books of account have been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961);

(ix)

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company did not have any loans or
borrowings from any lender during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

(c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no
outstanding term loans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under clause
3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) The Company has not raised any short term loans and hence, reporting under clause
3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

(¢) The Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to
meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Hence reporting
under clause 3(ix) (e) of the Order is not applicable

() The Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence reporting on clause
3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

(x)
(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause
3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible)
during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(xi)
(a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

() No whistle-blower complaints, received during the year by the company;

(xii) ~ Company is not a Nidhi Company, accordingly provisions of the Clause
is not applicable to the company:




(xiii)

(xiv)

(xvi)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not
undertaken any transactions with related parties as mentioned in Section 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013, accordingly the provisions of clause 3(xiii) of the Order are not
applicable to the company;

In our opinion, the company has no internal audit system commensurate with the size
and the nature of its business.

In our opinion during the year the company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with directors or persons connected with him and accordingly, the provisions
of clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

(@) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the

Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the
Order is not applicable.

(b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting
under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit
and the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable;

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on
our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report indicating that company is incapable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

The provisions of Section 135 towards corporate social responsibility are not applicable on
the company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable.

For M/s Sanjay S Rathi & Co;

C

FRN - 109182W

CA Sanjay S Rathi
Partner
M. No - 042436

Place of Signature:

D

hartered Accountants

=M

ate: 14/05/2024




Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the standalone financial statements of
CLEAN SCIENCE PRIVATE LIMITED for the year ended 31 March 2024

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid standalone financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of CLEAN
SCIENCE PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of
the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at
31 March 2024, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.




We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For M/s Sanjay S Rathi & Co;
Chartered Accountants
FRN - 109182W

S

CA Sanjay S Rathi
Partner
M. No - 042436

Place of Signature: Sangamner
Date: 14/05/2024




Clean Science Private Limited (CIN : U74900PN2013PTC149834)

Standalone Balance Sheet
(All amounts are in rupees thousand,unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Note
ASSETS
Current assets
Financial assets
(i) Investments 3 7,642.56 7,083.92
(i1) Cash and cash equivalents 4 54.67 70.12
Other current assets , »
Total current assets 7,697.22 7,154.04
l'otal assets 7,697.22 7,154.04
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 5 9.815.00 9.815.00
Other equity 6 (2,510.34) (2,905.42)
Total equity 7,304.66 06,909.58
Liabilities
Non-current linbilities
Delerred tax liabilities (Net) 7 363.06 222.46
Total non-current liabilities 363.06 222.46
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Trade payables &
a) total vutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 29.50 22.00
b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and -
small enterprises
Total current liahilitics 29.50 22.00
Total linbilities 392.56 244.46
Total equity and liabilities 7,697.22 7.154.04
Significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements
As per our report of even date attached
For M/s Sanjay S Rathi & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Clean Science Private Limj

Firm registration no. 109182W

oo

CA Sanjay S Rathi
Partner
Membership No. 42436

(o’

Krishnakumar Boob
Director
DIN : 00410672

Place : Pune Place : Pune
Date : l4th May,2024 Date : 14th May,2024

Place : Pune
Date : [41h May,2024
ICAI UDIN -




Clean Science Private Limited (CIN : U74900PN2013PTC149834)

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss
(All amounts are in rupees thousand,unless otherwise stated)

Year Ended Year Ended
Note 31-03-2024 31-03-2023

Income
Revenue from operations 9 1,020.05 -
Other income 10 558.64 322.84
Total income 1,578.69 322.84
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed - =
Purchases of Stock-in-trade 1,000.05
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress - -
Employee benefits expenses - -
Finance costs - -
Depreciation and amortisation expenses - -
Other expenses 11 42.96 40.75
Total expenses 1,043.01 40.75
Profit / (Loss) before tax 535.68 282.09
Tax expense:

Current tax " %

Deferred tax 7 140.60 81.25
Profit / (Loss) for the year (A) 395.08 200.84
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
(i) Remeasurements of defined benefit liability / (asset) - -
(i) Income tax relating to remeasurements of defined benefit liability / (asset) - -
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year (B) - -
Total comprehensive income for the year (A+B) 395.08 200.84
Earnings per equity share
[nominal value of Rs, 10]
Basic 12 0.40 0.20
Diluted 0.40 0.20
Significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements
As per our report of even date attached
For M/s Sanjay S Rathi & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Clean Science Private Limited

Firm registration no. 109182W

ﬁ% v

CA Sanjay S Rathi

Krishnakumar Boob

Partner Director Director_
Membership No, 42436 DIN : 00410672 DIN : 67351154
Place . Pune Place : Pune Place : Pune

Date : 14th May,2024 Date : 14th May,2024 Date : 14th May,2024

ICATUDIN :




Clean Science Private Limited (CIN : U74900PN2013PTC149834)

Standalone Statement of Cash Flows
{All amounts are in rupees thousand,unless otherwise stated)

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Net profit / (loss) before taxation

Non-cash adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Fair value gain on instruments designated through fair value through profit and loss
(FVTPL)

Operating profit before working capital changes

Movement in working capital:

Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables

Cash generated from operations
Net income tax (paid)
Net cash flow generated from operating activities (A)

B. Cash flow from investing activities
Net cash flow (used in) investing activities (B)

C. Cash flow from financing activities
Net cash flow (used in)/from financing activities (C)

Net increase / (decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

Notes:-

Cash on hand
Balances with bank
- Current accounts

Signilicant accounting policies
I'he accompanying notes form an integral part ol the Standalone Financial Statements
As per our report of even date attached

For M/s Sanjay S Rathi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration no. 109182W

= ol

CA Sanjay S Rathi
Partner

Membership No. 42436

Date : 14th May,2024
ICATUDIN -

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
535.68 282.09
(558.64) (322.84)
(22.96) (40.75)
7.50 (4.15)
(15.46) (44.90)
(15.46) (44.90)
(15.46) (44.90)
70.12 115.02
54.67 70.12
54.67 70.12
54.67 70,12
Note 2

Clean Science Private Limited

For and on behalf of the Board of Dircw

"
Krishnakumar Boob
Director
DIN : 00410672

Place : Pune
Date : 14th May,2024

smw
Direcior
DIN : 02351154

Place : Pune
Date : 14th May,2024



Clean Science Private Limited (CIN UT4900PN2013PTC149834)
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity
(Al amounts are m rupees thousand,unless otherwise stated)

(0} Equity share capital

m equity share capital due o prior period errors
ed balance at the beginning of the reporting year
Changes in equity share capital during the year

Balance at the end of the reparting period/year

As at March 31, 2024 Asat March 31,2023

Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
9,81,500  98,15,000 9,81,500 98,15,000
9,81,500  98,15,000 9,81,500 98,15,000

9.81,500  98,15,000 9,81,500 98,15,000
———

(I} Other equity

Particubins

Babance ar 1 April 2022
Profit{Luss) for the year

Balance at 31 Maveh 2023

wee al 1 Apil 2023
Profit Loss) for the year

Balance at 31 Mar 2024

Significant accounting policies

Aal i

Reserves amd surplus
Surplus / (Deficit) of profit mul loss
~Becount

(3,106.26)
200 84

(2,905.42)

(2,905.42)
395.08

(2,510.34)

Naowe 2

Ihe aecompanying notes form an integral part of the §
As per our report of even date attached

For Mis Sanjay S Rathi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration no. 1091 82W

A Sanjay 8 Rathi
Pariner
Membership No. 42436

Place . Pune
Date - 14th May,2024
ICAL UDIN

For and on behalf of the Board of Divectors of
Clean Science Private Limited

0
IC»;slmukmnnr Boob

" _Aiddhartha Sikchi
Director Director
DIN : 00410672 DIN : 02351

Place™: Pune
Date © [4th May,2024

Place : Pune
Date : 14th May,2024




Clean Science Private Limited (CIN : UT4900PN2013PTC149834)
Notes to Standal I cial Stant nis
(AN mounts are i rupees thousand,unless otherwise stated)

Investments

3 A Investments carvied at air value through profit & loss (FVTPL)
Investment in mutual funds - Quoted
1,24,556 (31 March 2024: 1,24,556) units of Kotak Banking and
PSU Debt Fund Direct Growth

4 Cushoand eash equivalents

Cash on hand
Balance with banks
In curvent accounts
On deposin accounts (with original maturity of 3 months or less)

Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
7,642.56 7.083.92
7,642.56 7,083,92

54.67

70.12

54.67

70.12




Clean Science Private Limited (CIN : UT4900PN2013PTC149834)

Nutes to St Financial Stat
(AT amounts are in rupees thousand,unless otherwise stated)

5 Equity share capital

Particulars

Outstanding at the beginning of the year

res issued during the year in consideration for cash

ng at the end of the year

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Authorised :
2,000,000 (31 March 2024 - 2,000,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each, 20,000 20,000
TOTAL 20,000 20,000
Issued and subseribed and i up
YB1.500 (31 March 2024 : 981,500) equity shares ol Rs. 10 each Tully paid-up 9,815 9,815
TOTAL 9,815 9,815
Reconciliation of number of shares out ding at the | ing and end of the year
Equity sharve : Asai Agat

March 31, 2024

9.81,500

March 31, 2023

9,81,500

9,81,500

9,81,500

Terms / Rights attached to ench elasses of shares

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company las a single class of equity shares. Accord
the paid-up equity capital of the Company

On winding up of the Company, the holders of equity shy
preferential imounts in proportion to the number of equity shares held,

Sharenalders holding more than 5% shares in the Com fany is sct out below:

v. all equity shares rank equally with regard (o dividends
assets. The cquity shares are entitled 1o receive dividend as declared from time 1o time, The voting rights of an equity sh

and share in the Company’s residual
archolder are in proportion 1o its share of

5 will be entitled 1o receive the residual assets of the Company, remaining afler distribution of all

_Equity shares of Rs 10 ench fully paid Asat As at
Murch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Number of shares Yin Number of shares Yo
Clean Science and Technology Limited {Erstwhile known as ‘Clean 9.81,500 100% 9.81,500 100%,
bigicnc:: and Technology Private Limited")
Asat As at
Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
6 Other equity

Surplus of profit and loss account

Balance as at the beginning of the period/year (2,905,42) (3,106.26)
Add - Profit / (Loss) for the vear 395.08 200,84
Balance as ot the end of the year (2,510.34) (2,905.42)




Clean Seience Private Limited {CIN ; U'?-(?l)[ll'NIUIJI"[‘CI4‘)834}
Notes to Standal
(Al amounts are in rupees the

al St nis

and unless otherwise stated)

7 Deferved tax

Deferved tax liabilities (DTL)
Mutual funds designated at fair value through profit and loss

Movement in tempora ry differences:

Deferred tax liabilities (DTL)
Mutual funds designated at fair value through profit and loss

Deferved tax liabilities (DT1)
Mutual funds designated at Fair value through profit and loss

8 Trade payables

Asat Asat
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
363.06 22247
363.06 222,47
Recognised in - Recognised in OC]
% profitorloss  during the year March 31,
¥ 0
April 01,2023 during the 2024
year
22247 140,60 - 363.06
222,47 140.60 - 363.06
R ised in Recognised in OCI

April 01, 2022 profit or loss

during the year

March 31,

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer note 13)

Toral

ling dues of

Treade Payable Ageing Schedule

As at 31 March 2024

s other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

during the 2023
vear
141.21 81.25 - 22247
14121 81,25 - 222.47
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
29.50 22.00
29,50 22.00

Particulars

Current but

Outstanding for following pe

viods from due date of payment

(Amount in Rs,)

Less thy
ot due szt 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 yeurs Total
year
Total outstanding for MSME due 29,50 - - - - 2950

Tatal ou m:ﬁ!'i-ng for :HE'_I-I'.;IM MSME due

As at 31 Mareh 2023

Particulars

OQuistanding for following periads from the due date of payment

{(Amount in Rs.)

Current but

Less than 1
not due

year

1-2 years 2.3 years

More than 3 years

Tatal

al outstanding for MSME due

22.00 -

22,00

al owstanding for other than MSME due




Clean Science Private Limited (CIN : U'N90(IPN2UI3I"I‘(.‘I~l9834)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements
(All amounts are in rupees thousand,unless otherwise stated)

9 Revenue from operations

Sale of products

1 Other income

Fair value gain on instruments designated through fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

11 Other expenses

Payment to auditors
Bank charges
Consultancy fees

Payment to auditors
As auditor
Statutory audit fees

Year Ended Year Ended
31-03-2024 31-03-2023
1,020.05
1,020.05
31-03-2024 31-03-2023
558.64 322.84
558.64 322.84
31-03-2024 31-03-2023
17.70 17.70
0.65 0.65
24.61 22.40
42,96 40.75
17.70 17.70
17.70 17.70




Clean Science Private Limited (CIN: ll'frl‘)(llll’i\’ﬂl|3I"l‘('.‘|4‘)?£34)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements
(All amounts are in rupees thousand,unless otherwise stated)

12 Earnings per share

Year Ended
== &
Particulars 31-03-2024 31-03-2023
Profits attributable to equity sharcholders
Prolit for basic carning per share of Rs, 10 each
Profit for the year 3,95,082 2,00,837
Basic earnings per share
| Weighted average number of cquity shares outstanding during the year 9.81,500 9,81,500
Basic EPS (Rs.) 0.40 0.20
Diluted earnings per share
Profit for the year 3,95,082 2,00,837
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the 9.81,500 9.81,500
|year for diluted EPS
Diluted LEPS (Rs.) 0.40 0.20
13 Disclosures requived under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
Particulars 31-03-2024 31-03-2023

Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the year

Trade payables

Capital creditors
Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the year

Trade payables

Capital creditors
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section |6 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act 2006
The amount of payment made to micro and small supplier beyond the appointed day during each
accounting year,
The amount of interest due and payable for period of delay in making payment (which have been
paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified
under MSMED Aet 2006
The amount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year.
The amount of Further interest remaining due and payable even in the suceeeding year, until such
date when the interest dues as above are actually paid 1o the small enterprises for the purpose of
disallowance as o deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006,

14 Related party diselosures

() List of related parties and desceription of relationship:

Holding company
Clean Science and Technology Limited (Erstwhile known as 'Clean Science and Technology Private Limited")

Fellow subsidinries

1. Clean Seience Private Limited
2. Clean Organics Private Limited
3. Clean Fino-Chem Limited

Key Management Personnel (KMP)
L. Mr. Ashok Boob

2 Mr. Siddhartha Sikehi

3 Mr Krishnakumar Boob

(h) Related party transactions during the year : nil

(¢} Balances outstanding at the end of the year: nil




Clean Seience Private Limited (CIN = U’?-{SNJI]I'N}DIJI'T'CNQRJ-I}

Notes 1o ihe

alone Financial Statements (contined)

(AL wmounts are in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

IS Ratio Anulysis and jis element

Ratio

Current Ratio

el US L

Debt-Equity Rano

Prebt Service Coverage Ranio

-'i:-;um on Equity Ratio (%)

Inventory Tumover Ratio
Trade Receivable Tumover Ratio

Trade Pavable Tumeover Ratio

FE\:I_L apital Tumover Ratip

Numerator Demoninator Asat Asat ¥ Change Remarks
Maweh 31,2024 | March 31 2023
Current Assets Current Liabulities 260,92 325.18 -20%
Total Debt | Sharcholders Fqu - - -
Earmings for debt service = Net profit afier Debi servie crest & Lease Payments + - - -
taxes + Non-cash i Principal Repayments
Net Profits after taxes - Preference Dwvidend [ Average Shareholder's Equity 5.56% 2.95% 88% | Due to increase in fair value zain on
investments designated through fair value
through profit and loss (FVTPL)
Cost of goods sold Average Inventory - - -
Net credit sales = Gross gredit sales - sales | Average Trade Receivable B -
relum
Net eredit purchases = Gross credit purclhases Average Trade Payables - - -
purchase retum
Met sales = Total sales - sales return ¥ Waorking capital = Current assers - Current 013 - -
_ {liabilities Due to increase in sales
| Net sales = Total sales - sales retum 873 - - |Due to increase in sales
Eamings before interest, taxes Capital Employed = Tangible Net Worth + Total 6.99% 1.96% 7% Due to increase in fair value Bain on

income

Debt + Deferred Tax Liability

investments designated through fair value
|through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Iinvestment

4.7%

63%|Incrense in return




Clean Science Private Limited (CIN ; U?-i'JU{II'NZl)UI"['(.'I4‘)834)
Notes (o Stand, I ial Stat

(Al simounts are in tupees thousand,unless otherwise stated)

16 Financial instruments

16,1 Finaneial instrun ents by category

The carying value of financial instruments by eategories are as follows -

._._______.-___.-——____[—————-_.__
As at

31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

BT —————

r Ve, Amaortised cost Total carrying value FYTPL Amortised cost Total carrying
e o value
Category Level 2 Level 2
Assety
1642 56 - 7643 7,084 - 7,084
" 55 5§ - 70

T e 55 7,697 7,084 70 7,154
Trade payables - - - - = .
Total lin hilities | - - = E P =

16.2 Fair value hierarchy

hassets and financial Fabilities measured at amortised cost :

Fair value of fi

The mansgement believes that the fair values of curremt linancial assets ez cash and cash equivalents) and current financial liabilities (e.g. trade payables) approximate their canying

amounts largely due to the short term nature.

16,3 Financial rvisk nunagement
The Company's activities exposes it to credit risks and liquidity risks. The Company's management have overall re ponsibility for the establish and oversight of the Company’s risk
Ii ork. The Company’s risks are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the company’s activities,

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instrumen

A Credit risk

Credit risk 1s the risk of fuaneial losses to the Company if a custo
e this, the C
is the impainment loss or gain.

the Company s receivables from customers, T'o o
the Company uses expected credit loss model 1o 4

o Thie company has not made any provision on expected credit loss on trade re
il Credit risk on ¢
domestic credit ry

ng agencies,

k

b Liquidity ri

or counterparty to fnancial instruments fails to discharge its contractual obligations. It arises pri
pany periodically assesses the key accounts receivable bulances. As per Ind-AS 109 : Financial Instruments,

ily from

vables, based on the management estimates.

vand cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally invests in deposits with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations assaciated with its financial liabilities that are seftled by delivering cash or another

linancial asset, The Company's approach to mana, ng ligquidity is 1o ensure, as far as possible, that it will have

sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilitics when they are due, under

both normal and stressed conditions, withou incurring unaceeptable losses or risking damage to the C pany's 1

The Company has a view of intaining liquidity
view of'its short tern obligations associated with its finungial linbilities,

The liquidity position at each reporting date is given below:

d 1o take minimum possible risk while making investments, The Company monitors its cash and bank balances periodically in

3 Mareh 2024

31 March zazsj

s{A) 7,697 7154
Total current liabilities (13) o 30 22
1 {A-13) ) T.668 7,132

The followiny lie remaining contractual matir es of fimangial Habilitics as on 31 March 2024

T ae
Particulirs

Mare than
one year

Less than
one year

Total

avalbiles -

nvable =]

The following are the remaining conteactual maturities of financial liabilities as on 31 March 2023,

Less than Muore than

e Venr one y

—
-

=]

=]
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17

k3

Capiml n erent

For the purpose of the €

s capital gement, capital inchides issued equity capital and all other equily rese
objective ol the Company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains o strong eredit rating and healtly capital ratios

attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary
vorder to support its business and maximise shareholder value.

The Company manages is o

structure and makes adjustiments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and (he requirements of the il s To
capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend Payment to shareholders, refum capital to sharcholders or isstie new shares,

or adjust the

No changes were made in (he objectives, policies or processes lor managing capital during the period ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023,

The Company manitors capital using Gebt-cquity ratio, which is net debt divided by total equity. These ratios are llustrated below:

T ———
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
—_——

[ - -
shoand cash equivalents and Ik (55) (70)
bakinces
Net debt (55) (T
Total equity 9,815 9815
Other Statutory Information
Al The Company do oot have iy Bewami property, where any p ling has been initined or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property

b The Company do ol ha

ny teansactions with companies struck off:
€l The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registerced with ROC beyond the statutory period,
di - The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virual Cu rency during the financial year.

el The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds 1o any other person(s) or entity(ies), includi 2 foreipn entities (Int liaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary
shail:

tdiveetly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entitics identified in ny mamner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
i) provide any gtrantee, security or the like 1o or on behall of the Ultimate Benefi aries

0 The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), meluding foreign entities (Funcling Party) with the und ling (whether recorded in writing or otherwise)
that the Company shall:

i} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
i) provid antee, security or the like on belall of the Ulimate Beneficiaries,

1) The Company have no such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrend 1 or disclosed as i during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961

For My y S Rathi & Co. I\
Chantered Accountams
P vegastration no. 109182

Forand on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Clean Science Private Limited

@e?(p?/

K

CA Sanjay § Rathi
Partner
Membership No. 42436

o

nakumar Bool
Director

ICAL LIDIN
Date < 1y May 2024

Place : Pune
Date = 14th May,2024




Clean Science Private Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in rupees thousand. unless otherwise stated)

I. Corporate Information
Clean Science Private Limited is a private company domiciled and headquartered in India. The company is
a subsidiary of Clean Science and Technology Limited, which is a Chemical organisation. The Company is
engaged in the business of buying and selling of organic and inorganic chemicals.
2. Material Accounting Policies
2.1 Basis of preparation and presentation
w)  Statement of Compliance
The Standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules.
2015 (as amended from time (o time) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
presentation requirements of Division I of Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant

Schedule ). as applicable to the Company.

The Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 were approved for issue by the
Company’s Board of Directors on May 14, 2024,

b) Basis of measurement

The Standalone financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. except for the
[ollowing assets and labilities which have been measured at fair value or revalued amount:

) Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding
financial instruments):

i) Asset held for sale measured at lower ol carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell:

i) Net defined benetit (asset) / liability that are measured at fair value of plan assets less present

value ol defined benefit obligations.

The accounting policies adopted for preparation and presentation of Standalone financial statements have
been consistent with the previous year.

The Standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees () and all values are rounded to the
nearest millions, upto two places of decimal, unless otherwise stated.

2.2 Current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule 11 (Division 11) to the Companies Act, 2013,
Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months.

2.2 Use of judgements estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Standalone financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue,
expenses. current assets, non-current assets, current liabilities, non-current Liabilities. and disclosure of
the contingent liabilities at the end of cach reporting period. Such estimates are on a reasonable and
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prudent basis considering all available information, however, due to uncertainties about these judgments,
estimates and assumptions, actual results could differ from estimates. Information about each of these
estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes.

Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects
on the amounts recognised in the Standalone financial statements is included in the following notes:

*  Note 40 - classification of financial assets: assessment of business model within which the assefs are
held and assessment of whether the contractual terms of the financial asset are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a

material adjustment is included in the following notes:

s Note 9 - Valuation of inventories: Allocation of overheads.

* Note 33 — Recognition of tax expense including deferred tax.

+  Nole 35 — Recognition ol contingencies: key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of
outllow of resources. However, there are no major contingent liabilities as at current financial year
end

¢ Note 41— Impairment of trade receivables: Computation of weighted average loss rate.

¢ Note 41 — Defined benefit obligation: key actuarial assumptions.

2.3 Revenue recognition:

Sales are recognised when control of the products has been transferred to the customer, being when the
products are delivered to the customer or its authorised representative and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affeet the customer’s acceptance of the products. Revenue is measured based on the
transaction price excluding taxes, which is the consideration, net of returns, trade discounts, and volume
rebates, 1l any.

The sales made by the Company may include transport arrangements from third parties. In such cases,
revenue Tor the supply of such third-party transport arrangements are recorded at gross or net basis
depending on whether the Company is acting as the principal or as an agent of the customer. The Company
recognises revenue for the gross amount of consideration when it is acting as a principal and at net amount
ol consideration when it is acting as an agent.

A receivable is recognised when (he goods are delivered as this is the point in time that the consideration
is unconditional because only the passage of time is required before the payment is due as per agreed
terins and conditions with the buyers.

Revenue from sale of solar electricity power is recognised on a point in time basis when solar electrical
power is transmitted to Alternating Current Distribution Board (ACDB).

2.4 Inventories

Inventories are valued ar cost or net realisable value whichever is lower after providing for cost of
lescence. Cost is determined on a First-in-first-out formula.
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Raw materials are valued at cost of purchase net of duties (credit availed w.r.t taxes and duties) and
includes all expenses incurred in bringing the materials to location of use. However, materials and other
ttems held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished
products in which they will be incorporated are expected Lo be sold at or above cost.

Work-in-process (WIP) and finished goods include conversion costs in addition to the landed cost of raw
materials. Finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. The net realizable value
ol the finished goods is determined with reference to the selling prices of related finished goods.

WIP includes certain inventories used in the production process which has life of more than one year.
These inventories are amortised over its useful life and included as part of cost of production.

Cost of finished goods and work-in-progress comprises cost of raw material and appropriate fixed
production overheads which are allocated on the basis of normal capacity of production facilities and
variable production overheads o the basis of actual production of material and after deduction of the
realisable value of the by-product.

Netrealisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
ol completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Obsolete and slow-moving inventories are
identified and wherever necessary. such inventories are written off/provided during the year.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment
« Recognition and measurement

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognised as an asset if, and only if it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably,

Property, plant and equipments are carried at cost which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. ltems of property, plant and equipment are
measured at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation and / or accumulated
wapairment losses, it any. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price, including import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies and any directly attributable cost
of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and
removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. Any trade discounts and rebates are
deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Borrowing costs directly atiributable to the construction of a
qualitying asset are capitalised as part of the cost. The cost of a seli-constructed item of property. plant
and equipment comprises the ¢ost of materials and direct labour. any other costs directly attributable to
bringing the item o working condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and
removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. The Company identifies and determines
costol'cach component/ part of the asset separately, if' the component/ part has a cost which is significant
to the total cost of the asset and has useful life that is materially different from that of the remaining asset.
These components are depreciated separately over their useful lives: the remaining components are
depreciated over the life of the principal asset.

Property. plant and equipment under construction are disclosed as capital work-in-progress.
« Subsequent costs
Ihe cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying

amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow

S. Ra%f
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to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The arrving amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property. plant and equipment are recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.

* Disposal

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future benefits are
expeeted from its use or disposal. Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property. plant and
cquipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of
property, plant and cquipment. ind are recognised net within other imcome/ expenses in the Statement of
Profit and 1oss.

* Depreciation method and estimated usefui lives

Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on the straight-line method on pro-rata basis, over the useful
lives of assets as prescribed in Schedule — 11 of the Companies Act, 2013 which s as follows:

Type of assel Useful life

i (No. of years)
Factory Building 30 years
Non-Factory Buildings 060 years
Plant and Machinery 5-20 years
Office Equipment 5 years
Vehicles 8-10 years

| Furniture and fixtures 10 years

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted if appropriate.

Lmpairments of non-finaneial sssets:

The Company assesses at cach balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset or cash
generating unit (CGU) may be impaired. Indefinite life intangibles are subject to a review for impairment
annually ormore frequently if events or circumstances indicate that it is necessary. If any such indication
exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the assel. The recoverable amount is the higher
oFan asset’s or CGU’s fair value less costs of disposal or its value in use. Where the carrying amount of’
an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered im paired and is written down to
its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use. the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre- tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value ol money and the risks
specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are
considered.

An impairment loss 1s recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

[T av the balance sheet date there is an indication that & previously assessed impairment loss no longer
exists, an impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, i no
impairment loss had been recognised.
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2.6 Other intangible assets:
* Recognition and measurementg

[ntangible assets are recognised when the assetis identifiable, is within the control of the Company, it is
probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable (o the asset will flow to the Company and
cost of the assel can be reliably mcasured.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Intangible assets acquired
by the Company that have finite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. [ntangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised. but are
tested for impairment annually, cither individually or at the cash-gencrating unit level,

Expenditvre on research activities is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred,

Development expenditure is capitalised only if the expenditure can be measured reliably, the product or
process s echnically and commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable, and the
Company intends (o complete development and to use or sell the asset.

Intangible assets which comprise of the development expenditure incurred on new product and
expenditure incurred on acquisition of user licenses for computer software are recorded at their
acquisition price.

s subseguent measurement

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future cconomic benefits embodied in
the specific asset to which it relates.

* Amortisation
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed based on management estimates.

tntaingible assets i.c., computer sofiware is amortized on a straight-line basis over the period of expected
future benefits commencing from the date the assclis available for its use.

the management has estimated the useful tle for software & licenses as following,

- Years |
S . 5 |

Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of cach financial year and
adjusted i appropriate.

Intangibie assets are assessed {or impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired.

* Disposal
Gains or losses arising {rony derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of

Protit and [ oss when the assei is derecognized.

2.7 Employee benefits:
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¢ Short-term employee benefits

The distinction between short term and long-term employee benefits is based on expected timing of
settlement rather than the employee’s entitlement benefits. Employee benefits payable wholly within
twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits. Such benefits
include selaries. wages, bonus, short term compensated absences, awards. ex-gratia, performance pay etc.
and are recognised in the period in which the employee renders the related service. The undiscounted
amount of short-term employee benefits expected Lo be paid in exchange for the services rendered by
employees is recognized during the year. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid
2. under short-term cash bonus. il the Company has a present legai or constructive obligation to pay
this amount as a result of  past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be
estimated reliably.

The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absences. The em ployees can carry forward
a portion of the unutilized accumulating compensated absences and utilize it in future periods or receive
cash at retirement or termination of employment. The Company records an obligation for compensated
absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that increases this entitlement.
Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed within 12 months
from the end of the year are treated as short term employee benelits. The obligation towards the same is
measured at the expected cost ol accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount expected
to be paid as a result of the unused entitlement as at the year end.

* Post-cmployment benefits
Defined contribution plans

Contributions to the provident fund and superannuation schemes which is defined contribution scheme.
are recognised as an employee benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which
the contsibution is due. Contributions are made in accordance with the rules of the statute and are
recognised as expenses when employees render service entitling them to the contributions. The Company
has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund.

[T the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the
contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting
the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services
received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-
payment will Iead to, for example. a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Defined benefit plans

The employees™ gratuity scheme 1s a defined benefit plan which is administered by a trust formed for
this purpose through the group schemes of Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC). The present value
ol the obligation under such defined benefit plans is determined based on actuarial valuation using the
projected unit eredit method. which recognises cach period of service as giving rise to additional unit of
cmployee benelit entitlement and measures cach unit separately to build up the final obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates
used for determining the present value of'the obligation under defined benefit plans. is based on the market
vields on government securities as at the reporting date, having maturity periods appreximating to the
crelated ebligations,
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Remeasurements. comprising of actuarial gains and losses. the effeet of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised
immediately in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through other
comprehensive income (OCI) in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to
the Statement of Profit and Loss in subsequent periods.

In case of funded plans, the fair value of the planned assets is reduced from the gross obligation under
the defined benefit plans, o recognise the obligation on net basis.

When the benefits of the plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed. the resulting change in benefits
that refates Lo past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in the Statement
of Profit and Loss. Net interest is caleulated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benelit
liability or asset. The Company recognises gains/ losses on settlement of a defined plan when the
settlement occurs,

© Other long-term employee benelits

The habilities for earned leave are not expected 1o be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of
the reporting period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as
the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees
up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method as determined by actuarial
valuation. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have
terms approximating the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience
adjustments and change in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The
oblications are presented as current liabilities in the Balance Sheet if the entity does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months afler the reporting period. regardless of
when the actual settlement is expected to oceur.

» Termination benefits

Fermination benelits are expensed at the earlier of when the Company can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Company recognizes costs for a restructuring. I benefits are not expected
to be settled wholly within 12 months of the reporting date, then they are discounted.

2.8 Employee Share-based Payments

Equity-settled share-based paynients to employees are measured at the fair value of the options at the grant
date.

The fair value of option at the grant date is expensed over the respective vesting period in which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied with a corresponding increase in equity as “Employee Stock
Options Account™. In case of forfeiture of unvested option, portion of amount already expensed is reversed.
In a situation where the vested option forfeited or expires unexercised, the related balance standing to the
credit of the “Employee Stock Options Account” are transferred to the “Retained Earnings”.

When the options are exercised. the Company issues new equity shares of the Company of Rs. 1/- each
fully paid-up. The proceeds received and the related balance standing to credit of the Employee Stock
Options Account, are credited to share capital (nominal value) and Securities Premium Account.
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See Note 48 — Employee Share-based Payments for further details.
2.9 Income taxes:

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the Statement of Profit and
[oss exeept to the extent that it relates (o a husiness combination or Hems recognised directly in equity or
in other comprehensive income (OC).

o Current tay

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year
and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current
tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the
uncertainty. ilany, related to income taxes. Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected 1o be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the
country where the Company operates and generates taxable income. Current tax assets and liabilities are
offset only if there is a legally enforeeable right to set it off the recognised amounts and it is intended to
realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

©Deferved tax

Deferred wx is provided using the balance sheet method on temparary differences between the tax base
orsers and Habilities and their carrying amounts for linancial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

- emporary differences related 1o investments in subsidiaries, associates, and Jjointarrangements to the
extent that the Company is able 1o control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probabie that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for al! deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses, Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxabic profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
loiward ol unused tax eredits and unused tax losses (including unabsorbed depreciation) can be utilised,
exeept:

= Wien the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of un asset or liabifity in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction. afieets neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Fhe carrying amount of deferred tax asscts is reviewed at cach reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to aliow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred
tax asset (o be recovered,

Delerred wx assets and labilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Défered tan assels and deferred tax labilities are offset il a |(.“:‘.:1H$" CI!ﬂ‘JI'CCEIbIL' I‘igh[ exists to set off
£ &
taxable t.’.‘l'llll)
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and the same taxation authority.

beferied tax relating 10 items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss.
Deferred iax items are recognised in correlation 1o the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly
i cquity.,

2.10  Earnings per share (1XPS):

Basic i:P3 s calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
honus cleients and stock split in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shases. The
weiziied average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is
adjusted Tor events, such as bonus shares and stock split, other than the conversion of potential equity
shaves that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in

FESAQUICes,

Diluted EPS adjust the figures used in the determination of basic EPS to consider.

> the afier-income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential
equily shares. and

¢ The weighied average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of afl dilutive potentiai equity sharcs.

2.11 frovision nnd contingent liabilitics / assets:

A provisiviis recogmised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
o a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the ebligation and a refiable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation, Provisions
are measured at the best estiniate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance
sheet date. The provisions are measured on an undiscounted basis.

Contingeni labilives are obligaiions arising [rom past events, the existence of which will be confirmed
only by ilie occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more unéertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Company,

Contingent liabitity is disclosed in case of

- & present obligation arising [rom past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the oblivation,

a possiblerobligation arising [rom past events where the probability of outflow of resources is not

renote,

Contingent assel is not recognised in the Standalone financial statements., A contingent asset is disclosed.
where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Provisions. contingent liabilitics and contingent assels are reviewed at cach balance sheet date.
2:32 Leases

Al meeption ¢f a coniract, the Company assesses whether a contract is. or contains. a lease. A contract
speeQutaine., a lease i the contract conveys the right 10 control the use of an identified asset for a period
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of ime 1n exchaisge for consideration.
Company as a iessee

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The
right- of-use asset is initially rcasured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the
tnderlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

e right-of-use assel is subsequently depreciated using  the straight-line  method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the
lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of
praperty and cquipment In addition. the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses,
il any. and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

Fhe fease Habiliny s initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date. discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be
readily deiermined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

- fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments.

- vartisble lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or
rate as at the commencement date.
amounts expeceted to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

- theenereise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain Lo exercise, lease
payments in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension
option. ard penalties for carlv termination of a lease unless the Company is reasonably certain not
1o ferminate carly,

The Tease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 1t is remeasured
when tiere 15 @ change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a
change in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee,
or if'the Company changes its assessmeat of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option,

When the rease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying

amount of the right-of-use asset or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use
assct has been reduced to zero. '

Leaseheld land is amortised over the period of lease.
Short-term leases and leases of fow-value assets
the Company has elected not (o recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases

Aar e a fease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises thie
lease paymivnts associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

2.13 air value measurement

sreceived o sell an asset or paid 1o transfer a liability in an orderly
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transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The [air value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place cither:

= In the principal marker for the asset or liability, or

- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or lability.
o %)

Uhe principal or the most advantageous market must be aceessible by the Company. The fair value of an
asset or a Hability is measured using the assumptions that market participanits would use when pricing
the asser or liability, assuming that market participants act in their cconomic best iaterest. A fair value
measurement of" a non-financial asset considers a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circurnstances and for which
sulficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs,

« Level | - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

* Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | thar are observable for the asset or
liability. either directly (i.c. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

* Level 3 - inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
nputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability. the Company uses observable market data as far
as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an assct or a liability fall into different levels
of the fair value hierarchy. then the fair value measurement is calegorised in its entirety in the samne level
of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant 1o the entire measurement,

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Standalone financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have oceurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
calegorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities based
on the nature. characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.

2.14 Foreign curreney transacetions

Iransactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currency of the Company at
the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Monctary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency
at the exchange rate at the reporting date, Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at faic value
in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured based on historicai cost in a foreign currency are
translated at the exchange rate at the date of” the transaction. Foreign currency differences are generally
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.15 Financial instruments

2.15.1 Financial assets
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Initial recognition and measurcement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asser of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity. All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value
plus except for trade receivables which are initially measured at transaction price, in the case of financial
assels not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset,

Su l]ﬂt‘{] uent measurcment

For purposes ol subsequent measurement. financia! assets are classified in one of the three categories:
a4) At amortised cost

b) At fair value through Other Comprehensive Income CIFVTOCI)

¢) At fair value through profit or loss CFVTPL?)

(1) Financial assets classified as measured af smortised cost
A financial asset shall be measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in
order o colleet contractual cash flows and

the contractual (erins of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments ef principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Alter initial measurement, such linancial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate ("EIR™) method. less impairment charge. Amortised cost is caleulated by
considering any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
The EIQ amortisation is included in finance expense/ (income) in the Statement of Profit and Loss, The
losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This category
generaily applies (o rade receivables, security and other deposits receivable by the Company.

lnterest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The ‘effective interest
rave” is the rare that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipls or payments through the expected
fife of the financial instrament to:

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset: or
- the amoriised cost of the financial liability.
(b} Financial assets elassified as measured al FVOOE

A Binaieial asset is measured ol faiv value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a
business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
firancial asscts and the contractual ferms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Further. the
Company’ makes such clection on an instrument-by-instrument basis. for its investments which are
classificd as cquity“instrumicnts. the subsequent changes in 1air value are recognized in other
comprehensive inceme, Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition” of impairment pains or losses and interest revenue which are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When tie financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recoghised in OCH is reclassificd from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other aains/ (losses).

f’ﬁ\\‘a‘l S. Rég,

2

. *
2 (FRN. 1091820) &
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literest incote from these finan zial asseis is included in other income using the effective interest rate

method,
(¢) Finuneinl agsets classified as measueed at FVTPL

Assets that de not meet the eriteria for amortised cost or FVOCT are measured at fair value through profit
o foss A gain or loss on a mutual fund invesiment that is subsequently measured at fair value through

¢ J g
profitor loss is recognised in profit or ioss and presented net in the Statement of Profit and Loss within
aier gainsflosses) in the pertod mowhich it arises.

Financial assets are not reclassificd subsequent (o their initial recognition, exeept i and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Dividends are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss only when the right to receive payment is
eswblished. and it is probable that the cconomic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Company and that the amount ol the dividend can be measured reliably.

De-recoonition of financial asset

The Compary derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transiers the rights 1o receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewavds of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Company neither transiers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
and does noet retain controd ol the financial asset.

Hothe Company entets into transactions whereby it wansfers assets recognised on its Balance Sheet but
vetains cither all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred
assets are not derecognised.

Fopairment of Tinanceial assets
The Company assesses impairment based on expected credit loss (*ECL’) model on the following:

- Financial assets that are measured at amortised cost; and
- Financial assets measured at FVTOCI

The Company follows “simplilicd approach® for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade

receivables.

the application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk.
Rather. it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right
from its initia! recognition. For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets the Company
recognises 12 month expected credit losses for all originated or acquired financial assets il at the
reporting date. the credit risk has not increased significantly since ifs originai recognition. However, if
credit risk has inereased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. ECLL impairment loss allowance (or reversal)
recognized inihe Statement of Profit and Loss,

2,152 Financial liabilities

baitial recsgaition and measurement
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Financial liabilities are classified. at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through pmhr
or Joss, doans and borrowings. payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
elfeciive hedge, as appropriate

Al Tinancial liabilities are recogrised initially at fair value and. i ine case of feans and borrowings and
pavabies. net el directly attributable and ineremental transaction cost, The O ompany’s financial liabilitics
elude trade and other payabies. loans and borrowings and derivative financial instruments.

Amariised eont s cateulated by H II{I mnto ac count any discount or }FILI]\ILH‘I] on (ILlllllb”.lOil and 'L(..\ ar
COsts tnal oo an integral part of !'u, EIR. The EIR amortisadon is included as finance costs in the
Statement ol Profit and Loss.

he t‘.'-“np‘-n\-'\- fnancial liabitities inciude wrade and other payables. loans and borrowings including
bank cverdrafls. financial guarantee coniracts.

Fireancial linbilities at FVTPL,

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial labilities held for trading and financial liabilitics
designatizd as such upon initial recognition. Financial liabilities are classificd as held for trading il they
arc incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative
FHMIIL b instruments entered into by the Company that are not desiu i ted as hedging instruments in hedge

clitionships as defined by nd A5 109,

i

sins 61 fosses on Habilities held for trading ave cecognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities designated as such apon initial recognition at the initial date of recognition if the
criteria in IndAS 109 are satishied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses
attributable to changes in own ereditrisks are recognised in OCL These sains/ losses are not bubxcqucnllx
transterred (o the Statement of Profitand Loss, However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain
ot loss within equity. Al other changes in fair value of such liabiiity are :c.wgmacd in the Statement of
Profiv and 1 .oss,

(1) Financial linbilitics at amortised cost

The Company generally classifics interest bearing borrowings as financial liabilities carried at amortised
cost. After initial recognition, th\L‘ mstruments are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective ierest rate (EIRY method. Gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
when the fisbilities are derecoanised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is caleulated by aking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or

costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
Stateinent of Profit and Loss.

Be-recognition of financial noility

A Tinancial hability {or a pa!l ol i financial liability) is derecognised from the Balance Sheet when, and
only when, |. is extinguishied i.e., when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled
or expired. '

stantially different
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terms, or the terms ol an existing lability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
ditference inthe respective carrving amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Ofisctiing of fiaancial instruments

Finaneiol zssets and financial labilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if
there s & currently enforceable legal right 10 offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, 1o realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

Fhe Company enters into certain derivative contracts to hedge risks which are not designated as hedges.
the Company holds derivative financial instruments W hedge its foreign currency and interest rate risk
exposures. Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for separatelv if
the host contract is noi a Fnancial asset and certain erileria are met.

Derivatives ere mitially measuicd at fair vaiue. Subsequent Lo initial recognition, derivatives are
measuied at fair vaiue. and changes therzin are generally recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial guaraniee contracets:
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require specified payments
to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a

pavnent when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initiaily as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction
cosiv that are direetly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.

Subsequently. ihe tiavility is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per
| p 2 : =
impatrment reguarements ol nd AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Where guarantees in relation w loans or other payables of subsidiaries are provided for no compensation,
the fair values are accounted for as contributions and recognised as fees receivable under “other financial
assets™ o as a part of the cost of the investment, depending on the contractual terms.

2.16 Segmeul reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker,

The Managing Director of the Company has been identified as being the Chief operating decision maker
by the management of the Company.

237 Goveramed Srants:
Government grants related to revenue are recognized on a systematic basis in the net profit in the

Statement of Profit and Loss over the periods necessary to match them with the related costs which they
intend to compensaie.
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Export incentives under various schemes notified by the government are recognised when no significant
uncertaintics as to the amount of consideration that would be derived and that the Company will comply
with the conditions associated with the grant and ultimate collection exist.

218 Cush and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents i the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturioy of not more than three months. which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

2.19 Cash flow statement:

Cash Flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby nel Profit before tax is adjusted for the
elfects of transactions of a non-cash nature, such as deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and items ol income or expenses associated with investing or linancing cash Mows.
I tae statements of cash flows. cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as
defined above net of outstanding bank overdrafls as they are considered as integral part of the Company’s
cash management.

2.20 Adoption of new accounting principle:

Deferred 1ax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction (amendments to Ind AS 12
-Income Taxes). The amendments clarified that lease transactions give rise to ecual and offsetting
teraporary differences and financial statements should reflect the future tax im pacts of these transactions
through recognizing deferred tax. The Company has adopted this amendment effective 1 April 2023.
The company previously accounted for deferred tax on leases on a net basis. Following the amendments,
the company has recognized a separate deferred tax asset in relation to its lease liabilities and a deferred
tax liability in relation to its right-to-use assets.

2.21 Recent Indixn Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and Pronouncements

Ministry ef Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended
March 31. 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to {he existing standards
applicable to the Company.




